Veazie Town Council June 20, 2011

ITEM I.

ITEM 2.

ITEM 3.
ITEM 4.

ITEMS.

ITEM 6.

ITEM 7.

ITEM 8.
ITEM 9.
ITEM 10.
ITEM I1.

ITEM 12,

Joseph Fricdman
[ Veazie Villas

832-0933

Municipal Council Chambers

AGENDA

Call to Order

a. Election of a Chair
b.  Setting of Meeting Schedule

Consideration of the June 6, 2011 and June 14, 2011 Council Meeting Minutes

Consideration of the Agenda

Comments from the Public

New Business

a.  Community Center - Doors
b.  Annual Appointments

¢.  Fund Transfer

Unfinished Business

a.  RSU Funding

b.  Junk Complaints Update
c. Jake Brake Update

d. Delinquent Tax Accounts

Additions by Council
Manager’s Report
Requests for Information and Town Council Comments

Review of Town Warrants 26. 26A and Town Payroll 26

Adjournment
Tenathan Parker Brian Perking Famimy Olson
P49 Buck Hill Dr. 1116 Chase Rd. S Prouty Drive
Y4 74740 942-2609 947-9624

7:00 PM

David King
FORT Main Street
G42.3376



AGENDA NOTES and MANAGER’S REPORT

For Monday June 20th (@ 7 PM Veazie Council Chambers

ITEM 2A and B: Election of a Chair / Town Council Schedule:

As required by the Town Charter the first order of business is the annual
election of the Chair and then the setting of the Town Council’s schedule.

It would be recommended that the Town Council conduct both items of
business at this time.

ITEM 6A: Community Center - Doors:

Please find enclosed a copy of the proposal that the Community Center
Reuse Advisory Committee approved for the doors for the community
center.

It would be recommended by management that the following Motion be
made: Motion to order the Town Manager to award the door replacement
award to Viking Glass for the sum $6,870.00 with said funding to come
from the Energy Efficiency Grant and the matching funds for the grant
coming from the Economic Development Reserve Fund.

ITEM 6B: Appointments:

Please find enclosed a copy of a memo from staff pertaining to the annual
appointments and the recommended motion.

ITEM 6C: Funds Transfer:

Management recommends that the Town Council authorize staff to
transfer $125,000 from the undesignated fund to the municipal credit
reserve account as approve at the annual town meeting to reduce the
property tax rate.

ITEM 7A: RSU Funding Discussion:

Please a reprint of the Reserve Fund Use Agreement that we have with
the RSU.

Please also find enclosed two letters from the RSU Chair discussing what



actions they wish to proceed to work upon with us. The second letter
outlines an informational meeting they are scheduling for June 21% at 7pm
at the Orono Town Council Chambers.

Staff's recommendation continues to be that we work with the RSU to
address the future.

Staff's second recommendation continues to be to address the present
year proposed RSU assessment / tax ~ that Veazie use the 2013-2014
reserve funds at a minimum roughly ($33,000+) and possibly some of the
2012-2013 which has a balance of ($180,000) in funds.

At the present time the projected impact if the RSU budget is approved is
$164,791.00, less any amount that the Town Council may wish to apply
from the reserve accounts to soften any tax increase.

A recommended motion would be as follows:

Motion to order the Town Manager to send the RSU a letter amending the
use of the reserve funds in the following manner (Insert Change)

The Town staff would also recommend the establishment of a new
reserve account call the Veazie Assessment Stabilization Fund, which
would be a dedicated reserve fund that the Town Council could use when
the RSU assessments change greatly at any one time, it would be very
similar as the Town’s former tuition reserve account from many years ago.

A recommended motion be as follows:
Motion to order the Town to establish a new-dedicated reserve fund called

Assessment Stabilization Fund.

ITEM 7b: Junk Complaints Update:

Please find enclosed a copy of a report following up on the complaints
discussed at the June 6" Town Council meeting. CEO Thomas will be
present at the meeting to address the Town Council.

ITEM 7c: Jake Brake Update:

Please find enclosed a copy of an email that was sent to the Town
attorney for follow up and assistance on the jake brake matter. In general
MMA outlined that any jake brake ordinance was not enforceable because
of federal regulations.

Staff would recommend that if the Town attorney agrees that an
ordinance is not workable that we be authorized to put up voluntary
compliance “No Jake Brake’ signs.



ITEM 7d: Delinquent Tax Accounts:

Management recommends that staff be authorized to start the property
tax sale process on these final two accounts. All other accounts are
currently in agreements. After consultation with the Town attorney and
making personal contact with the individuals, it is strongly recommended
that we proceed on the two accounts due to them not signing or accepting
their certified mail and also several broken agreements.

Motion to order the start of a property tax sale of real estate account 346 -

5 Veazie Street (07-46) and real estate account 945 — 1490 State Street
trailer 21 (10-06-21)

ITEM 8. Please find enclosed:

a.) A copy of the sewer assessment opinion written by the Town attorney. The
assessor, several council members and others questioned if the assessment was
still valid. Many stated that it was “repealed by implication.” This opinion outlines
that we still can commit the assessment until it is addressed by a court.

b.) A copy of a conflict of interest opinion written by the Town attorney. We had a
number of complaints and questions pertaining to this matter. Staff consulted with
the Town attorney to make sure our understanding was correct.

c.) A copy of photos displaying the Shore Road repair project. This is enclosed
knowing that not everyone can see all the projects that are on going.

d.) A copy of a letter from the Maine Community Foundation outlining that we did
not win a second grant.

e.) The BACTs long range transportation plan public document.
f.) The water district's minutes.

g.) A copy of the Legislative Bulletin.



VEAZIE TOWN COUNCIL June 6, 2011 7:00PM

PRESENT:

ITEM 1.

ITEM 2.

ITEM 3.

ITEM 4.

ITEM Sa.

ITEM 5b.

Councilor Parker, Councilor Perkins, Councilor King, Councilor Friedman,
Manager W. Reed, Deputy Clerk K. Humphrey, Office Administrator J. Reed, Fire
Chief GG. Martin, Police Chief M. Leonard, Parks & Recreation Director R. Young,
Public Works Director B. Stoyell, Members of the Public. Chairman Hathaway was
absent and excused.

Councilor Perkins nominated Councilor Friedman as Chair Pro Tem. Seconded:
Councilor King, Voted 3-0 in favor. Councilor Friedman abstained.

The June 6, 2011 Veazie Town Council meeting was called to order at 7:00PM.

Consideration of the Minutes

Motion By: Councilor Parker—to accept the May 23, 2011 meeting minutes as
written. Seconded: Councilor Perkins, Voted 2-0 in favor. Chairman Pro Tem
Friedman and Councilor King abstained.

Consideration of the Agenda

Member of the public Mike Boynton would like to discuss code issues. This was
added as item 5¢. Councilor King would like to discuss a jake brake ordinance.
This was added as item 7a.

Comments from the Public
Member of the public Travis Noyes inquired if item 5b was to discuss what
happened with the RSU. Manager Reed stated it was.

DECD Grant Notice

Mike Bush of Penquis CAP was present to discuss the community block grant the
Town received. The next phase will be documentation. Mr. Bush went over the
six steps required. An advisory committee will need to be created to review and
make comment on guidelines which will then be brought back to the Council for
approval.

RSU Reserve Use Discussion

Manager Reed outlined that Rep. Jim Parker had set up a meeting with Jim Rier,
Deputy Commissioner of Education. Mr. Rier understood the Town’s concerns and
had a hard time understanding the per pupil cost factor and the inclusion of debt
service in the RSU’s formula. Manager Reed stated that Mr. Rier offered to help
assist the Town in finding a resolution with the RSU.

Manager Reed outlined that staff’s recommendation would be for the Town to use
the 2013-2014 reserve funds at a minimum and possibly some of the 2012-2013
reserve funds to help otfset the increase in Veazie’s assessment. Staff also would
recommend establishing a new reserve account which could be used to offset large
changes in the RSU assessment.

Councilor Perkins wondered what incentive the RSU would have to sit down with
Veazie and resolve this issue to the Town's satisfaction. Manager Reed stated that
it Is a tough situation to sit down at a table with two other communities and your



VEAZIE TOWN COUNCIL June 6, 2011 7:00PM

ITEM Sc.

ITEM 6a.

ITEM 6b.

ITEM 7a

three members only equals one vote. He outlined that Orono, who has the most
votes on the board, would be the community most affected by a revision to the
formula.

Councilor Perkins inquired whether a change in the formula would be retroactive.
Manager Reed stated it would not. It was pointed out that Veazie’s school unit
budget stayed flat this year while the other two communities’ went up.

Member of the public Todd Lynch inquired on how much of the mill rate would be
dedicated to the school. Manager Reed stated about 13 mills out of 19.6.

It was the consensus of the Council to wait until they had a full board present
before making any decisions. Member of the public T ammy Olson inquired on
when the deadline was for when they needed to decide. Manager Reed stated by
the tax commitment, end of July, beginning of August.

Code Discussion

Member of the public Mike Boynton was present to complain about a home on
Thompson Road that has junk cars, boats, etc. in the yard. He is frustrated that
keeps being told that there is no code to address this. There was also discussion on
two other properties, one on Main Street and the other on Hobson Avenue. Deputy
Code Enforcement Officer Brian Stoyell will look into the three issues and report
back at the June 20" meeting.

Public Works Spring Cleanup Discussion

Public Works Director Brian Stoyell outlined that the spring cleanup was a huge
success and he received a lot of positive feedback. There were 106 vehicle loads
the first day. They filled five dumpsters with demo and one dumpster with metal.
One Steel paid the Town $427 for the metal and the cost of disposing the demo
dumpsters will be around $5,000 and $6,000. Director Stoyell outlined that he
thought there was so much stuff because the Town hasn’t had a spring cleanup in a
few years. He felt that if the Town kept it annual the amounts would be less.

Bangor Gas Update

Manager Reed outlined that the Town will be doing a mailing to the village area
and Davis subdivision area as soon as Bangor Gas provides the information. A list
of interested parties was included in the Councilor’s packets.

Jake Brake Ordinance

Councilor King recommended developing an ordinance for Jjake brakes on Route 2.
[t was the consensus to have staff research it and have it enforced by the Police
Department.

Chairman Pro Tem Friedman inquired about the replacement of curbing and who
was paying for what. Manager Reed outlined the project to the Council.

Chairman Pro Tem Friedman also inquired whether all the damaged mailboxes had
been replaced. Manager Reed stated they had.

£



VEAZIE TOWN COUNCIL June 6, 2011 7:00PM

ITEM 8. Manager’s Report
The Town Council reviewed the following items:
a. acopy of the Town’s financials
b. a Municipal Review Committee report

¢. reports submitted by Lou Silver Inc. on highway maintenance projects

d. acopy of a Bangor Daily News article on a Veazie drug bust

¢. acopy of an email asking the Town to look into larger recycling carts
ITEMO9. Requests for Information and Town Council Comments

There were no requests for information or Town Council comments.

ITEM 10. Warrants: Town Warrant 25, 25A and Town Payroll 25 were circulated for
signature.,

ITEM 11. Adjournment: Motion: Councilor King—to adjourn the June 6, 2011 Town
Council Meeting. Seconded: Councilor Perkins. There was no further discussion.
Voted 4-0. Meeting adjourned 8:10 pm.

A true record, Attest:

%{m NG ‘QLU”YL{)LUUZQ &

Karen Humphrey
Deputy Clerk
Town of Veazie

1)



VEAZIE TOWN COUNCIL June 14, 2011 7:00PM

PRESENT:

ITEM 1.

ITEM 2.

ITEM 3.

ITEM 4.

ITEM 5.

ITEM 6.

ITEM 7.

ITEM 8.

Councilor Perkins, Councilor King, Councilor Parker, Manager W. Reed, Office
Administrator J. Reed, Public Works Director B. Stoyell, Fire Chief G. Martin and
Members of the Public. Chairman Hathaway and Councilor Friedman were absent
and excused.

The June 14, 2011 Veazie Town Council meeting was called to order at 7:00PM.

Consideration of the Agenda—No changes were made

Comments from the Public— Member of the public Mike Smart questioned his
water bill increase. He was directed to the Water District to follow up.

RSU Funding Discussion—The manager outlined that a tentative meeting date
was set by the RSU to discuss how the funding formula was created. It was thought
to be June 21 at 7pm in Orono. The manager outlined that he would send out the
letter once he received it.

Additions by Council— There were none.

Manager’s Report — There were no items.

Requests for Information and Town Council Comments—There were none.
Adjournment: Motion: Councilor Parker—to adjourn the June 14, 2011 Town

Council Meeting. Seconded: Councilor King—there was no further discussion.
Voted 3-0. Meeting adjourned 7:15 pm.

A true record. Attest:

q

oy

O

S ,3’1_/\_’,_&M N,\

Wi /[fz'Um Reed

Town Clerk



ITEM #_ o2

P

Oty Rate Testal

504050

ey, MEand fabncstod Dy
iand, Mane

LADO Y renvy

2XISHOG oo : 1400 BELRVE
vy oo




ITEM # b

Memo

To: Veazie Town Council

From: Allan Thomas, Tax Assessor/Code Enforcement Officer
Date: June 16, 2011

Subject: Annual appointments

The following appointments are made annually, expire on June 30 each year, and should be
renewed prior to July 1%,

Allan Thomas
Tax Assessor
Code Enforcement Officer
Plumbing Inspector
Building Inspector
Electrical inspector
E-911 Addressing Officer
Storm Water Administrator &
grant Pole Permit Authority
Brian Stoyell
Alternate Code Enforcement Officer

a possible motion might be:

I'move to reappoint Allan Thomas as the Tax Assessor, Code Enforcement Officer, Plumbing
Inspector, Building Inspector, Electrical inspector, E-911 Addressing Officer, Storm Water
Administrator, and to grant Rule 80-K authorization and pole permit issuing authority, and

to reappoint Brian Stoyell as an alternate Code Enforcement until June 30,2011



ITEM # Ta

- U T
AGREEMENT N ;;, ‘\;g ob ]

|

This Agreement is entered into by Jnd between Regional School Unit No 76 (RSU No. 76) and the

Town of Veazie ("Veazie") as of this > day of June, 2010.

RECITALS

A. RSU No. 26 is a regional school unit that was duly formed and organized pursuant

to Title 20-A M.R.S. §§ 14511512,

B. RSU No. 26 includes the towns of Orono, Glenburn, and Veazie.

C. Orono, Glenburn, and Veazie were each municipal school units prior to the

approval and formation of RSU No. 26.

D. Title 20-A M.R.S. § 1463 requires that a municipal school unit pay the balance
remaining in its school accounts to the treasurer of the regional school unit, and that the
remaining balance be verified through the annual audit process pursuant to Title 20-A,
Chapter 221, Subchapter 2. Section 1463 also provides that said balance remaining must
be used to reduce the municipal school unit's local contribution to the regional school

unit,

k. The parties have agreed that the verified balance of Veazie's school accounts totals:

$551.931.00

The parties desire to enter into this Agreement to implement the required payment and to
establish provisions dealing with the use of the funds to reduce Veazie's local
contribution to RSLNo, 26, commencing with the July 1. 2010 1o June 30, 2017 fiscal

vedar of RSU No. 26,

NOWTHEREFORE, in consideration of the f foregoimg recitals and the benetits aind

ubligations of the partics. the parties hereby aaree as follow s




o

(2

Veazie shall pay RSU No. 26 the amount of $551 931.00 no later

than June 25, 2010.

RSU No. 26 shall deposit the payment into one or more segregated. interest-
bearing account(s), the purpose of which is limited to the use of'the principal and interest
earned thereon to reduce Veazie's local contribution to RSU No. 26 for the fiscal years

July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011 and July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012.

After the approval of the RSU No. 26 budget tor FY 2010/2011, and before the

issuance of the warrant pursuant to Title 20-A M.R.S. § 1489, the RSU No. 26 Board shall
reduce the Veazie's local contribution to the regional school unit for that year by
$158,710.00. Said amount may be withdrawn by RSU No. 26 from

the segregated account(s) and deposited into its general account(s) after the warrant is
issued pursuant to Title 20-A M.R.S. §1489, which warrant shall be for the net local

contribution for Veazie.

The remaining balance of principal and any interest earned thereon shal] remain in

the segregated, interest-bearing account(s) and shall be used in the same manner to reduce
Veazie's local contribution for the following fiscal years. FY 2011-2012 $180,000.00; FY
2012-2013 $180.000.00; FY 2013-2014 $33.221.00 plus all accrued interest balance.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partics have caused the Agreement to be duly executed as

of the date first above written.

‘»mzus

TOWN OF VEAZIE -

Wrﬂmm Reed
[t's Town Manager

Plots sanith

s sapernniaindent



172 Main Street

Orono, ME 04473
207-866-4729
amitchell@riversidersu.org
May 19, 2011

Mr. Geoffrey Gordon, Chair
Orono Town Council

22 Hamlin Street

Orono, ME 04473

Dear Geoff,

[ am writing to you as chairperson of the Orono Town Council; I hope you will share this letter
with your colleagues. Members of the Riverside RSU #26 Board of Directors’ Finance Sub-
committee met on Tuesday, May 17 with Veazie Town Manager Bill Reed, RSU 26
Superintendent Doug Smith, and RSU 26 Business Manager Sharon Soucie to discuss questions
the Veazie Town Council raised regarding the proposed 2011-12 RSU 26 budget. We had a very
productive, frank and open conversation, fundamentally agreeing as to the nature of the problems
Mr. Reed identified. As the Veazie council's questions undoubtedly mirror similar thoughts in
Orono and in Glenburn, Mr. Smith and I thought it might be helpful to share this letter with you
and Mr. Mike O’Connor, the Glenburn Town Council chairperson. The letter was originally sent
to Mr. Rod Hathaway, the Veazie Town Council chairperson, following Tuesday's meeting.

The cost share formula was at the crux of our discussion. The 2011-12 proposed RSU budget
was prepared using the same procedure as the 2010-11 budget. The consensus of the Finance
Committee is in concurrence with Mr. Smith that we must use consistent methods of preparation
from the last budget cycle to this budget cycle, despite lingering questions about the formula.

We are, however, equally committed to moving forward in concert with the three municipalities
in a positive, forthright manner. The Board intends to examine the cost share formula after
June’s municipal elections and our subsequent July re-organizational meeting. In fact, at last
night’s regular Board meeting (5/18), I made clear to the Board members that such an effort
would be one of our first undertakings of the new fiscal and academic year.

Everyone involved acknowledges that the formula is both well-intended and flawed. Even its
original drafters agree that they did the best they could. but reco gnized their initial attempt would
inevitably cause some challenges. It is time for a review and re-evaluation. To that end. we wil]
be inviting all three town managers, as well as any interested town councilors to take part in a
Joint meeting before the end of the current fiscal year to get started on our review process.

If the review process results in recommendations to realign the cost share formula, we will need
to hold a referendum in our three communities in order to approve those changes. Our goal,
therefore. will be to complete the process and make any such recommendations in time to meet
the deadlines for the November election cycle. Should we need to hold a referendum. we will
rely on our town councilor counterparts for guidance and assistance.

The review process will facilitate still another goal for the Board for next vear. which 1s to
complete our budget creation process in March. Doing so will certainly assist with town



planning. We want to work cooperatively and closely with all three communities, as our goals
and our futures are all mutually intertwined. We recognize the time frame for this year has been
trying for the towns. We were hampered in our ability to prepare a budget this year because of
the process of negotiating a unified contract with the teachers’ union, which was only just
ratified by teachers several days ago and accepted by the Board last night (5/18). The time
crunch was unavoidable, but we do understand the burden it has placed on town-level planning.

Finally, I want to assure you and your colleagues that, having a unified teachers' contract. and
with significantly improved, streamlined accounting practices after three years of painstaking
work to merge three totally separate budgetary entities, we are now finally at the point where the
Board can - and will - discuss the next steps in merging our three educational systems further.
In addition to reviewing the cost share formula, the Board will be identifying priorities and goals
this summer. Ihope we will conduct community workshop-like events in all three towns over
the summer in order to have shared dialogue among our constituents. The focus will be on
developing common understanding and shared vision of the future of the RSU. Our aim will be
to minimize local (tax) impact while still providing top-notch educational opportunities for all
students. To accomplish that, we must work in concert with all three communities.

There is no question that changes are coming over the next year within the RSU. Our ultimate
responsibility and priority is and will always be to keep the needs of the students we serve
foremost in our thinking as we proceed forward. Nonetheless, as representatives of and
taxpayers in our three communities, we are keenly aware of the implications of our decisions!

Like my colleagues, I share your concerns over the truncated timeline and difficult nature of this
year’s budget process. I hope my letter adequately outlines our plans for how to address these
issues next year and tackle some very challenging topics at the same time. We are committed to
working together and invite any interested councilors to Jjoin us when we schedule our initial
review meeting at some point in June. Until then, if I can be of assistance as you work through
your end of our budget process, I would be happy to talk with you. I'know Mr. Smith has
extended the same offer to Ms. Wilson. We want to work together with Veazie, Orono and
Glenburn to build strong relationships between the towns and the schools. In the end, our
students will be the beneficiaries of our hard work and dedication.

Sincerely,

Alison Smith Mitchell
Chair, Board of Directors
Riverside RSU #26
Glenburn-Orono-Veazie
representing Orono

cer Ms. Sophie Wilson. Orono Town Manager
Mr. Doug Smith. RSU 26 Superintendent



172 Main Street

Orono, ME 04473
207-866-4729
amitchell@riversidersu.org
June 10, 2011

Mr. William Reed
Veazie Town Manager
Veazie Town Office
1084 Main Street
Veazie, ME 04401

Dear Mr. Reed,

Following up on my letter of May 19, this letter is an invitation to you and any interested Veazie Town Councilors.
On Tuesday, June 21 at 7 pm in the Orono Town Council chambers, members of the Riverside RSU 26 Finance
Committee and Superintendent Doug Smith will hold an information session about the cost sharing formula used in
creating the RSU 26 budget. We are inviting all three town managers, any interested town councilors from the three
communities, as well as any interested members of the RSU 26 Board of Directors, and community members Leo
Kenney and Gavin Batchelder, who were part of the team that created the formula at the time when the RSU was

being formed.

Mr. Michael O’Connor, CPA, CFO of Prentiss & Carlisle, Glenburn Town Council chairperson, and a drafter of the
cost sharing formula, will make a presentation explaining the origins and underlying assumptions of the cost sharing
formula, and will then walk everyone through the actual process of how the formula is put into use when the RSU
ceeates its budget. The evening is intended to be informational, and to provide an opportunity for those in
attendance to ask questions in order to gain an understanding of how the cost sharing formula came into existence
and how it is applied. The point of the evening will not be to debate or revise the formula at this time; rather, we felt
it was crucial that all parties had a firm understanding of what the formula is and how it was developed as a natural
first step in the RSU’s process of review.

On behalf of the Riverside RSU 26 Board of Directors, | extend this invitation to you and your town councilors.
Please let me or Mr. Smith know who from Veazie will be in attendance so we can be sure to have appropriate
amounts of supporting materials and/or background information available. Thank you very much. [ look forward to
seeing you on June 21 at 7 pm in the Orono Town Council Chambers.

Sincerely,

,X\\,} \} h %( A
Alison Smith Mitchell
Chair, Board of Directors
Riverside RSU #26
Glenburn-Orono-Veazie

ce: Mr. Rod Hathaway, Veazie Town Council chairperson
Mr. Doug Smith, RSU 26 Superintendent



ITEM # b

Memo

To: Veazie Town council

From: Allan R. Thomas

Date: June 15, 2011

Subject: Enforcement issues from Council meeting 6/6/11

Thompson Road issue re: unregistered motor vehicles and unmowed lawn
Main Street issue re: many car parts possible junkyard
Hobson Avenue re: snowmobiles in backyard and unmowed lawn

First the pertinent Ordinances:

From the Existing Structures Code:
ES-301.6 Weeds: All lots shall be maintained free from weeds or plant growth in excess of 10 inches. All noxious
weeds shall be prohibited. Weeds shall be defined as all grasses, annual plants and vegetation other than trees or

shrubs provided, however, this term shall not include flowers and gardens.

From the Veazie Land Use Ordinance:

Automobile Graveyard: A place occupied by two (2) or more unregistered, unserviceable, discarded or junked
motor vehicles, as defined in 29 M.R.S.A. § 1(7), or bodies, engines or other parts thereof sufficient in bulk to equal
two motor vehicles. A yard, field or other screened area where salvaged automobiles or automobile parts are
stored, bought, sold, exchanged, baled, packed, disassembled or handied.

Thompson Road issue re: unregistered motor vehicles and unmowed lawn

At the time that [ checked, last week there was only the one unregistered motor vehicle (which is
allowed) [ spoke with the landowner about the unmowed grass. He responded that his string
trimmer would not start this spring. It is repaired now and the grass will be mowed.

Hobson Avenue re: snowmobiles in backyard and unmowed lawn:

At this time the lawn has been mowed(at feast what I can see from the road). There is no
prohibition on storing snowmobiles outdoor. They are at the back of the home and not
particularly visible from the street.

Main Street issue re: many car parts possible junkyard:

This 1ssue has been ongoing for many years. I have spoken to the gentleman and have sent
enforcement letters. [ have attached a letter from 2009. | usually get some response, but not
enough to make me or the neighbors happy. This is probably a violation as being parts thereof
sutficient in bulk to equal two motor vehicles. Whether there is enough parts for me to he able 1o



convince a judge that there is sufficient bulk to equal two motor vehicles, I don’t know. If you
wish me to pursue the matter at this time. I will gather information and evidence and turn it over
to Tom Russel.

Although I am certified in Rule 80K, I need to concentrate on the tax assessment because I am
way behind due to health issues.



TOWN OF VEAZIE L

1084 Main Street

Veazie, Maine 04401-7091
tel:(207) 947-2781 fax:(207) 942-1654

July 6, 2009

William Drinkwater
1009 MainSt
Veazie, ME 04401-7010

Dear William,

This letter is in response to a complaint about the accumulation of trash and old auto parts on
your property at 1009 Main Street in Veazie, Maine. I have attempted to contact you in person
several times.

It is a violation of the Veazie Land Use Ordinance and the BOCA National Existing Structures
Code to allow accumulations of trash and debris on a property.

The Veazie Land Use Ordinance prohibits junkyards and automobile graveyards within the Town
of Veazie. The Veazie Land Use Ordinance defines junkyards and automobile graveyards as
follows:

Automobile Graveyard: A place occupied by two (2) or more unregistered, unserviceable, discarded or junked
motor vehicles, as defined in 29 M.R.S.A. § 1(7), or bodies, engines or other parts thereof sufficient in bulk to
equal two motor vehicles. A yard, field or other screened area where salvaged automobiles or automobile
parts are stored, bought, sold, exchanged, baled, packed, disassembled or handled.

Junkyard: A field, yard or other area used to store discarded, worn out or junked plumbing, heating supplies,
household appliances and furniture, junked, discarded or scrapped lumber, old or scrap copper, brass, rope,
rags, paper trash, rubber debris, waste, scrap iron and other ferrous or non ferrous material and garbage dumps,
waste dumps and sanitary landfills.

Because you are in violation of the Veazie Land Use Ordinance and have been for a while, This
letter is an order to significantly reduce the automobile parts on your
property by August 1, 2009 and to be in compliance with the Automobile
Graveyard definition by September 1, 2009.

You are also in violation of the junkyard prohibition of the Veazie Land Use Ordinance. This
letter is also an order to dispose of or to otherwise remove from your
property all of the materials that make a junkyard by August 1, 2009

Failure to comply can result in fines from $100 to $2.300 per day for each violation that
continues bevond the previously specitfied dates.



[ have taken a number of pictures from adjoining properties so that it will be possible to
determine whether a significant reduction of automobile parts has taken place.

It you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me during normal business
hours.

Sincerely,

Allan R. Thomas
Tax Assessor/Code Enforcement Officer



ITEM #_1C

R

William Reed <veazietm@aol.com>
Fwd: Jake Brake .

June 7, 2011 2:44:53 PM EDT

"Thomas A. Russell" <tar@frrlegal.com>
rod hathaway <rod @ mainetrailer.com>

]

Tom

What is your opinion on Jake Brake ordinances - the Town Council had a request the other night for us to enact one. Have you had
any experience in this matter before. Are they enforceable? Staff thought it wise to ask you before we start to develop one for State
Street here in Veazie.

Thank you

William Reed

Bill- I found this while researching the jake brake ordinance. I have sent out an email requesting electronic copies and will
forward those to you when I receive them but in reading this they are pretty much unenforceable and I realize that Thebarge
said they would just have the State put up a sign but if you read this they will not put up a sign unless something has
changed.

Let me know your thoughts before I put too much more time into this.

Mark

Maine Local Roads Center




TRAFFIC ISSUES
Jake Brakes

MMA's "Maine Townsman" article-Nov. 2008
JAKE BRAKE ADVISORY

For several years, and for several reasons. weve advised against the adoption of Jake Brake or engine
braking ordinances as a means of controlling truck engine noise (see Jake Brake Ordinances. Maine
Townsman, Legal Notes. October 2000). Now we learn, courtesy of the MaineDOTs Maine Local Roads
Center, that engine braking ordinances may actually be pre-empted by federal law.

The Noise Control Act of 1972 (now coditied at 42 U.S.C. § 4917) authorizes the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) to promulgate uniform national noise emission regulations for motor carriers engaged in
nterstate commerce. The federal statute expressly prohibits the states and their political subdivisions
(including municipalities) from adopting or enforcing noise standards applicable to any motor carrier
engaged in interstate commerce unless the standards are identical to the federal standards (see §
4917[c][1]). (The current version of the EPAs regulations is codified at 40 C.F.R. § 202.20.) Therefore.
unless the noise standards in an engine braking ordinance are identical to the tederal standards. the
ordinance is unenforceable as applied to motor carriers engaged in interstate commerce.

As weve advised all along, engine braking ordinances can be difficult to enforce and may not get at the real
problem. which is often a modified or defective exhaust system (which is already against State law. 29-A
M.R.S.A. § 1912). The federal preemption of these ordinances as applied to motor carriers engaged in
interstate commerce may be one more good reason to reject them.

Thanks to the Maine Local Roads Center (and its Vermont counterpart) for bringing this issue to our
attention. (By R.P.F.)

N B

LoSh ba ey o and can a tons s contol tie track vneine poise?

PO T PUNONE S
iy o Qahe bk

. - SO | e ~ 7
fo s oniron the nogsy )

Cin e real oroblom )

vy

6.

I. What they are and can a town control the truck engine noise? Many towns around Maine have started
erecting No Jake Brake signs (or something similar) in hopes of controlling the engine noise from
downshifting trucks Many residents are conscious of the noise and want the town to do something about
the noise. Depending on vour town and the cooperation of truckers. the results may be positive or they may
be negligible.

2. What is a Jake Brake? "Jake Brake®" is a registered trademark of Jacobs Vehicle SystemsTM. The term
Jake Brake is sometimes incorrectly used to refer to compression release type engine brakes in general. The
term correctly refers to all of Jacobs Vehicle Systems retarding products. including their line of Exhaust



Brakes and Driveline Brakes. as well as Jacobs Engine Brakes. The Jacobs Engine Brake is a device that
mounts on the engine overhead. The principle behind the Jacobs Engine BrakeTM engine retarder is simple.
It changes the action of the exhaust valves, turning the engine into a giant air compressor. It makes a
distinctive sound while in operation, and converts a power-producing diesel engine into a power-absorbing
retarding mechanism. It is typically used on class 7 and 8 vehicles and can be activated or deactivated at the
flip of a switch or foot on the pedal Further details can be seen on the companys website:

sow s jabebrake.com

When operating, it produces a distinctive staccato sound. When used on a vehicle with a poorly muftled or
un-mutftled exhaust (straight pipes for example), the sound can be quite loud.. which is what citizens will
complain about. According to the Jacobs Company. the real problem here is the illegally modified or
defective exhaust systems.

The signs around Maine are probably unfairly using the company trademark. because they are brand-
spectfic. The term "Jake Brake" also refers to the companys nearly silent exhaust brakes and driveline
brakes. so these signs don't make sense for all Jake Brakes.. and don't target the root problem of illegal
exhaust systems Therefore. any sign or ordinance should avoid use of the term jake brake.

3. What are the benetits of using a jake brake?
A jake brake can provide:

Faster, steadier, more efficient braking performance.
Reduced wear on engine, tires, and service brakes.
Lower vehicle maintenance costs.

Less vehicle downtime.

Enhanced driver confidence.

® & o o o

4. Can our town pass an ordinance to control the noise? First of all, erecting a sign or two without an
ordinance has no legal authority As with any regulatory traffic issue, a traffic ordinance must be in place to
enforce the actual signs, or the sign is advisory only. Enacting a traffic ordinance to deal with jake brakes
under 30-A § 3009 may seem like a kind and responsive reaction to engine noise. but is safety of the public
being compromised?? Engine brakes are very eftective at reducing the speed of heavy trucks on a
downgrade. but what if the trucker had to stop quickly for a child or elderly person or an entering vehicle.
and only use his regular brakes?? In most cases, the stopping distance will be longer without the engine
braking system and this could lead to disaster at the bottom of the hill.

At best. the success of an ordinance will probably be voluntary compliance from truckers Some truckers
may be sensitive to their truck noise and will try to reduce the noise, while others may intentionally try to
make it worse. especially if a squeaky wheel citizen is emphatic about the noise problem. It a town passes a
specific "jake brake ordinance”. is the No Jake Brake sign or Quiet Zone sign a black lettering-on-white
regulatory type sign.... or is it (wrongly) on a black-on-yellow warning sign?? If the local police get into
the action of enforcement. are they going to check the actual engine braking svstem installed on each truck.
or have a decibel meter to measure the noise level? What if the trucker says he had to stop quickly for a
pedestrian? Or the car in {front of him stopped quickly?

3. What is the real problem?



The federal government has required all vehicles manufactured since 1978 to meet noise requirements when
delivered to the customer. Today. trucks are required to emit less than 80 dBa of noise when they drive by,
as measured at 50 feet. So trucks have been required to meet noise requirements when they leave the
dealership as new vehicles for quite some time. In many noisy truck areas. the real problem is modified or
defective exhaust systems. There is a good chance that the noisy trucks are running with straight stacks or
gutted mufflers. Some are poorly maintained vehicles. while others have drivers who simply enjoy making
noise. [n any case. the use of the engine brake may not be the problem. The real problem in this noise issue
is the illegal exhaust systems in many trucks At other times, it may be the engine braking system. which is
being used by the driver who has not tried to slow down in advance of a hill or traffic signal

The regulations on vehicle noise relating to engine/muftler systems need to be enforced Otherwise, atown
would be fining for using engine brakes (sometimes being used justifiably) and not fining for the illegal
muttler system

6. What can a town do?

Most states. including Maine. already have a law on the books that prohibits operating a motor vehicle on a
public highway without a serviceable muftler (MRSA 29-A§ 1912). The real noise offenders. those with
straight stacks or gutted muttlers. are operating in violation of this law. Have your local police stop noisy
vehicles and check them for muftler integrity. Cite those that are not in compliance. This is a fairly casy
step that should produce a noticeable improvement in the quality of life of your community.

It the town decides to enact a traffic ordinance under 30-A § 3009, it probably is best to hope for voluntary
compliance, but who will do the enforcement? Another ordinance without enforcement possibilities is
relatively useless Be sure to use the black-on-white signs and try to avoid the term jake brake. maybe use
quiet zone ahead. or reduce engine noise ahead.

[t a town does not adopt an ordinance and simply puts up a sign or two, the signs have no legal authority or
enforceability.

7. The MDOT response

The MDOT will not erect these signs on state roads The only way that a sign will appear is if a town
officially adopts an ordinance and erects the signs themselves Then the town will be responsible for
enforcement, sign maintenance. or any lability issues

Reviewed and edited by MMA Legal Division (October, 2000)

Mark Leonard Chief of Police
Veazie Police Department
1084 Mairy Street

Veagie, Maine 04401
207-947-2358
sdeonard@veagiepd net






11

Veazie RE Account 346 Detail ‘ ~ UB/15]
3129 PM as of 06/15/2011 ETE &ﬁ # 7[( Page 1
Name: Johnstone, Tracy Land: 25,400
Building: 72,600
Location: 5 Veazie St. Exempt 0
Acreage: 0.37 Map/Lot: 07 46 Total: 98,000
Book Page: B10670P187
Refi: B10670P187
2010-1 Period Due: Mailing
1) 1,933.56 Address: 5 Veazie St
Veazie ME 04401-7050
Year Date Reference P C Principal Interest Costs Total
2010-1 R 1,842.40 91.16 0.00 1,933.56
2009-1L * 1,862.00 286.03 34.54 2,182.57
2008-1 L * 1,862.00 519.67 17.08 2,398.75
2007-1 R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2006-1 R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2005-1 R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2004-1 R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2003-1S 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2002-1 R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2001-1R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2000-1 R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1999-1 R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1998-1 R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Account Totals as of 06/15/2011 5,566.40 896.86 51.62 6,514.88

Note: Payments will be reflected as positive

Per Diem
2010-1 0.3533
2009-1 0.4591
2008-1 0.5101
Total 1.3226

values and charges to the account will be
represented as negative values.



Veazie RE Account 945 Detail 06/15/2011
3:30 PM as of 06/15/2011 Page 1
Name: Brown, Sarah PIP Land: 0
Building: 17,100
Location: 1490 State St trir 21 Exempt 9,500
Acreage: 0 Map/Lot: 10 06 21 Total: 7,600
Book Page:
Refl: 70 12X60 Unknown
2010-1 Period Due: Mailing 1490 State St trir 21
1) 149.95 Address: Veazie ME 04401-8500
Year Date Reference P C Principal Interest Costs Total
2010-1R 142.88 7.07 0.00 149.95
2009-1L * 334.40 51.37 34.54 420.31
2008-1L * 342.00 90.80 17.08 449.88
2007-1L * 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2006-1L * 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2005-1L * 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2004-1R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2003-1S 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2002-1 R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2001-1R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Account Totals as of 06/15/2011 819.28 149.24 51.62 1,020.14
Per Diem Exempt Codes: 10 - Homestead
2010-1 0.0274
2009-1 0.0825
2008-1 . 0.0%37 Note: Payments will be reflected as positive
Total 0.2036 values and charges to the account will be

represented as negative values.



ITEM # <a

FARRELL, ROSENBLATT & RUSSELL

ATTORNEYS AT LAW
61 MAIN STREET
P.0. BOX 738
BANGOR, MAINE 04402-0738

ANGELA M FARRELL
NATHANIEL ML ROSENBLATT

THOMAS A RUSKELL TELEPHONE (207) 990-33 14
JON A HADDOW TELECOPIER (207 941-0239
GREGORY P.DORR e-mail: tar a frrlegal.com

ROGER L. HEBER

MEMORANDUM

Date: June 9, 2011

To: William Reed

From: Tom Russell

Re: Sewer Assessment to Town ot Veazie

You have asked me to research the issue of whether the Veazie Sewer District has the
legal authority to make an assessment against the Town of Veazie, purportedly pursuant to the
provisions of Section ['1 of Chapter 14 of the Private and Special Laws of 1951, which Chapter
created the District and 1s commonly referred to as the “Charter™ of the District.

I have obtained and reviewed materials from the Maine State Law and Legislative
Reference Library concerning the Private and Special Laws adopted by the Maine Legislature
related to the Veazie Sewer District.

The Veazie Sewer District was created by Chapter 114 of the 1951 Private and Special
Laws of Maine. It is a separate legal entity. The District was created tor the purposes of taking
over, controlling and managing the sewer owned by the Town of Veazie, extending. increasing.
enlarging and improving the sewers and drains. and generally to provide a system of sanitary
sewage and stormwater drainage for public purposes. The District was granted the authority to
acquire and hold property (including the right of eminent domain) and to lay pipes and build and
maintain a sewer collection and treatment system.

The District 1s governed by a three member Board of Trustees, each serving a staggered
three year term. The Trustees are to be elected by the inhabitants of the District. If there is a
vacancy on the Board. the municipal ofticers of the Town of Veazie are to appoint a replacement
to serve the remainder of the unexpired term tor that vacant position.

Section 8 of Chapter 114 authorized the District to borrow money and to issue bonds and
notes up to a total amount of $30.000 outstanding at any one time. Section 9 ot Chapter 114
directed the Trustees to establish a sinking fund for any bonds or notes payable that are made to
run for a period of vears. Section 9 also called for the establishment of a sinking fund to pay off
any bonds or notes that are made to run tor a period of vears. and provides that not less than 3'4
%% of the total principal amount of such bonds or notes issued shall be paid annually into the
fund.



Section 10 of Chapter 114 provided that with respect to the manner of constructing drains
and sewers. the assessment of abutting owners for the cost of the same and the collection of
assessments. and all other matters referred to in the following sections of the 1944 statute, the
Trustees of the District shall be governed by the provisions of Section 136 and 137 of Chapter 84
of the revised statutes of 1944 and any amendments thereto. Section 136 of said Chapter 84
provided that once a public drain or common sewer has been constructed. the Trustees shall
estimate and assess against owners of lots or parcels that are benefited by such drain or sewer a
sum that they determine to be just and equitable to defray the expenses of construction. The total
assessments cannot exceed one-halt of the cost of the drain or sewer. These assessments are
commonly referred as “betterment assessments.” as opposed to user fees or assessments. Section
137 created a mechanism for persons to challenge the assessments made pursuant to Section 136.
The referenced sections of the 1944 statute made no mention of the assessment of user fees.

Section 11 ot Chapter 114 provided that the Trustees shall determine: (1) what sum is
required each year for sinking fund payments (or other debt payments) and interest payments and
(2) what sum 1s required each year “to meet other necessary expenses in the district™. After the
application of all funds received from the assessments levied pursuant to Section 10 to the
combined amounts determined above, the Trustees shall issue a Warrant to the assessor of the
Town of Veazie. The assessor is required to assess the total sum so determined by the Trustees
upon the taxable property within the District and to commit the same to the tax collector of the
Town.

The Library provided me with copies of eight Private and Special Laws that amended the
original Charter of the District. Most of the Private and Special Laws that were enacted dealt
with increasing the debt limit for the District. However, Chapter 101 of the 1987 Private and
Special Laws enacted new Sections 16 and 17 for the Charter. Section 16 provides as follows:

“Sec. 16 Rates. All persons and all corporations. private, public and municipal.
shall pay to the treasurer of the district rates established by the board of trustees tor the
services used or available to them, which rates shall be unitorm within the district and.
notwithstanding any other provision of this Act. may include rates for the district’s
readiness to serve charged against owners of land abutting on or accessible to sewers or
drains of the district. but not actually connected to them and shall be so established as to
provide revenue for the following purposes:

I Current expenses. To pay the current expenses for operating and maintaining
the sewerage system:

2. Interest. To provide for the payment of the interest on the indebtedness of the
district: and
3. Sinking fund. To provide each year a sum. in the amount prescribed by

section 9. which sum shall be paid into any sinking fund established pursuant
to section 9.7



Section 16 authorizes the District to establish rates for sewer services used by. or
available to. all persons and all corporations located within the District. Section 16 provides that
all the rates shall be so established as to provide revenue for™ the purposes set forth above. The
enumerated purposes set forth in Section 16 are virtually the same as the purposes of the
assessment to the assessor of the Town of Veazie under Section 11 of the original Charter.
However. although Section 16(3) makes reference to the sinking fund provisions in Section 9 of
the original Charter, Section 16 makes no reference to Section 11 of the original Charter, and did
not expressly repeal Section 11. The Library provided me with the documentation available
concerning the legislative history of Chapter 101, but there was nothing in the legislative history
concerning the relationship between the original Section 11 and the new Section 16 of the
Charter. The original bill. L.D. 2516, stated in its preamble that certain provisions of the Charter
of the District "are inadequate for the district to properly carry out is functions,” and that this
prevents the District “from effectively administering the business of the district. including the
collection of unpaid rates.” The Statement of Fact for L.D. 2516 provided that the purpose of the
bill was “to clarify the authority of the district to set rates to cover the expenses of the district
and to impose liens tor nonpayment of those rates.” The Statement of Fact also provided that the
collection procedure in the bill was the same procedure used by sanitary districts under Title 38
M.R.S. § 1208.

Even though Section 11 of the original Charter was not expressly repealed by the
legislature upon the enactment of Chapter 101 in 1988, I believe that an argument can be made
that Section 11 was repealed under the doctrine of “repeal by implication.™

The Supreme Judicial Court of Maine has held on a number of occasions that when a
later enactment encompasses the entire subject matter of an earlier enactment. the earlier
enactment is considered to be repealed by implication. The implied repeal of an earlier
enactment by a later enactment is grounded ~in the reasonable inference that the legislative body
could not have intended that there should be two distinct enactments on the same subject matter
in force at the same time. and that the newer enactment, being the most recent expression of
legislative will. must be deemed a substitute for the previous enactment.” Lewiston Firefichters
Assoctation v. City of Lewiston, 354 A.2d 154 (Me. 1976), quoting Knight v. Aroostook
Railroad. 67 Me 291 (1877).

It you compare Section 11 of the original Charter with Section 16 added to the Charter in
1988, the District has the following authority to collect taxes or rates for the following matters.

Section 11 Section 16
(taxes) (rates)
Sum required for sinking fund payvments Sum required for sinking fund
Sum required for interest on serial bonds Sum required for payment of interest on

the indebtedness of the district

Sum required to meet other necessary expenses Sum required to pay the current expense
in the district for operating and maintaining the sewer
system

%



In my opinion, those two provisions are virtually the same. Section 16 provides that the
rates established by the board of trustees “shall be so established as to provide revenue tor the
following purposes™ (which are set forth above under the Section 16 heading). Section 16 does
not provide that the rates are to be established for a portion of the revenue needed for those
purposes. Although the Chapter 101 amendments do not mention Section 11 of the original
Charter. and the legislative history does not suggest it was considered by the Public Utilities
Committee of the Legislature. 1 believe an argument can be made that the Legislature did not
intend that the District should have two separate and distinct mechanisms for raising revenue to
finance the District’s operations including the payment of its debts, with the absolute discretion
to pick and choose how much ot its annual budget should be allocated between “taxes™ and
~rates.” In addition. Section 11 provides that the taxes must be assessed upon the taxable estates
within said district. Since the description of the District in Chapter 114 does not include the
entire Town. it is not appropriate to merely add the assessment to the amount to be raised by
veneral taxes, and affectively include it in the general mill rate applied to the entire Town.

The Town of Veazie, however, cannot merely resort to selt-help and refuse to pay the
assessment. Section 11 of Chapter 114 provides that the warrant issued by the Trustees of the
District is to the assessor. and the assessor is required by law to assess the specified amount upon
the taxable estates within the District. Furthermore, Section 11 also provides that the Treasurer of
the Town must pay the District the tax assessed before December 3 ™ of each year. and if the
taxes are not paid to the District, the Treasurer of the District may issue a warrant to the sherift
for the amount unpaid and the sherift is to levy by distress and sale any real and personal
property of any of the inhabitants of the District.

If the Town decides to challenge the District’s authority under Section 11. the Town
would need to bring a declaratory judgment action in Superior Court seeking the Court’s
interpretation of the Charter, as amended by Chapter 101. and seeking a declaration by the Court
that the Section 11 tax assessment language was repealed by implication. The decision of the
Superior Court could then be appealed to Supreme Judicial Court of Maine by the nonprevailing
party. Although I think there is a good argument that Section 11 was repealed by implication
upon the enactiment of Section 16. I cannot predict how the Court would decide the issue. The
Supreme Judicial Court of Maine has held that in the absence of an express fegislative itent to
repeal a prior statute. it is reluctant to find that the enactment of a new statute acts to repeal an
carlier statute. However. it has applied the “repealed by implication™ doctrine when a later
enactment encompasses the entire subject matter of an earlier act, or when a later statute is
inconsistent with or repugnant to an earlier statute.

Another option would be to seck an amendment to the District’s Charter via the State
Legislature. This would require that a legislator submit a bill on the Town's behalf to amend the
Veazie Sewer District’s Charter to delete Section 11 therefrom. In the alternative. the Charter
could be amended to specify how the “taxes™ and the “rates™ should be calculated. since they
cover the same expenses of the District. For example. the $160.000 assessment for the Town
dated March 9. 2011. and the accompanying letter. contained no explanation of how that amount
was determined and the basis for 1t

It vou have any questions or comments, please contact me.

4



TEM #_0_|

FARRELL, ROSENBLATT & RUSSELL
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
61 MAIN STREET
P.0. BOX 738
BANGOR, MAINE 04402-0738

ANGELA M FARRELL

NATHANIEL M. ROSENBLATT

THOMAS A RUSSELL TELEPHONE (207) 990-33 {4
JON A HADDOW FELECOPIER (207) 941-0239
GREGORY . DORR e-mail: tar a frelfegal.com

ROGER L. HUBER

June 8. 2011

To: Bill Reed
From: Tom Russell
Issue: Whether an employee of the Veazie Sewer District may serve on the Town Council?

In order to hold a municipal office. Title 30-A M.R.S. §2526(3) provides that a person
must reside in the State of Maine. must be at least 18 years of age. and must be a citizen of the
United States. In addition, in order to be a municipal officer (a term which includes town
councilors), a person must be a registered voter in the municipality in which the person is
seeking that office. Section 00.02.02 of the Town Charter provides that a councilor must be a
qualified voter of the Town of Veazie. and must reside in Veazie during the councilor’s term of
office. There are a few statutory disqualifications from holding a municipal office (for example,
30-A ML.R.S. §2691(2)(B) provides that neither a municipal officer nor a spouse of a municipal
officer may serve on the Board of Appeals). but [ am not aware of any statutory disqualification
relevant to this issue.

Section 7 of the Veazie Sewer District Charter (Chapter 114 of the Private and Special
laws of 1951) provides that “no trustee shall be a member of the board of selectmen™. Since the
Board of Selectmen was replaced by the Town Council upon the eftective date of the Town
Charter, I believe that provision now means that no trustee shall be a member ot the Town
Council. It is my understanding that the candidate at issue is an employee of the District. but is
not a trustee of the district. Section 7 does not preclude an employee of the District from serving
on the Town Council.

In addition. the Town of Veazie and the Veazie Sewer District are two separate legal
entities. and the District is not a subordinate body ot the Town Council. The Town Council is
not officially involved in the District’s annual assessment to the Town. as it is directed to and
implemented by the assessor in accordance with Section 11 of the District’s Charter. The only
time the Town Council becomes officially involved with the District s when there 1s a trustee
vacaney. as Section 7 of the District’s Charter provides that the municipal ofticers are to appoint
a replacement trustee for the unexpired portion of the term of the vacant office. It the District
employee is elected to the Town Council and the occasion arises for the Town Council to fill a
trustee vacancy. the District emplovee may have a contlict of interest on that matter (especially if



the employee would essentially be appointing the employee’s boss). but that can be addressed by
the emiployee’s recusal from participating in that appointment.

In general. however. I do not see a contlict of interest under the statutory provisions
dealing with contlicts of interest tor municipal ofticials (30-A M.R.S. §2602). the primary
contlict thereunder being a direct or indirect pecuniary interest in a matter before the Town
Council. In conclusion, I do not believe that the District emplovee is disqualitied from holding a
counctlor position on the Town Council.



o

N

<

SNO e jeL.







Y

e

1111} t 1m y'

[ tm‘ﬂﬁ










Maine
Community

Foundation =

June 3, 2011

William Reed, Town Manager
Town of Veazie

1084 Main St.

Veazie, ME 04401

Dear Mr. Reed:

Thank you for your recent request for funding from the Penobscot County Committee of
the Maine Community Foundation. We appreciate the opportunity to review your
proposal to prepare for a town-wide bond referendum on the renovation ot the Veazie
Community Center. While we understand the importance of your efforts, the Maine
Community Foundation must regretfully decline your request.

As you can imagine, the Committee receives far more requests for assistance than can be
accommodated with limited funds. We had to make some ditficult choices among the
proposals.

We wish you every success and hope you will be able to secure the funding you need for

your endeavors. We encourage you to contact us it you would like to discuss other ideas
for projects that meet our grantmaking priorities.

Sincerety,

Grants Administrator



N N

 TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM

DRAFT

BACTS LONG RANGE
TRANSPORTATION PLAN
2011-2035

[Iraft approved by the BACTS Palicy Committee on
Final approved by the BACTS Policy Committee on

PRS2 4



Table of Contents

Executive Summary

LO- INtroduCtion.......oocooococoiiiiiiii l

2.0 DemOgraphics ..........cccooiomiiicie 5

3.0 Mission Statement, Goals and Policy Issues........cooooroioco 10
4.0 Public Transportation.........cooo.cccccceerecomnosoeooo 14
3.0 Highway Transportation............................... 22
6.0 Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation..........................__ 35
7.0 Air Transportation. ... 40
8.0 Rail Transportation .........co.cccooococccreveomioomoooo 44
9.0 Marine Transportation ................cooceeccommvcovmooooo 47
10.0 Financial ISSUeS ...........coooccovoovveeeceirssvioi 52
11.0 Climate Change, Livability, Sustainability and Transportation Operations......55
12.0 Recommendations and SUALEGIES ..o 60

Appendices

Appendix A: BACTS LRP Public Participation Schedule and Public Comments
Appendix B: BACTS Highway Classification, Volumes, and TIP Projects
Appendix C: Acronyms

Appendix D Deflnitions






Executive Summary

Introduction

The Bangor Area Comprehensive Transportation System (BACTS) was designated in
1982 as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) responsible for coordinated
transportation planning in the urbanized areas of the greater Bangor area.

The municipalities currently served by BACTS are Bangor, Brewer, Veazie, Indian
Island and portions of Hampden, Orono, Old Town, Milford, Bradley, Eddington, and
Orrington. Approximately 59,000 people live in the BACTS metropolitan area, making it
the third largest urban center in the State of Maine.

The greater Bangor area is a major service center and commercial hub for Maine and the
maritime provinces of Canada. Bangor International Airport (BGR) serves as an
international gateway, refueling stop, and alternate landing area for many commercial
and military flights, including the space shuttle. The main campus of the University of
Maine, located in Orono, enriches the surrounding communities by providing quality
academic programs and numerous cultural and sporting events.

This document contains the region’s goals, policies, existing conditions, existing and
future deficiencies, and recommendations. The plan also serves as a preliminary tool for
transportation planning in the greater Bangor area. The planning process utilized to
develop this document follows the general guidelines and procedures of the federal “Safe,
Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users”,
(SAFETEA-LU) legislation and the Maine Sensible Transportation Policy Act (MSTPA).

(Goals:

This plan was developed using the eight metropolitan planning factors outlined in
SAFETEA-LU listed below:

I. Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling

global competitiveness, productivity and efficiency:

Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized

users;

[ncrease the security of the transportation system for motorized and non-

motorized users:;

+. Increase the accessibility and mobility of people and for frei ght.

Protect and enhance the cnvironment, promote energy conservation, improve

quality of life, and promote consistency between transportation improvements and

State and local planned growth and economic development patterns.

6. Enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and
between modes, for people and freight.

7. Promote efficient system management and operation.

3. Emphasize the preservation of the =xisting ransportation svstem.

!\J

Lad

[P



The BACTS Policy Committee developed a mission statement and six regional goals
listed below:

Mission Statement: Provide for the safe, economical, efficient, and convenient
movement of people and goods over a balanced multimodal transportation system
compatible with the socio-economic and environmental characteristics of the region.

BACTS Regional Goals: Below are six transportation goals created by BACTS followed
by supportive regional priorities as adopted by the BACTS Policy Committee. The goals
are listed in no particular order of importance.

1. Fiscal Responsibility - Planning and programming within our means, focusing on
the greatest needs and getting the greatest returns by targeting regional needs,
leveraging partnerships, and sharing investment burdens appropriately.

Economic Prosperity and Livability — Promote transportation investments that
support sustainable community and economic development.

3]

3. Safety and Security — Ensure that BACTS has an ongoing process to improve the
safety and security of our transportation system in the BACTS area.

4. Public-Private Partnership and Coordination - Local, state and federal
stakeholders should be involved in partnerships to promote cost-effective
decision-making: land use and transportation connections, coordinated capital

investments, and joint purchasing, etc.

5. Environmental Stewardship - Fnsure that the transportation system meets the
social, cultural, historic, scenic and environmental needs of the public.

6. Customer Oriented Focus - Inclusive, balanced, early and effective public
involvement that considers not only if projects should be done, but how.

Demographics

Fmployment and population in the BACTS region is expected to grow very stowly.
“Towever. most of the increase in population will be svithin the MSA ouiside the BACTS
municipalities, and most of the increase in employment will be within BACTS
municipalities. This imbalance will accentuate the current trend of increasing numbers
of vehicular trips originating outside the urban area. This trend will have the most impact
on radial routes serving the urban area.

Mhe very low level of expected growth is not likely to cause any significant svstemic
congestion problems, Localized iraffic impacts resulting from individual commercial



developments will exceed any additional traffic generated by forecasted population and
employment growth over the next 20 years.

The out-migration of the population from the urban areas into their surrounding suburbs
is a pattern that has been repeated all over the nation. Though in each urban area there
may be particular reasons for the phenomenon, it reflects a widespread desire for a more
rural lifestyle, without discarding the benefits of urban opportunities.

However, in the period 2000 through 2010, the US Census indicates a different trend.
The population in the entire MSA increased by 10,748, while the population in the urban
towns and cities increased by 4,946. Several individual municipalities within the MSA
more distant from the Bangor urbanized area lost population, while all individual
municipalities located close to the urban core gained population, including most of the
municipalities within the urbanized area. The overall effect was to concentrate
population more strongly in and immediately around the urban area.

The 2030 forecasts of population in the individual municipalities show the trend of the
first decade of the 21™ Century continuing with net increases in population in both the
urban and rural areas. However, the rate of increase is expected to be much smaller.

Transit

The fixed route transit in the BACTS area is provided by BAT Community Connector
which is operated by the City of Bangor. BAT provides service to Bangor, Brewer,
Hampden, Old Town, Orono, the University of Maine (Orono) and Veazie. The system
operates approximately 588,400 vehicle miles per year and covers 104 miles of roadway

The basic hours of operation are 6:15 a.m. to 6:15 p.m. Bus service runs six days per
week (Monday through Saturday) in all areas, except Hampden, where service is
available five days per week (Monday through Friday). BAT operates a “pulse system”
designed to facilitate the transfer of riders on one route to another. A pulse system
requires buses from all routes operating out of Pickering Square in downtown Bangor to
meet at Pickering Square at the same time, so those passengers transferring from route to
route do not have to wait too long to board the connecting bus.

Ridership on the BAT has increased substantially since BACTS commissioned a Transir
Route Redesign Study in the BACTS Area by Tom Crikelair Associates in 2002. Several
changes in routes were made, the fare structure was revised, new schedules designed, and
1 revamped vehicle livery was adopted as a result. The improvements along with volatile
zas prices caused ridership to increase on the BAT approximately 50 percent in six years
irom nearly 600.000 rides in 2004 to nearly 900,000 rides in 2010.

Hishway Network




The highway network is the largest and most developed transportation system in the
BACTS area. The overwhelming majority of people and goods are transported over the
region's 179 miles of collector and arterial roadways.

Since 2004, there has been no new alignment construction using federal or state funding
in the BACTS region. There is only one new potential construction project known at this
time; the connection of Route 9 to [-395 through a corridor across Brewer, Holden and
Eddington. The recently completed 1-95 Study recommended future study of impacts for

new ramps and interchanges.

The majority of arterials with an increase in traffic volumes have been on those coming
into the urban core from the suburban areas such as Union Street and Route 2 in Bangor,
Western Avenue in Hampden and in the retail areas such as Stillwater Avenue.

The BACTS area has 135 traffic signals in operation, as of December 2010, 29 of which
were flashing-light only. The vast majority of the signals are actuated by vehicles
approaching the intersection, although a few timed-cycle signals are still in operation.

According to the 2006-2008 MaineDOT Crash Report, there were 89 high-crash locations
on roads in seven of ten BACTS municipalities: 57 in Bangor, 12 in Brewer, 5 in Old
Town, 11 in Orono, 2 in Hampden, and 1 in Eddington and 1 in Orrington. These figures
may include local roads and rural areas of the municipalities, which are not part of the

BACTS highway inventory.

Bicvcle/Pedestrian

U.S. Census 2000 data indicated that on average, 6 percent of all residents in the BACTS
region either bicycled or walked to work, compared to 7 percent in 1990.

Within BACTS, Orono had the highest percentage of human-powered commuters in 2000
at 24 percent. Orono, in fact, has the second highest percentage in the whole state of
Maine, next to Bar Harbor. Between 5 percent and 10 percent of residents from the
Penobscot Indian Nation, Old Town, and Bangor either walked or bicycled to work,
while the remaining BACTS communities reported less than 5 percent using non-
motorized transportation modes.

The BACTS 2005 Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan included an analysis of crash report data
rom 1994 to 1999 to better determine the circumstances swrrounding bicycle and
pedestrian crashes in the BACTS area. For that time period, there were 129 reported
highway crashes involving pedestrians and 95 crashes involving bicycles in greater
3angor. According to MaineDOT, there were 101 bicycle related crashes including |
fatality and 168 pedestrian related crashes including 12 fatalitics in Penobscot County

hetween 2004 and 2009,



In the BACTS region, commercial passenger service is available through Bangor
International Airport (BGR), while general aviation service is available at both BGR and
DeWitt Field in Old Town. BGR flew 388,681 passengers (enplanements/ deplanements)

in 2009.

Rail Transportation.:

Two rail systems, Pan AM and Montreal, Maine, and Atlantic (MMA), operate in the
BACTS areas and provide freight rail connections to Canada and the remainder of the

United States.

Total tonnage of goods hauled by Maine’s railroads continues to decline, as is the case
nationally.

There are no passenger rail facilities located in or serving the BACTS area.

Marine Transportation

The importance of the River to the economy of the region has declined significantly in
recent years as the movement of fuel, raw materials and products have moved away from
Maine’s coast and inland rivers to trucks, rail lines, and pipelines. There is no passenger
marine service and minimal commercial marine transportation in the corridor other than
occasional asphalt and petroleum barge shipments. However, new manufacturing
opportunities have arisen in Brewer that may return the Penobscot River to its status as a
vital transportation asset linking eastern Maine communities to world markets.

Financial Issues:

MaineDOT’s long range plan, “Connecting Maine: Maine's Long Range Transportation
Plan” states, “Construction-cost inflation and significant increases in energy costs have
also reduced the purchasing power of the motor-fuels tax. The cost of construction
materials has significantly outpaced the rate of consumer inflation, due fo increased
asphalt and fuel costs plus worldwide demand for construction materials.” MaineDOT’s
long range plan goes on to say “As alternative fuels and more efficient vehicles come into
greater use, motor-fuel tax revenues will be a less viable option to support transportation
improvements. While these changes create cost savings for motorists and benefit the
cnvironment by reducing greenhouse gas emissions, they also create reduced revenues

aeeded for transportation financing.”

The amount of funding allocated by MaineDOT to BACTS over the past eight years is
sbout 35 percent of the amount for projects submitted by the municipalities for
consideration. The municipal list of essential projects would be much greater if more
funding were available. The municipalities submit only those projects that are most in
seed of repair and that have a chance of rating high enough for possible selection for
funding. Projects that wo unfunded =zither: 1) continue io deteriorate further. resulting in
~ven higher reconstruction costs: or 2} force municipalities o pay 100 percent of



reconstruction costs instead of typical local match amounts (0 to 15 percent) needed for
state and federally funded projects.

Climate Change, Livability, Sustainability and Transportation Operations

There will be a strong trend in Maine toward warmer and generally wetter conditions in
all four seasons over the 2lst century with the exception of summer precipitation.
Projected increases in both temperature and precipitation tend to be greatest in the north,
and least along the coast. These warming trends imply a significant shift in the regional
hydrology, from a snowmelt-dominated regime to one that shows significant runoff
during winter. This shift, coupled with projected precipitation increases in winter, will
likely pose challenges for flood mitigation.

Livability is about tying the quality and location of transportation facilities to broader
opportunities such as access to good jobs, affordable housing, quality schools, and safe
streets. Sustainable transportation provides exceptional mobility and access to meet
development needs without compromising the quality of life of future generations.
Livability and Sustainability can be addressed together since a strategy for pursuing one
will often be appropriate for the other.

BACTS promotes the development of transportation options that support Livability and
Sustainability by including non-automobile modes in its evaluation of potential highway
projects for the BACTS Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). Through the TIP
project evaluation criteria and project scoring, projects that support alternative modes and
their integration into the transportation system, score higher and so are more likely to be

funded.

BACTS has developed some transportation system management and operations strategies
in the planning process designed to optimize the performance of the transportation
system. They allow for a more immediate response to traveler concerns than capacity
projects offer while improving the reliability, security, and safety of the multimodal

transportation system.



1.0 Introduction

1.1 Statement of Purpose

The Bangor Area Comprehensive Transportation System (BACTS) was designated in
1982 as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) responsible for coordinated
transportation planning in the urbanized area surrounding Bangor. The municipalities
currently served by BACTS include Bangor, Brewer, Veazie, Indian Island and portions
of Hampden, Orono, Old Town, Milford, Bradley, Eddington, and Orrington.
Approximately 59,000 people live in the BACTS metropolitan area, making it the third
largest urban center in the state of Maine. The flagship campus of the University of
Maine in Orono (UMO) enriches the surrounding communities by providing quality
academic programs and numerous cultural and sporting events. Greater Bangor also
serves as a major business and commercial hub for Maine and the maritime provinces of
Canada. Bangor International Airport (BGR) serves as an international gateway,
refueling stop, and alternate landing area for many commercial and military flights,
including the space shuttle. The geographic boundaries of the MPO are shown in Figure

1 below.

The Policy Committee governs BACTS. This committee is comprised of sixteen
municipal officials, a Maine Department of Transportation (MaineDOT) representative,
and the Eastern Maine Development Corporation (EMDC) president. There are also four
non-voting members, representing the Bangor Region Chamber of Commerce, the
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) transportation subcommittee,
the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and the Federal Transit Administration
(FTA). The Policy Committee meets regularly to establish transportation priorities and to
allocate specific categories of federal funds to meet the area's transportation needs.

Advising the Policy Committee is a Technical Committee, comprised of state and
municipal engineers, planners and officials. This committee scopes, reviews, and
recommends biennial Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) projects to be included
in the State’s TIP; and reviews consultant proposals to perform major transportation
studies and traffic analyses within the BACTS area and recommends to the Policy
Committee which Consultant should perform this study.

n order to receive Federal funding for transportation projects in the urbanized area.
BACTS is required to produce a broad-based. long-range, multimodal transportation plan
addressing the needs of its constituency.  To meet this mandate, BACTS prepares and
presents an updated long-range plan cvery five vears. This plan represents several
iterations of input and feedback from our primary users -- the traveling public within the
urbanized area, as defined by the Technical Committee to determine the present and
future transportation needs of the region.



Figure 1: BACTS Metropolitan Area

}

\ tHhyzze™

N Kenzogieag

~ampden

BN o]

2id Tawn

& ford

Tadhzm




This plan is intended to serve as a guide for coordinated decision-making and long-term
planning and investment in transportation projects at the municipal, regional, and state

levels.

BACTS has considered all locally available modes of transportation in compiling this
plan, including the existing and future highway system, railroads, air travel, marine
transport, public transit, bicycle and pedestrian travel, and methods for improving
intermodal connections for passengers and freight. The plan also considers less
quantifiable aspects of transportation planning, such as the potential for future business
development and tourism in the Bangor region and quality-of-life concerns for area
residents. Elements of the plan include an inventory of the current BACTS transportation
system, a listing of current and future problems that will need to be addressed, and a
discussion of strategies to alleviate or eliminate these problems and achieve the stated

goals and objectives by the year 2035.

1.2 QOverview of the Long-Range Transportation Plan

i

The BACTS plan for the next two decades focuses on maintaining existing infrastructure,
increasing intermodal connectivity and making the Bangor region a more attractive and
convenient place to live, work, shop, and play. Good transportation planning does not
occur in a vacuum; many of the long-range goals focus on coordinating local and regional
transportation initiatives with land planning, access management, and environmental
protection, to permit economic growth without sacrificing the high quality of life, which
residents and visitors to the Bangor area currently enjoy.

Chapter 2 describes the existing conditions of the transportation system in the
metropolitan area, with an analysis of land-use patterns, socioeconomic conditions, and
commuting patterns as well as a status report on each existing mode in the transportation
network. Chapter 3 presents the BACTS mission statement, SAFETEA-LU and BACTS
goals and miscellaneous policy issues. Chapters 4 through 9 address the existing
conditions and trends, deficiencies, and recommendations for individual modes. These
chapters describe the BACTS vision for the year 2035 and what it will take to get there.
Chapter 10 details the financial details including issues and constraints. Chapter 11 is a
new chapter focusing on climate change, livability, sustainability and transportation
operations; all interwoven issues important to the region and required by FHWA. The
recommendations and strategies determined for this plan are written at the end of these

chapters and combined in Chapter 12.

Appendix A contains a schedule of public involvement for this Long Range Plan and the
compilation of public comments on the plan, with a specitic response to each, if
warranted. Appendix B contains classifications of all BACTS arterials and collectors,
tratfic volumes, and an historic list of BACTS Transportation Improvement Projects.
Appendix C is a list of acronyms used in transportation planning while Appendix D
contains definitions used in transportation planning.

AT sggpslatve Mandates




All transportation initiatives undertaken by BACTS must adhere to standards specified in
existing federal and state legislation. [n addition to the SAF ETEA-LU investment goals
listed in Chapter 3, the BACTS planning process is subject to the prescriptions of the
Maine Sensible Transportation Policy Act (MSTPA), the Clean Air Act Amendment
(CAA), the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), the Americans with Disabilities

Act (ADA), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act.

1.4 Public Participation Process

SAFETEA-LU and MSTPA require each MPO to develop a public involvement process
for the development and implementation of its transportation planning initiatives. Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act requires a means of ensuring that transportation projects are
not selected on the basis of discriminatory practices. Informed public review and
feedback help to ensure that the proposed transportation alternatives truly meet the needs
of the local community. It is particularly critical to get the opinions of users whose
concerns may otherwise be overlooked in the transportation planning process, including
low-income residents and workers, disabled individuals, the elderly, bicyclists, and

pedestrians.

In order to maximize public input to the long-range plan, BACTS staff members solicit
public feedback in structured and well-publicized meetings and focus groups, as well as
through informal face-to-face visits, written commentary, the BACTS website, e-mail,
and telephone conversations. An extensive computerized database is used to continually
expand the contact list of interested and atfected parties and special interest groups for
working advisory committees and informational mailings. A schedule of public
involvement for this Long Range Plan is included in Appendix A. A copy of the BACTS
public participation document, detailing methods and timelines for soliciting public
participation for transportation planning and decision-making may be found on the
BACTS website at: www.bactsmpo.oreg. This plan was last reviewed and updated in

2010.




2.0 Demographics

2.1 Introduction

Regional travel demand is closely related to the region’s population size, characteristics,
and employment. Travel demand is the combined effect of the need to make trips to
satisfy personal, household, commercial, and community needs, A region containing a
large population generates more trips than one containing a small population. Households
having more vehicles available make more trips than those having fewer vehicles.
Similarly, households having more members employed make more trips than households
having fewer members employed. There are many other factors that can be used to
forecast the trip making potential of a region. This chapter looks at a few of these; at the
time of writing, complete Census 2010 data was not yet available.

2.2 Population

Population trends of the 1990s suggest that people moved from the densely populated
BACTS urban core to the suburbs. The Greater Bangor Metropolitan Statistical Area
(MSA), using the boundary established according to the 2000 Census, gained 2,983
persons between 1990 and 2000, while the urban communities lost 2,352 people, i.e. the
rural part of the MSA gained 5,335 people. Hampden was the only BACTS community
to experience any significant population increase, perhaps because most of Hampden is
outside of the BACTS urban boundary. Holden was the only suburban town to lose

population.

The out- migration of the population from the urban areas into their surrounding suburbs
is a pattern that has been repeated all over the nation. Though in each urban area there
may be particular reasons for the phenomenon, it reflects a widespread desire for a more
rural lifestyle, without discarding the benefits of urban opportunities.

However, in the period 2000 through 2010 (see Table 2.1), the Census Bureau’s counts
indicate a different trend. The population in the entire MSA increased by 10,748, while
the population in the urban towns and cities increased by 4,946. Several individual
municipalities within the MSA more distant trom the Bangor urbanized area lost
population, while all individual municipalities located close to the urban core gained
population, including most of the municipalities within the urbanized area. The overall
eifect was to concentrate population more strongly in and immediately around the urban

ureg.

he 2030 forecasts of population in the individual municipalities show the trend of the
first decade of the 21 Century continuing with net increases in population in both the
urban and rural areas. However. the rate of increase is expected to be much smaller.



Table 2.1 Populations of Greater Bangor Metropolitan Statistical Area Cities and Towns

Municipality 2000 Popuiation 2010 Population 2030 Forecast |
BACTS
Bangor 31,473 33,039 32,286
Bradley 1,242 1,492 1,867
Brewer 8,951 9,482 9,452
Eddington 2,030 2,225 2,378
Hampden 6,327 7,257 8,428
Milford 2,952 3,070 2,937
Old Town 8,133 7,840 6,146
Orono 9,112 10,362 11,856
QOrrington 3,560 3,733 3,639
PIN 559 610 646
Veazie 1,744 1,919 2,067
Total 76,083 81,029 81,703
Other Greater
Bangor MSA
Alton 816 890 942
Amherst 230 265 310
Argyle 253 277 295
Aurora 121 114 83
Bradford 1,186 1,290 1,358
Carmel 2,416 2,794 3,290
Charleston 1,397 1,409 1,252
Clifton 743 921 1,206
Corinth 2,511 2,878 3,338
Dedham 1,422 1,681 2,052
Dixmont 1,065 1,181 1,291
EC Penobscot 324 343 341
Edinburg 98 131 189
Enfield 1,616 1,107 1,376
Etna 1,012 1,246 1,617
Exeter 997 1,092 1,166
Frankfort 1,041 1,124 1,166
Garland 990 1,105 1,223
Glenburn 3,964 4 594 5,429
Greenbush 1,421 1,491 1,455
Hermon 4437 5,416 6,940 .
Holden 2,827 3,076 3,241
Howland 1,362 1,241 303
Hudson 1,393 1,536 1,661
Kenduskeag B 1,171 1,348 1,575
lagrange | 747 708 526
Levant 2,171 o 2,851 4029
lowell R 291 o 358 L 464 | B
Maxfield T ] 97 | 107 |
Mewburg B 1,394 1,551 i 1,706 |
 Newport 3,017 3,275 3,435 | i
| Passadumkeag A4 374 172
Pymouth [ 1287 ] 1,380 1,480
Stetson %8t 1,202 1,549
~E/}ﬂnt_e’rpgr_t_'__#_wiw_ 3,602 3,757 I 3619 |
Total i 18,801 | 54,503 | 50,687 |




2.3 Employvment

The employment market in the Greater Bangor MSA is a reflection of the major role that
the Bangor area has adopted as the major service center for eastern and central Maine.
The market is expected to continue to focus on services as shown below in Table 2.2

Table 2.2 Employment Categories within the Greater Bangor MSA

NAICS Industry BACTS Balance BACTS Balance
Code Towns of MSA Total Towns of MSA Total
2009 2009 2009 2030 2030 2030
101 Goods-Producing Domain 5,078 1,446 6,524 4195 1197 5392
1011 * Natural Resources and Mining 141 288 429 98 200 297
1012 * Construction 2104 674 2,778 1988 637 2625
1013 * Manufacturing 2,833 484 3,317 2109 360 2469
102 Service-Providing Domain 49,495 6,525 56,020 | 61295 7857 69152
1021 * Trade, Transportation and Utilities 12,883 2,452 15,335 | 13938 2653 16591
1022 * Information 1,122 16 1,138 976 14 3990
1023 * Financial Activities 2,097 176 2,273 2282 192 2474
1024 * Professional and Business Services 5,305 508 5,813 5874 563 8437
1025 * Education and Health Services 19,104 1,990 21,094 | 28188 2936 31124
1026 * Leisure and Hospitality 5375 525 5,900 6221 608 6829
1027 * Other Services 1,529 239 1,768 1723 269 1992
1028 * Public Administration 2,080 619 2,699 | 2092 623 2715
Total 54,573 7,971 62,544 | 65,490 9,053 74,543

NAICS Code: The North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) is the standard
used by Federal statistical agencies in classifying business establishments for the purpose of
collecting, analyzing, and publishing statistical data related to the U.S. business economy.

The forecasts are based on the growth factors for each employment sector derived from a
regional econometric model maintained by the University of Southern Maine, The growth
factors are applied to each municipality’s distribution of employment between
employment sectors. The 2009 employment and the 2030 employment forecasts for each
municipality within the Greater Bangor MSA are shown below in Table 2 3.




Table 2.3 - Total Employment in Greater Bangor MSA

Municipality 2009 Employment 2030 Forecast
BACTS Towns
Bangor 36,019 43,655
Bradiey 122 128
Brewer 6,303 5,926
Eddington 308 378
Hampden 1,923 2175
Milford 316 360
Qid Town 2,926 3,095
Orono 5,743 7,713
Orrington 388 441
PIN 190 265
Veazie 333 354
Total 54,571 65,490
Other Towns in MSA
Alton 76 90
Ambherst 11 12
Argyle * *
Aurora 37 38
Bradford 77 71
Carmel 243 288
Charleston 283 368
Clifton 22 23
Corinth 512 504
Dedham 139 164
Dixmont 52 54
EC Penobscot * *
Edinburg * *
Enfield 260 277
Etna 130 135
Exeter 87 77
Frankfort 65 68
Garland 56 57
Glenburn 263 316

| Greenbush 123 130
Hermon 1,823 2,115
Holden 451 523
Howland 260 337
Hudson 70 72
Kenduskeag 93 39
Lagrange 20 21
Levant 180 197

- Lowell 13 13
Maxfield * *
Newburg 30 94
Newport 1,709 | 1.969

{ Passadumkeag a7 RE i
Plymouth 145 | 152 |
Stetson 99 1 )
‘Winterport 440 554
Total 7,973 | 9,053

| Total MSA TB2544 | | 74543 |

“2mployment data suppressed

S



The population and employment, and their expected growth rates are summarized and
compared in the following Table 2.4.

Table 2.4 Population and Employment Growth Rates

Annual %

Population 2010 2030 growth rate
BACTS Towns | 81,029 81,703 0.04

Other MSA 54,603 60,687 0.53

Total MSA 135,632 142390 0.24
Employment 2009 2030

BACTS Towns | 54573 65490 0.87

Other MSA 7971 9053 0.61

Total MSA 62544 74543 0.84

Population and Employment Issues

Both employment and population in the BACTS region are expected to grow very slowly.
However, most of the increase in population will be within the MSA outside the BACTS
municipalities, and most of the increase in employment will be within BACTS
municipalities. This imbalance will accentuate the current trend of increasing numbers
of vehicular trips ongmatmg outside the urban area. This trend will have the most impact
on radial routes serving the urban area.

The very low level of expected growth is not likely to cause any significant systemic
congestion problems. Localized traffic impacts resulting from individual commercial
developments will exceed any additional traffic generated by forecasted population and
employment growth over the next 20 years.



3.0 Mission Statement, Goals, and Policy Issues

3.1 [niroduction

BACTS has developed a mission statement, specific goals, and priorities for the greater
Bangor metropolitan area that is consistent with the SAFETEA-LU goals. The BACTS
Mission Statement is listed first, followed by the SAFETEA-LU goals and the BACTS
Transportation Goals and Priorities.

Non-modal policy issues are addressed at the end of this chapter and include a discussion
on regional coordination in transportation and land use planning and BACTS committee
membership requirements mandated by SAFETEA-LU.

3.2 BACTS Mission Statement

Provide for the safe, economical, efficient, and convenient movement of people and
goods over a balanced multimodal transportation system compatible with the S0CI0-
economic and environmental characteristics of the region.

33 SAFETEA-LU Goals

The BACTS long-range plan addresses each of the SAFETEA-LU comprehensive goals
and identifies strategies to achieve them, within the context of the existing infrastructure
and future plans for the Bangor area. The SAFETEA-LU mandated goals are listed

below:

e Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling
global competitiveness, productivity and efficiency.

o Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized
users.

e Increase the security of the transportation system for motorized and non-
motorized users.

» Increase the accessibility and mobility of people and for freight.

s Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, improve
quality of life, and promote consistency between transportation improvements and
State and local planned growth and economic development patterns.

> Fnhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and
hetween modes, for people and freight.

> Promote efficient system management and operation.

> Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system.

34 BACTS Transportation Goals and Priorities

Fhere are six transportation goals created by BACTS in no particular order followed by
wpportive cegional priorities as adopted by the BACTS Policy Committee.



3.4.1 Fiscal Responsibility - Planning and programming within ouwr means,
focusing on the greatest needs and getting the greatest returns by
targeting regional needs, leveraging partnerships, and sharing investment
burdens appropriately.

BACTS priorities that support this goal:

* Seek increased funding for construction projects in the urbanized
areas.

* Support the protection and integrity of Maine’s Highway Fund.

e Optimize capacity to the existing system before increasing capacity
through road building activities

e Investigate ways to leverage federal funds using an equitable mix
of state and local funds.

* Develop and implement a regional transportation process that
produces cost savings through regionalization.

* Seek innovative techniques for transportation projects to extend
project life.

3.4.2 Economic Prosperity and Livability — Promore transportation
investments that support sustainable community and economic
development.

BACTS priorities that support this goal:

* Restore passenger rail transportation with intermodal connections
in the Bangor area.

* Consider shoulder paving on all highway projects.

¢ Strengthen intermodal links between the Bangor area and Portland,
Boston, Greenville, Millinocket, and the Trenton area.

¢ Consider paving priorities on roadways identified in the BACTS
Bicycle/Pedestrian Plan.

¢ Incorporate bike/pedestrian facilitics on existing or potential high-
use roadway crossings of interstates and rivers.

®  Seek to allocate funds for providing transit service from suburban
areas into and between service centers.

> Lsive high priority to projects that provide for connections between
modes.

> Provide tor the efficient movement of goods.

> Target access to key econoniic sites.

> Provide better/improved access to housing, employment, services,
and major recreational facilities.

> Plan for streetscaping.



343

3.4.4

345

Safety and Security — Ensure that BACTS has an ongoing process [0
improve the safety and security of our transportation system in the BACTS
area.

BACTS priorities that support this goal:

e Pursue changing interstate weight limits to be consistent with Maine
state highway weight limits.

e Work with safety and security agencies to develop a safer and more
secure transportation system.

¢ Give high priority to the elimination of safety hazards in all modes.

¢ [valuate the movement of hazardous materials on all transportation
modes and encourage the use of safer modes.

Public-Private Partnership and Coordination - Local, state and federal
siakeholders should be involved in partnerships to promote cost-effective
decision-making, land use and transportation connections, coordinated
capital investments, and joint purchasing, etc.

BACTS priorities that support this goal:

e Assist towns in their access management efforts.

e Seek to integrate access management, corridor planning, and broad-
based transportation considerations in their comprehensive planning
process.

e FEncourage communities to consider land use practices, policies and
standards that reduce vehicle miles of travel.

e Restore and increase freight rail transportation in the Bangor area.

e Facilitate the establishment of passenger rail or bus transfer points in
ostablished downtown areas wherever feasible.

e [mprove communication and coordination between BACTS and
MaineDOT on project scoping and prioritization

o Assist in developing and providing more expertise in land-use
planning as is related to transportation.

Tavironmental Stewardship - FEnsure that the transporifation system
meets the social, cultural, historic. scenic and environmental needs of the

public.

> Support projects that result in reduced vehicle emissions and other
impacts such as noise.

o Reduce adverse impacts on wetlands. critical habitat, water bodies and
other environmentaily sensitive areas.

» Support projects that promote  resource efficiency and  energy

copservation.



* Concentrate mitigation for regional projects in areas of high
environmental significance.

3.4.6 Customer Oriented Focus - I[nclusive, balanced, early and effective
public involvement that considers, not only if projects should be done, but

how.
BACTS priorities that support this goal:

e Continue to include citizens, and open citizen participation, in the
transportation planning process.

* Increase the membership of the MPO committees to include mode
representatives and/or major stakeholders.

* Promote communication with public on BACTS activities.



4.0 Public Transportation

4.1 [ntroduction

Public transportation forms a key component of the region’s transportation systeni.
While most travel in the BACTS area is accomplished by automobile, there is a
significant and growing segment of the population that relies on public transportation to
fulfill its needs. In addition, visitors who have traveled to the region by non-automobile
modes need public transportation to travel in the area during their visit. Public
transportation 1s provided by a mixture of for-profit and non-profit organizations,
supplying intercity, fixed route urban, fixed route rural, and demand response services.

4.2 Existing Conditions
42.1 Fixed Route Transit

The fixed route transit in the BACTS area is provided by BAT Community Connector,
operated by the City of Bangor. BAT provides service to Bangor, Brewer, Hampden, Old
Town, Orono, the University of Maine (Orono) and Veazie. The system operates
approximately 588,400 vehicle miles per year and covers 104 miles of roadway

The basic hours of operation are 6:15 a.m. to 6:15 p.m. Bus service runs six days per
week (Monday through Saturday) in all areas, except Hampden, where service is
available five days per week (Monday through Friday). BAT operates a “pulse system”
designed to facilitate the transfer of riders on one route to another. A pulse system
requires buses from all routes operating out of Pickering Square in downtown Bangor to
meet at Pickering Square at the same time, so those passengers transferring from route to
route do not have to wait too long to board the connecting bus.

4.2.1.1 Routes
The BAT route structure, prior to 2003, is described below.

1) The Hammond Street Route Serves the Union Street-Hammond Street area by a
one-way loop via Union Street, Vermont Avenue, Maine Avenue, Texas Avenue,
Hammond Street, West Broadway, Buck Street, 3 Street, Cedar Street, and Main
Street. The service is provided by a single bus vperating on 30 minute headways

n weekdays and 60-minute headways on Saturdays.

The Capehart Route Serves the Ohio Street-Union Street Corridor, including
Bangor [nternational Airport and the Capehart housing complexes via Ohio Street
and Union Street. The service is provided by two buses, giving 30-minute
headways on weekdays and Saturdays.

[

1 O (Cpprer Slreet Roule 3e0ves ihe Conrer sireet arridor and the Husson College
ey i Lenteroeh Sroadiy el Contisherg Svenie he  ervare s



+)

5)

6.)

7))

provided by a single bus operating on 30-minute headways on weekdays and 60-
minute headways on Saturdays.

The Mount Hope Route serves the area of Mount Hope Avenue, Hogan Road, the
Bangor Mall, Stillwater Avenue, and Broadway, by a one-way loop. The service
is provided by two buses, giving 30-minute headways on weekdays and

Saturdays.

The Brewer Route serves the more urbanized areas of the City of Brewer, by two
one-way loops; one for south Brewer, via South Main Street, Parkway South, and
Wilson Street; and one for north Brewer, via North Main Street, Parkway North,
and State Street. The service is provided by a single bus serving the loops
alternately on 60-minute headways on weekdays and Saturdays.

The VOOT (Veazie, Orono, Old Town) Route serves the U.S. Route 2 corridor to
Orono, and the US Route 2/ Stillwater Avenue/ College Avenue loop through Old
Town and Orono. The service is provided by two buses on 60-minute headways
on weekdays and by a single bus on 2-hour headways on Saturdays.

The Hampden Route serves the US Route 1A corridor from Bangor to Hampden.
The route is served by a single bus operating on 60-minute headways on
weekdays. There is no service between 10 am. and 2:15 p.m. on weekdays. There
is no service on Saturdays.

BAT reconfigured some routes in 2003, while other routes were added. Route changes
are described below.

1)

2)

In June 2003, a bus was added to the Brewer route, allowing 2-way service to be
provided on the north loop and south loop separately. In addition, service was
extended, on both loops, to outer Wilson Street to serve an emerging commercial
and retail area, anchored by a Walmart Supercenter.
In June 2003, the fare-free project for holders of MaineCards was extended from
the route serving the University of Maine to all BAT routes
In October 2003, several significant changes were made:
I.  The fare structure was changed to improve customer convenience, and
make service more attractive to certain market segments;
II. A new route, Mall Hopper, connects Airport Mall on Union Street to
the Broadway Shopping Center (Broadway) to the Bangor Mall on
Stillwater Avenue;
iII.  The old Mount Hope Route was split between two new routes:
a) The Stillwater Route is a quick service from Pickering Square to
the Bangor Mall via Stillwater Avenue;
by The Mount Hope Route, rescheduled, provides two way service
along the line ol the old route at 60 minute headways; and
IV,  Extra runs were added to the Hampden service, filling the zap m
ervice that existed between [0 a.m. and 2:15 pom



In 2007, as a result of a short range transit study completed in that year, the Capehart
route was augmented by the addition of a bus to weekday service, so that the route
frequency could be increased. This allowed better on time performance on this heavily
raveled route. Also, the Old Town route was reconfigured to improve on-time
performance.

in the fall of 2009, BAT began operating a shuttle route connecting the Orono village
area with the campus of the University of Maine (Orono) called the Black Bear-Orono
Express. The service operates on 30 minute headways, from 6:35 a.m. to 9:35 p.m.
Monday through Friday, 11:35 a.m. to 9:55 p.m. Saturday, when school is in session,
during the academic year. The shuttle is funded jointly by the University, the Town of
Orono, and the Federal Transit Administration. Enhancing the connection between the
University campus and the surrounding communities has been a recommendation of
various planning efforts since 2004. In its first year of service it carried 39, 317 rides.

See the BAT website at: www.bangormaine.govics_publictransit.php for more complete details
of services, fares and route maps.

Figure 4.1 Monthly Ridership System-wide

Monthly Ridership
Syste m-wide FY97.10
90000 U —— e = ___]

80000 -
70000 | [/\[»WA‘AYA
60000 |—— A“YA,“,
LA AA’\M
50000 -
Uy
ﬁ ] . ~ | q f\ A !A‘W

QD(’\I\WCDCDC)OO‘—F‘NNC’)C’)QVLOLDLDQDI\I\QDQC”D‘)O
: 255 338888353299 222229%2<222°23 3
. 7C“C‘“C“C“C"C"C"C"’C“E“C"‘C'—C“"
pal =3 3 =3 3 3 | =] 2 el 3 3 3 3 =
é “‘)_‘g“:gﬁgﬁ_{gﬁg'ﬂg'ﬂ_{gﬁg‘ﬁgﬂg”’_‘gﬂg‘ﬁgﬁg
!
|
P 3 L s i
+.2.1.2 Ridership: Fixed Route

\s can be seen in Figure 4.1, there has been an underlying npward frend in monthly
sidership. This has been particularly pronounced since 2000. The upward tend
ridership may be explained by the improvements that BAT implemented early in FY97
hased on the findings of a transit needs study conducted for BACTS by Tom Crikelair
\ssociates entitled An Evaluation of Public Transportation in the BACTS drea. BAT
introduced a monthly pass and increased marketing efforts, such as new schedules, route
marking, and an improved web site. Also. some minor route and schedule improvemen 3

sAu

ek as the cemoration of cervice on ominor public

Aphidayva

noechary G

S NS A N S SR R



40 percent of all rides. In addition, BAT entered into an agreement with the University of
Maine (Orono) to provide fare free rides to holders of MaineCards (students and staff) on
the route serving the University. The purpose of the fare free project was to test the
concept as a strategy to address the on-campus parking problems experienced by the
University. The service did not involve the customization of the regular bus schedule to
maximize use by students and staff. During the first month of the service, 2,805
MaineCard rides were provided. The program was made permanent after a review in
January 2001 to assess its success and funding levels. The University has provided
$10,000 in fare replacement revenue per year and, due to the project’s ongoing success in
attracting riders, the service was extended to all routes for an additional $5000 a year in
June 2003. From September 2000 through June 2010, 595,585 rides were provided by
this program.

BACTS commissioned a Transit Route Redesign Study in the BACTS Area by Tom
Crikelair Associates in 2002. Several changes in routes were made, the fare structure was
revised, new schedules designed, and a revamped vehicle livery was adopted as a result.
The improvements were well received by the riders, and ridership continued to increase.
The growing annual system-wide ridership is shown in Table 4.2 below.

Figure 4.2 Annual Ridership FY97-FY10 System-wide

| M o S
| Annual BAT Ridership FY97- FY10
! System-wide
1000 — — — — - —
|
J 300 i
|
( 800 — et ‘
J n / . ,
I'2 700 4 e ||
| 2 1 ‘
I3 | /"7/
& oo g |
! l /// i
},’ 500 J]_ — e W_}x !
| | LR - | ’
| 100 l‘ ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, et . ﬂ |
300 —_— . — e e e e e, |
P £ ] [l — o el T ©y {9} i~ Ve ] (]
> [y 3 o] [ow] [ow] [ [ < [} aand [ew} fow ] -— s
pot o P - P e = P 5= > e e P >~
Li [ [* L L (398 Lin L. L [ [ e L ‘

operations s provided chrough fare hox receipis, focal

sit sdministration (FT 0 Sids made

a0l Federa] 7

. PR N I TRA - e 5 - -
P TGN a0 e T e e g s ey



communities under contract. The FTA funds for operations come from Section 5307 -
Urban Formula Funds. They are divided between operation and minor capital
requirements, such as bus shelters, as needed by the operator. Major capital needs, such
as vehicle procurement, are funded through statewide discretionary requests to the
Congressional delegation, coordinated by MaineDOT. Regular replacement of aging
vehicles in the fleet is continual. The extra bus for the Brewer route was procured using
Job Access Reverse Commute (JARC) funds. Part of the operation of this route also

comes from JARC funds.

4.22  Other Public Transportation in the Region

Urban

The demand response provider, The Lynx, operated by Penquis, provides one-day-a-
week door-to-door van service throughout the urbanized area. Fare box revenue and
Penquis funds support the service. The Lynx also provides the Americans with
Disabilities Act Complementary Paratransit service for the BAT, under contract with the

City of Bangor.

Rural

The demand response provider, Lynx, provides door-to-door van service in Piscataquis
and rural Penobscot Counties on weekdays. Apart from in-town service in a few rural
towns, each area in the region receives one day a week service, allowing riders to get to
Bangor. Fare box revenue, Penquis CAP funds, and federal funds support the service.

Inter-city

Concord Coach and Greyhound provide daily competing services from Bangor to
southern Maine and beyond. West’s Transportation provides daily service to Calais
through Hancock and Washington Counties via U.S. Routes 1A and 1. Cyr Bus Lines
provides Bangor to Caribou service once per day. DownEast Transportation provides a
once-a-week service from Bar Harbor to Bangor via Ellsworth, along US Route 1A, and a
once a month service from Bucksport to Bangor, along State Route 15. DownEast
Transportation also operates a daily JARC funded subscriber service trom Bangor to the
1ackson Lab. in Bar Harbor. Acadia Lines provides daily service from Bangor to the
Varitimes, with connections to the rest of Canada.

2.3 Current Issugs

Bangor and its surrounding region have undergone substantial economic development in
recent vears. Economic growth and its associated increase in traffic congestion have had
negative impacts on the efficiency of the region’s public transit system. [he ITransit
Route Redesign Study investigated and made recommendations to address several of the
svstem’s deticiencies. Ridership levels will be monitored to determine the success of the
tpategies that have been implementad,



Demand for additional Service

BAT has always received requests for bus service in areas not served. Some of the
requests have been from residents needing service where they live. However, many
requests have been from businesses and organizations wanting service at their locations.
These requests reflect the importance placed upon the bus service by both residents and
business owners. BAT has addressed these requests for additional service whenever
feasible. However, this has often been accomplished by stretching the existing schedule
so those additional destinations could be served. Increased traffic related to Bangor’s
economic growth makes it very difficult to maintain the “stretched” schedules. Boarding
and alighting times further stress current schedules, since BAT carries more passengers

cach year.

Pulse System
* BAT operates a pulse system designed to facilitate the timely transfer of riders on

one route to another. The pulse system requires buses from all routes to meet at
Pickering Square at the same time to ensure passengers do not have to wait too
long between route transfers. There were 101,879 system transfers during
FY2009 (July 2008-June 2009). Any future system changes will have to maintain
or improve the ease of transfer at Pickering Square for riders on Bangor, Brewer,

Hampden, and Old Town routes.

Route Changes
* Overall ridership tends to decline whenever transit service is reduced on a

particular route so as to increase service to a new area. This effect may last for
several years, precipitating a loss in fare revenue thereby requiring increased
subsidy. The ridership generated by the increased service may never compensate
for the loss in ridership in areas suffering a reduction in service.

Additional Buses
* Additional vehicles would enable service to be extended to areas currently not
served, without reduction of service in other areas. Operating an expanded fleet

of vehicles, however, requires additional funding.

Increasing Headways
» Increasing headways (the time interval between successive bus arrivals) makes

bus service less frequent and consequently less convenient Riders would have to
bear increased travel times by waiting for their scheduled bus or having to hoard
an 2arlier bus. Multisystems: a transportation consulting firm. uses a formula to
predict changes in ridership on transit routes. The formula predicts that
increasing headways from 30 minutes to 60 minutes would result in a 27.6% drop
in ridership. This prediction can be validated by experience in the Bangor area.
BAT estimates that ridership dropped by at least a third in the mid 1980s on the
Old Town route, when service on that route was cut back from 30-minute to 60-
minute headways.



Longer Routes
e FExtending routes to serve additional areas increases ridership potential. However,
because the route is longer, riders may be forced to spend extra time on the bus in
order to reach their destination. During the early 1970s when BAT (then Citibus)
was originally designed, all routes were one-hour routes. Customer
dissatisfaction with long tours of the neighborhoods prompted the redesign of the
routes resulting in much improved point-to-point times.

Marketing and Innovative Projects

Marketing initiatives aimed at increasing BAT ridership or reaching the under-served
populations require access 10 funds beyond those used for capital and regular support.
Municipal budgeting is not flexible enough to respond quickly to emerging opportunities.
However, the BAT has achieved positive results by partnering with non-municipal
organizations. An example of a successful partnership is the MaineCard project with the

University of Maine.

Pedestrians

BAT’s policy is to pick up or drop off bus riders at any location where it is safe to do so.
The bus will stop at the nearest safe place if there is no sidewalk or a shoulder at the
desired stop. It is important, therefore, to ensure that sidewalks or shoulders are provided
along all the BAT routes and that they are maintained in good condition.

Inter-urban

Current transit and paratransit services linking the urban area and the more rural areas
surrounding it, are very limited in passenger capacity. The formation of a suburban ring
of towns around the urban area poses a problem and a challenge for public transportation.
It would be beneficial if people could travel to and from the urban area without having to
drive and contribute to traffic congestion. However, the low densities of the rural
communities make efficient, economical route design difficult.

Intermodal

Several public transportation providers operate within the urban area. The urban area
lacks a location or facility where all riders can transter between providers. This results in
1 loss of potential riders and revenues for all providers. Efforts to site an intermodal
passenger facility at the Bangor International Airport were not productive. All modes of
public transportation should be considered in the siting and design of the facility.

13 Future Conditions and [ssues

[ ong range forecasting for a relatively small transit system does not provide reliable
_imates for future use.  [arge percentage changes in ridership can occur for a variety of
casons uch s the loeation of fndividual Jevelopments and the cost of nperating

qusinohiies, e (e Cedenime iR e elapig cdest (aercated it g ot o TS

20



4 years, depending on vehicle procurement), the lack of a long-range forecast is not
important. Improvements can often be based on short-term considerations and emerging
opportunities for ridership increases can be seized upon relatively quickly. In addition,
the inherent flexibility in deploying the system’s vehicles allows changing demands for
transit service to be accommodated very efficiently, without necessarily adding to the

vehicle fleet.

Dependence on Public Transit

Ridership surveys, conducted during the 1996 Transit Needs Study, indicate that many
riders have no alternative ways to get to work or other appointments. The cost of
operating an automobile has been increasing and the trend towards an older population
(especially in Maine) will likely increase dependence on public transit, due to increasing
infirmity and a loss of driver’s licenses. Marketing and service design will have to reflect

these continuing changes.

ADA

All of the buses used by BAT are wheelchair lift or ramp equipped and any future
vehicles would also be wheelchair friendly. However, the provision of wheelchair lifts
has several negative impacts on the operation of the system; the space taken by the lift
reduces seating capacity; buses can only accommodate two wheelchair bound passengers;
mechanical reliability can be problem, and when failure occurs operational difficulties
can be time consuming to overcome; lifts represent additional equipment to be
maintained; and boarding or setting down wheel chair riders is time consuming. ADA
regulations require wheelchairs be boarded regardless of the impact on the bus’s on-time

performance.

ADA Complementary Paratransit Service

BAT is required to provide an ADA Complementary Paratransit service for persons
within % mile of a bus route who cannot get to the route due to a disability, or are unable
navigate the transit system. Penquis, under contract to the City of Bangor, provides the
service. As provision of the service is very expensive, the eligibility of individuals and
the rides they are requesting have to be carefully monitored, to ensure that those that need

the service are properly served.

rban Paratransit

Paratransit service within the area for the general public is provided one day per week by
Penquis. Paratransit serves people away from the bus routes and those who need door-to-
door service, such as senior citizens needing special assistance getting in and out of the
van. [he service is limited by a lack of funding. Changing population demographics,
such as the expected increase in aging baby boomers. will likely increase the need for this
Ivpe of service,



[n the Bangor area, taxi service is very often used by the public transportation dependent
for trips at times when public transportation (fixed route or on-demand) is not available,
and for those destinations not served. The importance of the role played by taxi service,
for all riders, is likely to grow in the future.

4.4

Recommendations

The BACTS Policy and Technical Committees have identified several strategies to
improve public transit in the BACTS arca. The strategies are listed below.

Add service to coastal areas.

Add service to towns around Bangor Area.

Extend service within BACTS, including intermodal links.

Provide evening service.

Provide weekend service: add Saturday for Hampden, and Sunday for all routes.
Increase frequencies, particularly Old Town route.

Provide/improve passenger amenities — benches, shelters, landscaping, lighting,
walkways, signage, etc.

Improve marketing through local TV, radio, local access channel, and city
channel.

Examine cost effective options for providing ADA Complementary Paratransit
service, as use of the service increases.

Investigate partnerships with potential large ridership generators, such as colleges,
hospitals, and employers.

[mplement an [TS-based — traveler information system — next bus arrival, etc.
Implement transit priority at signalized intersections.

Ensure that sidewalks are provided along all bus routes.

[nvestigate opportunities for park & ride in the region.

Study ways of coordinating the public transportation services in the BACTS area,
including the siting of an intermodal passenger facility.

Study ways to better integrate taxi service with other transportation options in the
Bangor area.



5.0 Highway Transportation

5.1 Introduction

The highway network is the largest and most developed transportation system in the
BACTS area. The overwhelming majority of people and goods are transported over the
region's 179 miles of collector and arterial roadways. The present-day network has been
shaped by a number of historical factors:

® The formation of compact urban centers around major waterways in the 18" and
19t centuries, and the development of primitive roadways for pedestrians and
horse-borne travelers and traders;

» The mass production of motor vehicles and subsequent construction of the Maine
state highway system from 1925 to 1960, including the construction of Interstate
[-95 during the 1950s and subsequent development in areas close to the exit
ramps; and

* The openings of the [-395 spur including the third Penobscot River Bridge in the

mid 1990’s.

In 1991 Maine adopted the Sensible Transportation Policy Act (STPA) to help reduce
demands on the highway system. In 2003 and 2007, the State Legislature amended the
Act to mandate a better connection between transportation and land use planning — and,
specifically, between the STPA and the State’s Growth Management Act. The common
goals of the two laws include facilitating orderly growth and development, promoting
economic development, reducing impacts on natural and cultural resources, and
providing better solutions to transportation problems. Importantly, both laws recognize
that transportation and land use patterns operate at a regional scale, and both encourage
inter-community planning, financing, and regulation.

The BACTS highway inventory, as a result, has remained essentially static for the past 20
years.

Since 2004, there has been no new alignment construction using federal or state funding
in the BACTS region. There is only one new potential construction project known at this
time; the connection of Route 9 to [-395 through a corridor across Brewer, Holden and
Eddington. The recently completed I-95 Study recommended future study of impacts for

new ramps and interchanges.

sustainability and livability have been important characteristics of transportation
planning for decades. More recently they have gained more widespread attention due to
ughter budgets, people’s desire for more transportation choices with casy transitions
hetween modes, people wanting better quality of life where they live and work, and
climate change issues being considered. BACTS was worked on improving sustainability
and livability in our area and is committed to continuing these efforts. Sustainability,
(vability. and climate change are discussed in ereater detail in Chapier 11,

CRISONg o aidilions

[



Federal Functional Classification System

The federal functional classification (FFC) system designates all urban roads within one

of five possible categories, based on the
highway network. These classifi
Interstate (hereafter referred to as "Interstate
to as "principal arterial”
excluded from the BACTS inventory,
For the remaining functional classifications, BAC
the total mileage for each classification within the

cations are from highest to lowest:
"): principal arterial-other (hereafter referred
); minor arterial; urban collector; and local. Local roads are
falling under the jurisdiction of each municipality.
TS receives federal funding based on

highway network. Table 5.1 lists the

ir capacity and strategic significance within the
principal arterial-

lane mileage by FFC within the BACTS area. A listing of all the arterials and collectors

currently falling un

Table 5.1 Federal Functional Centerline (Lane) Mileage

der BACTS jurisdiction is presented in Table B.1 in Appendix B.

Major Other Principal
Urban Minor Principal Arterial
Municipality | Collector Arterial Arterial Interstate Total Mileage
36.34
Bangor (74.96) 18.96 (44.85) | 7.35(21.67) | 30.28(50.33) | 92.93 (191.81)
Bradley 2.68(5.36) | 0.00(0.00) 0.00 (0.00) 0.00 (0.00) 2.68 (5.36)
Brewer 473 (9.48) |3.15(6.11) 9.2 (23.27) 1022 (16.29) | 27.3 (55.15)
Eddington 0.58 (1.16) | 0(0) 0.68 (1.36) 0.00 (0.00) 1.26 (2.52)
Hampden 1.69 (3.32) | 3.64(7.28) 7.65(15.29) | 0.00 (0.00) 12.98 (25.89)
Milford 1.20 (2.40) | 3.47(6.94) 0.00 (0.00) 0.00 (0.00) 4.67 (9.34)
12.02
Old Town (24.03) 6.34 (13.03) | 0.00(0.00) 0.00 (0.00) 18.36 (37.08)
Orono 2.75(5.50) | 7.41(15.50) | 0.00(0.00) 0.00 (0.00) 10.16 (21.00)
Orrington 0.00 (0.00) | 3.31(6.62) 0.00 (0.00) 0.00 (0.00) 3.31 (6.62)
Veazie 0.64 (1.28) | 1.93 (3.86) 0.00 (0.00) 2.15 (4.30) 4.72 (9.44)
62.63 48.21
(127.51) (104.19) 24.88 (61.59) | 42.65(70.92) | 178.37 (364.21)

The federal functional classifications have special significance in relation to the
penobscot Indian Nation. The Penobscot Indian Reservation on Indian Island in Old
Town is federal property and is administered as the sovereign national territory of the
ibe. The BACTS metropolitan area includes Indian Island. but all roads on the island
e currently classified as local and theretore not included in the BACTS highway
inventory. At present. the Policy and Technical Committees mainiain contact with the
Penobscot indian Nation and the Nation is represented as a voting member of the
BACTS.

National Highway System

he vational Highway System (NHS) coneept was 1 comerstone of the orginal

Cveemcal nefaes Cesporiation Difiehones wer TR e atton. nd development
fogilt 1 . T R eI

P cemains 4 fngn pronny oader e able. Uhenible. fhwisnt

[



Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU). The purpose of the
NHS, according to ISTEA (Section 1006), is to "provide an interconnected system of
principal arterial routes which will serve major population centers, international border
crossings, ports, airports, public transportation facilities, and other intermodal
transportation facilities and other major travel destinations; meet national defense
requirements; and serve interstate and interregional travel.” More than one-third of all
tederal transportation funds are dedicated to the maintenance and improvement of NHS
roads. The following highways are designated NHS routes in the BACTS area:

Interstate 95 (I-95);

e Interstate 395 (I-395);

* Bangor, Hammond Street from [-95 off ramp to Maine Ave to Godfrey Blvd to
the Airport Terminal;

* Union St. at I-95 in Bangor to Godfrey Blvd to Airport Terminal;

e Bangor Main St. from I-395 to Cedar St.; Cedar St. from Main St. to Summer St.
and Summer St. from Cedar to Chamberlain Bridge to Main St. in Brewer.

e U.S. Route 1A (U.S. 1A) from the Hampden-Winterport town line north to State

Route 9 (S.R. 9);

S.R. 9 in Hampden from U.S. 1A west to U.S. Route 202 (U.S.202);

U.S. 202 from S.R. 9 in Hampden north to I-395 in Bangor;

U.S.1A from I-395 in Brewer east to the Brewer-Holden town line; and

State Routes 9/178 in Brewer from U.S.1A east to Hill Street in Eddington.

Bangor [-95 Study

MaineDOT, along with BACTS and other stakeholders, conducted a study of Interstate
95 in the City of Bangor. The purpose of the study was to evaluate the long-term needs of
the I-95 Corridor in Bangor and to identify a set of recommendations to provide safe and
efficient transportation service through the year 2030.

With the growth of traffic that has occurred in the 50 years of its existence, [-95 is facing
greater challenges in meeting the safety and mobility needs of its users. Incidents
anywhere along the highway create traffic hazards that can temporarily reduce highway
capacity and produce massive traffic backups. On and off-ramps designed over 50 years
ago are operating poorly under today’s traffic volumes. The goal of the Bangor [-95
Corridor Study was to provide a direction for future investments in this corridor to
address these deficiencies and ensure that [-95 can function effectively into the future.

To address safety and mobility concerns in the [-953 Corridor, MaineDOT considered a
range of improvement strategies such as auxiliary lanes, intelligent transportation systems
(ITS), transportation demand management (TDM), and interchange improvements.
Within each of these strategies, specific actions were conceived and analyzed in terms of
cffectiveness at addressing safety and mobility concerns, capital cost, and implementation
challenges.

v cecommendarions included:



[ncrease acceleration and/or deceleration lengths at interchange ramp junctions;

[ ]

e Improve intersections at/near interchanges;

e (reate park and ride lot;

o Improve bridge surface sensing;

¢ Upgrade median treatment;

e Modify lane use signing;

e Plan freeway management system;,

o [mplement service patrol;

e Install traffic monitoring;

o Evaluate potential for new interchange north of Hogan Road; and
e Evaluate a new northbound on ramp at the Exit 186 interchange.

The complete study can be viewed at:
[EEp: 1 WY NS, YOy mduLv’pimminzsmdies,‘buugm‘z@)istuchﬁimlex,htm.

Traffic Volumes

MaineDOT has historically monitored traffic growth in the BACTS area using fixed and
movable monitoring systems. MaineDOT conducts, on a rotating basis, 48-hour tratfic
counts on selected routes to calculate the Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) carried
by a particular highway. BACTS has an in-house 48-hour traffic count program that
greatly increases the number of annual counts performed on roads in the BACTS area.
This permits a more timely response to specific requests from individual BACTS
municipalities and it also reduces the backlog of MaineDOT traffic counts within the
region. Most importantly, the BACTS counts are directional whereas MaineDOT
provides total vehicle counts only. The directional counts help to calibrate the BACTS
traffic model, which leads to more accurate predictions of future traffic volumes. Table
B.2 in Appendix B provides AADT and percentage growth figures for points along major
BACTS traffic corridors since 2003.

Truck Traffic

BACTS does not perform regular classification counts that would indicate the volume of
wruck traffic on our roads. A study performed by the MaineDOT in 2001 (4 Heavy Haul
Truck Nework for the State of Maine) estimates heavy truck volumes in Penobscot
County will increase by 49 percent on principal arierials, 34 percent on miner aterials

snd 133 pereent on major/minor zolleciors Ty the perad 2000 10 2015,

“fuch of the heavy truck watfic is re-routed from the interstate system fo our minor
rterials and collectors due to weight limits imposed on the interstate by the federal
sovernment.  The current weight limit for our interstate system is 80.000 pounds, while
the weight limits on non-interstate roads are 100,000 pounds.

T Censaber 2009 he Cnited Draies

PR
BT



asked for a report back concerning impacts found during this pilot period. Maine DOT
concluded in a September 2010 white paper titled ‘Interstate Highway Truck Weights”
that “Current restrictions that force 100, 000-pound six-axle semi-trailers off Maine's
Interstate Highway System north of and parallel to the Maine T, urnpike are short-sighted
in their intent as the Interstate Highway System is the safest and best place for these five-
and six-axle commercial vehicles to operate in Maine. This opportunity does not affect or
impact other states; it's a situation with a solution that will be of great benefit to Maine.
Based on previous studies and the stewardship responsibility for nearly 9,000 miles of
Maine’s transportation infrastructure, MaineDOT is confident that allowing 100,000-
pound GVW six-axle semi-trailers on Maine’s Interstate System results in a net benefit to
the entire transportation system, Jar beyond the infrastructure benefits alone.”

Maine’s federal delegation remains committed to changing federal legislation to allow
heavy trucks to use Maine’s entire interstate system.

BACTS Truck Route Study

A study performed by Gorrill Palmer Consulting Engineers Inc. for BACTS in 2007
identified a list of spot improvements at specific locations impacted by trucks on the local
street system. While these improvements are no substitute for a change in regional
policy, they should aid in increasing truck mobility and safety for the interim period.
Those locations include:

Bangor-Route 1A railroad underpass at Mobil Depot
Bangor-Route 2 (Hammond Street) at Odlin Road.
Bangor- Perry Road at Farm Road.

Bangor- Griffin Road at Union Street.

Bangor Route 202 at Mecaw Road.

Bangor-Main Street at Union Street.

Bangor - Hancock Street at Oak Street.

Bangor - Broadway at Griffin/Burleigh Road
Bangor Hildreth Street at Outer Hammond Street.
Bangor- Harlow Street at Kenduskeag Avenue.
Bangor-Washington Street at Broad Street.
Brewer-State Street at Wilson Street.

s Brewer-Wilson Sireet at North Main Street,

> Brewer Route 15 near Orrington Town Line

» Brewer- State Street at North Main Street.

> Hampden- Route 1A at Coldbrook Road.

> Old Town-Route 2 (Main Street) and Water Street at Route JA
s Old Town-Route 16

@ & @ e o ¢ @ ® o ¢ o

o

Many BACTS communities restrict truck traffic on certain local roads. However, only
he City of Bangor formally identifies specitic roads as designated truck routes, Bangor
ks o direct rruek watfic sway from sensinize land nmes and onto compatible roadaay s,



Brewer is also developing a truck route to a new business park being developed off the
Wiswell Road.

Traffi¢ Signals

The primary function of traffic control signals is to assign the right-of-way at intersecting
streets or highways where, without such control, a continual flow of vehicles on one
roadway would cause excessive delay to vehicles (or pedestrians) waiting on the other
roadway. A properly designed, operated and maintained traffic control signal can be a
very valuable device for the control of vehicle and pedestrian tratfic.

New technology in traffic signals has resulted in improved system components and tools
for traffic control signal operations. Software programs have been developed to monitor
traffic signals and traffic patterns from a central command center. BACTS has five such

systems set up within its boundaries.

BACTS signal subcommittee reviews signal operations and maintenance issues within
the region. This subcommittee has developed an inventory of equipment and their
locations The BACTS area has 135 traffic signals in operation, as of December 2010, 29
of which were flashing-light only. The vast majority of the signals are actuated by
vehicles approaching the intersection, although a few timed-cycle signals are still in

operation.

Traffic signals are an essential element of Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS). ITS
encompasses a broad range of wireless and wire line communications-based information,
control and electronics technologies. [TS, when integrated into the transportation
infrastructure, and in the future, into personal vehicles, will help monitor and manage
traffic flow. reduce congestion, increase safety and reduce travel costs.

MDOT currently has permanent variable message signs (VMS) installed in 4 areas within
the BACTS Region. Along the 1-95 Corridor there are two VMS one located in Hamden
and one in Bangor. In Brewer there is one on [-395 and the final VMS is located on
Route 9 in Eddington. In addition to these variable message signs the MDOT also has
cleven variable speed signs (VSS) which have cameras in them to monitor weather
conditions and traffic congestion and alert drivers to decrease their speed. These are
located along the [-95 Corridor between Hampden and Old Town. MDOT is currently
conduction field reviews in six locations along the 1-95 Corridor in the Bangor area to
determine if there is a need for additional variable message signs or variable speed signs.

According to Maine DOT's latest statistics, in 2008 Maine experienced its lowest number
of fatalities (133) in several decades. Despite reduced travel resulting from increased
energy costs, this still translates to a reduction in fatalities per total miles driven as well.
\ crash rate is defined as the aumber of crashes per hundred million vehicle miles
hmem) driven. Waine’s crash rate decreased in 2008, but is above the national average.

(ine 5 oo e 501 crshes aer b Che fatest aafional cue in 1006 was 193

3



crashes per hmvm. Maine’s fatality rate of 1.07 fatalities per hmvm is a decrease over
2007’s rate of 1.22 fatalities per hmvm. Maine’s fatality rate continues to be below the
national rate of 1.27 fatalities per hmvm.

MaineDOT obtains and analyzes reported crash data from the Maine State Police to
determine high-crash locations throughout the state. The standard comparison statistic is
known as the Critical Rate Factor (CRF). The CRF is determined by comparing the
historical crash rate on a section of roadway (link) or intersection (node) to what would
be expected based on road type, traffic volume, and a statewide average of crash rates at
similar locations. A CRF greater than 1.0 indicates that the number of crashes exceeds
expectations (the location is more dangerous than average), while a CRF less than 1.0
indicates that the location is safer than average. A node or link must have a CRF of more
than 1.0 and at least eight reportable crashes occurring over a three-year period to meet

the criteria for listing as a high-crash location.

Each year, MaineDOT publishes a list summarizing the previous three years' worth of
crash data and identifies high-crash locations statewide. According to the 2006-2008
edition, there were 89 high-crash locations on roads in seven of ten BACTS
municipalities: 57 in Bangor, 12 in Brewer, 5 in Old Town, 11 in Orono, 2 in Hampden,
and 1 in Eddington and | in Orrington. These figures include local roads and rural areas
of the municipalities, which are not part of the BACTS highway inventory. Table 5.2
below lists BACTS highway locations that are considered especially serious due to a
CRF of 3.0 or greater, 20 or more crashes in a three-year period, or hoth.



Table 5.2 High Crash Location

No. of
I.ocation Town CRF Accidents
Cedar and Third St. Bangor 3.51 12
Fourteenth and Union St. Bangor 1.19 23
Hammond, Clinton, Ohio and High St. Bangor 1.52 20
Intersection of Bangor Mall, Mini Mall and
Stillwater Ave Bangor 4.18 34
Intersection of [-95NB  exit 184 off ramp and
Union St. Bangor 1.42 31
Intersection of Hogan Rd. and Hogan Rd. Off]
Ramp Bangor 1.29 43
Union St. and [-95 SB off Ramp Bangor 1.48 34
Broadway and State St. Bangor 3.30 10
Broadway and Grandview Ave Bangor 1.22 20
Broadway and Hobart St. Bangor 1.48 32
Union st. and Entrance to Mall Bangor 1.47 41
Bridge 5798 (over Kenduskeag Ave) [-95 NB _ |Bangor 2.04 39
Rte 1A and Bus Rte 9 Brewer 1.04 41
Main Rd. and Riverside Dr Eddington  {3.96 14
Rte 2A(Stillwater) and College Ave Old Town 1.46 26
1-95 on ramp from Stillwater Ave Orono 4.77 9
195 SB off Ramp to Stillwater Ave Orono 2.82 22
[-95 NB off ramp to Stillwater Ave Orono 3.63 9
Orono Veazie TL Orono 1.47 21

Somrce: MaineDOT Bureau of Maintenance & Operations, Traffic Engineering Division

Transportation Improvement Projects

During the 2004-2011 Statewide Transportation Improvement Programs (STIP) the
3ACTS area has supported 67 highway projects, including new highway construction,
highway reconstruction, level . 2 and 3 highway cesurtacing, highway rehabilitation,
and highway 1mprommcm5 By comparison, the STIP also provided funds for 31
intersection improvements six bridge replacements, five bike and pedestrian related, 11
public transportation and four airport miscellaneous improvement projects and four
plzmnmg studies under the non-highway elements of the transportation system

Highway pm]ects in the BACTS area comprise of one half of the projects from 2004-
2011, Highway projects also continue o iomma{r. the BACTS transportation planning
nd hudaeting ‘?u}(,e,‘,s as wvell, The ZACTS Biannual Transportation Iimprovement



Programs (BTIP) from 2006-2013 currently has 59 projects scheduled for construction.
For a complete list of all the BACTS BTIP projects see Table B.3 in Appendix B.

Carpools and Vanpools

BACTS supports and promotes GoMaine to encourage participation in a carpool and
vanpool matching program in the greater Bangor area. Matching programs have worked
well in both the greater Portland and Augusta areas, where the larger state government
work pool is available to populate the database. BACTS will continue supporting the
GoMaine rideshare program in developing routes to and from the BACTS region.

Major River Crossings

The Penobscot River runs the length of the BACTS metropolitan area. Tidal as far as the
Veazie Dam, it is crossed by three highway bridges between Bangor and Brewer. The
bridges are the Veterans Memorial Bridge on I-395, the Joshua Chamberlain Bridge on
U.S.1A/Route 9, and the Penobscot Bridge on Route 15. The twin bridges between Old
Town and Milford provide a fourth highway crossing of the Penobscot 12 miles upriver,
on U.S. 2. The Stillwater River and Kenduskeag Stream are major tributaries of the
Penobscot. Three highway bridges cross the Stillwater within the BACTS area, two in
Old Town and one in Orono. Nine bridges cross the Kenduskeag within the BACTS
area, all located in Bangor. The Kenduskeag is channeled through the downtown area to

its confluence with the Penobscot.
5.3 Deficiencies

Lack of adequate funding

There is not enough funding to address all of BACTS highway needs. The BACTS
highway inventory, as is the case at the state level, contains numerous sections of road
that do not meet the American Association of State Highway Officials (AASHTO)
national design standards. Many of the highways do not even meet reduced state
standards for drivability and safety. These sections of road are commonly referred to as
"unbuilt roads". These projects should be a priority to be improved when funding is
available. Some roadways have a higher strategic value than others in terms of traffic
volume, safety, and connectivity with other roads within the overall highway network,
As these higher-priority projects are selected for tunding, lower-priority projects
tincluding most of the collector road systemj remain as unbuilt. MaineDOT has made a
commitment towards reducing the number of unbuilt road mileage if funds become
available. Prioritization of critical projects will, however, probably remain a necessity of
the BACTS planning process over the next 20 years.

Critical Problem Areas

The followin
aroblem ares

g highway segments in the BACTS region have heen identified as critical
s. in vhich the ~urrent and predicted waffic vohimes ind land iGe demands

dready ceed ihe capabilities o (he sxasting cead desien. OF et unaddeessed, rnese

31



roadways could prove to be a hindrance to future growth and development within the
BACTS region. BACTS has identified the following highway segments, in no particular
order of priority, as those with existing problems that will require special attention during

the period 2011-2036.

¢ Stillwater Avenue:
e Intersection at the southern mall entrance and The Avenue on Stillwater
Avenue. (Highest crash rate in BACTS area, 2000-2002.)
e [-95NB on/off ramps at Exit 193 in Orono
e Narrow twin bridges over Stillwater River in Old Town
e Union Street from 14" to Griffin Road.
¢ Wilson Street (Route 1A) from Acme Road to [-395 in Brewer - (Projects to
improve the flow of traffic and update signals have been funded in the 2010-2013
Capital Work Plans)
e Cross-town connector roads between major inbound/outbound routes; e.g.,
Burleigh Road, Griffin Road.
e Intersection at Cedar & Third in Bangor
e Route 16 (Bennoch Rd.) in Orono/Old Town Route 2 to Stillwater Avenue.

¢ Route 2 in Milford

Signal Conditions

BACTS now has an up to date inventory of all the signals and currently there are many
interconnected signal systems in the BACTS region. Interconnecting and coordinating
signal systems aids in the continuous moving of vehicular traffic on the roadways by
implementing a traffic-responsive operation. This reduces delays and congestion during
both peak and non-peak travel periods. BACTS continually studies and implements
projects to interconnect and coordinate corridors within the region.

Phase | of a Signal Study was completed in 2009 which developed a plan to interconnect
and coordinate Broadway and Union Street corridors in Bangor, as well as, review the
equipment and timing plans at the Orono Main Street and Old Town Center Street
Signals. The Broadway and Union Street projects are complete and the Orono and Old
Town projects are currently under construction.

Phase 11 of this study completed in 2010, focused on the conditions of the signals in the
BACTS region. Recommendations were made and as a result of those recommendations
the Policy Commitree in the 2012-2013 BTIP approved ten projects to update signal
cquipment. Among those len were projects 1o interconnect the Penobscot Bridge
Corridor which spans the Penobscot River between Brewer and Bangor as well as update
signals along Wilson Street in Brewer so that the cormdor could then also be
interconnected and coordinated.

10-2011 BTTP a project 1o interconnect Hogzan Road in Bangor was approved
nd Seillevater Aoeane 0 2angor cas afzo nterconnectad and coordinated in 2009 a5
Sl ot centinung deselopment on that corridor.

in the 20

DU
+



54 Future Conditions and Issues

As the BACTS region grows in population and commercial development increases along
our roadways, the demand on our current highway network will also increase.
Congestion will become an issue and the condition of our roadways will become
increasingly costly to maintain. A review of past growth from 1992 to 2003 indicated that
volume of traffic was increasing significantly on our arterial roadways. Current reviews
are painting a much different picture.

Traffic no longer is increasing as it was up to 2003. Most count sites show a decrease in
traffic between 2003 and 2008. Where increases were still occurring the amounts were
very low. These decreases were occurring before the economic recession began and were
probably connected to increased fuel costs. There is also evidence that further decreases
have taken place since the 2008 count numbers were released.

5.5 Recommendations

The BACTS Policy and Technical Committees have identified several strategies to
improve the highway network in the BACTS area as listed below.

Traffic Volume:

¢ Advocate for improvements to the I-95 corridor recommended in the recently
completed [-95 study.

* Continue to advocate for reconstruction of the narrow twin bridges over Stillwater
River in Old Town

» Continue to improve capacity and efficiency on Wilson Street (Route 1A) from
Acme Road to I-395 in Brewer.

¢ Continue to improve Route 1A in Hampden southerly to Route 9.

* Advocate for construction improvements to I-95 on/off ramps at Exit 193 in
Orono as recommended in previous studies.

» Continue to improve Route 2 in from the Penobscot River Bridge project
northerly in Milford.

> Continue to improve Route 16 (Bennoch Rd.) in Orono/Old Town from Route 2
to Stillwater Avenue.

> Continue to work with Maine DOT to investigate possible safety improvements at
the Cedar & Third intersection in Bangor

> Work with Maine DOT 1o nvestigate possible safety improvements at hoth the
southern mall entrance and the 1-95 ramp intersections on Stillwater Avenue in
Bangor.

> Advocate for construction improvements to 1-95 on/off ramps at [Fxit 193 in
Orono as recommended in previous studies,

© BACTS should conduct a study of Union Street in Bangor o address the impact

inereased colume and commereial develapment along the ~oridor,



e Recommendations outlined in recent corridor studies should be implemented as

funds become available and as appropriate.
Work to improve cross-town connector roads between major inbound/outbound

routes in Bangor such as Burleigh Road and Gritfin Road.

Truck Volume:

e BACTS should continue to advocate an increased weight limit on Maine’s
interstate system to reduce heavy truck traffic on our minor arterial and collector

roads.

Traffic Signals:

¢ BACTS should continue to study signal coordination, phasing/timings along all

major corridors in the region.

e The Traffic Signal Committee for BACTS should, continue to maintain the
equipment inventory, review standardization of equipment and implement a
maintenance plan for all signals within the region.

e BACTS should conduct a study to review and plan for a central traffic signal

operations center.



6.0 Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation

6.1.  Introduction

Residents of the BACTS area, like many urban areas across the country, are becoming
increasingly conscious of the importance of creating a more livable and sustainable
community. In order to reach this goal, communities are developing plans to outline ideas
for improving mobility. People are beginning to look for alternative modes of travel as
the price of gasoline increases and the awareness of the environmental effects of motor
vehicle travel increases. It is important for urban areas to provide adequate facilities for
non-motorized travel.

BACTS has made a commitment to develop a multi-modal transportation system. This
chapter is consistent with the requirements of the federal Safe, Accountable, F lexible, and
Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU) legislation, the
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and the Maine Department of Transportation
(MaineDOT). This chapter encourages and supports safety and security for bicycle and
pedestrian travel. The plan will preserve and enhance the existing transportation
infrastructure. In practice, this means worki g to create an environment in which it is
easy to choose walking and bicycling as a means of transportation.

Most of this chapter is taken from the “BAC IS Long Range Transportation Plan Update:
Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation” report produced in June 2009. The entire report
can be viewed on the BACTS website at: www.bactsmpo.org.

6.2.  Existing Conditions

6.2.1 Pedestrian and Bicycle Crash Data

The BACTS 2005 Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan included an analysis of crash report data
from 1994 to 1999 to better determine the circumstances surrounding bicycle and
pedestrian crashes in the BACTS area. For that time period, there were 129 reported
highway crashes involving pedestrians and 95 crashes involving bicycles in greater
Bangor. According to MaineDOT, there were 101 bicycle related crashes including 1
fatality and 168 pedestrian related crashes including 12 fatalities in Penobscot County
between 2004 and 2009,

.22 Pedestrian Facilities

Fhe 1996 BACTS Pedestrian Plan nventoried and mapped existing roads with sidewalks
throughout BACTS. The sidewalk inventory was updated town by town in 2000 and
1004, In 2009, BACTS staff completed a sidewalk inventory which includes the
sidewalks within 3/4 mile of the current BAT bus routes. This 2009 Long Range Plan
update incorporates the previous information into the current, GIS based BAT stdewalk
HVENLOTY. the wupdated data serves as the hase for the pedesirian factlity

esmmendanions ineluded in this Plan,



6.2.3 Destinations

The 1996 plan included “Desire Lines” map which indicated the most important routes
that local residents were interested in traversing via bicycle or on foot. The map was
meant to track the links between origins and destinations for bicyclists and pedestrians.
This map is still relevant due to the development of medical and office buildings near the
intersection of Wilson Avenue and [-395 in Brewer.

6.2.4. On-Road Bicycle Facilities

The 1996 Plan included recommendations for on-road regional bicycle routes. The 2009
update adds existing trails highlighted in other local or regional studies. It also included
an accurate evaluation by on-the-ground cycling of the majority of the BACTS primary
and secondary bicycle routes to determine their current condition. The updated data
serves as the base for the bicycle facility recommendations included in the BACTS Long
Range Transportation Plan Update: Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation

6.2.5 Off-Road Bicycle Facilities

Off-road facilities, or shared use paths, are separate paths for bicycles and pedestrians
that are at least ten-foot wide with a surface that is ADA compliant. Shared use paths are
best used to serve areas that are not served by streets. Placing shared use paths adjacent
to roadways is only advisable where there are no driveways that need to cross the path
and the adjacent roadway is not readily appropriate for use by bicyclists. Shared use
paths should provide special routes for bicyclists and pedestrians that are not available on

the existing roadway system.

6.2.6 Intermodal Connections

Pedestrians and bicyclists can expand their transportation range and options greatly by
connecting with other modes such as public transit. Public transit in the Bangor Area, via
the BAT, offers convenience for pedestrians and bicyclists by providing simplified fares,
university-subsidized, and monthly-discount ride passes; multiple routes to popular
commuter and shopping destinations; wheelchair access; and bicycle racks on the front of
cach bus. BACTS municipalities and area businesses have begun to provide downtown
bicyele racks to accommodate more bike-and-walk trips.

63 Deficiencies

5.1 Current Conditions

While there has been much progress in making the BACTS area more bicycle and
pedestrian friendly over the past seven years. there are still areas or situations where
Jeficiencies exist in the regional system. The following pages outline noted deticiencies
'n these svstems.  The BACTS 2009 Bicyele and Pedesirian Plan update notes the

ilowing deficienctzs ithin the BRACTS area:



6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.4

Sidewalks

Many sidewalks are not yet ADA compliant, as noted in a recent BACTS
sidewalk inventory study related to pedestrian access to the BAT system.
Sidewalks are nonexistent on at least one side of many urban streets.

Several key lengths of sidewalks that are important to the regional system of
pedestrian facilities are nonexistent.

Crosswalks are missing or difficult to see at the majority of intersections in the
BACTS Area.

Several BACTS roads continue to decline in their ability to accommodate
pedestrians, as restriping, intersection improvements, or other modifications
remove or limit existing shoulders or facilities.

Shoulders and [anes

High volume traffic routes with or without curbed sections and no or minimal
striped shoulders such as Stillwater Ave. between the [-95 ramp and the Maine
Mall or Hogan Road in Bangor.

Broken and potholed pavement at shoulder or roadbed areas.

On-street parking with less than four feet between parked vehicles or parking
stripes and the edge of the travel lane.

Non Bicycle safe catch basin rims, poor grading around catch basins, or other
uneven utility covers in bicycle lanes.

Bridges

Nearly all river and interstate bridges create conflicts or barriers to bicycles, due
to insufficient shoulders or bike lanes, deteriorating bridge deck surface, or poor
bridge deck joints, coupled with heavy vehicular use and/or poor pavement
conditions.

Poor bridge conditions for bicyclist have a compounding effect of potentially
putting cyclists on sidewalks which creates a significant and very real pedestrian

hazard.
Intersections

Many mtersections are riot yet ADA compliant for pedestrians.

Most intersections do not have visible or well striped crosswalks or stop bars (See
1lso Sidewalks, above).

Many intersections routinely reduce or eliminate paved shoulders by the addition
of turning lanes without providing signage or directions alerting bicyclists and
motorists that they need to share the road through the intersection.

Few intersections contain bike lane markings, lane striping or advance bike lane
signage to alert motorists to the potential tor cvelists within intersections.

clost signalized intersecdons o aot have wdeapes bicsele latectors, sensors

Shich can be sorbvarad be Biovotes,

~d



6.1.5

6.4

Bangor in particular, contains a number of wide streets (36 to 42 feet wide or
greater) and wide intersections which do not contain center medians as “refuge
islands” or audible pedestrian signals to encourage safe use by pedestrians.

Community Linkages

Neighborhoods are not fully connected to desirable destinations, such as schools,
businesses, public services, recreational facilities, or other neighborhoods via

adequate bicycle and pedestrian facilities.
Signage

Very few directional or informational signs are oriented to serve bicyclists or
pedestrians on both on-road and off-road facilities.

Almost no regional bicycle routes or facilities are signed to alert bicyclist or
motorists to their existence.

There are few, if any, “Share the Road” signs in the BACTS Area.

Many intersections lack signage alerting motorists to the need to yield to
pedestrians in crosswalks when making turns.

Maintenance

Maintenance of bicycle and pedestrian facilities does not seem to be given equal
priority with roadway maintenance for motorists, creating safety and accessibility
issue for users.

Roadway pavement edges are not always smooth or level with the adjacent
shoulder area. Roadway shoulders are often filled with gravel, sand, broken glass,
or other debris creating safety issues for bicyclists and pedestrians.

Future Conditions and [ssues

National and local trends both indicate greater interest in walking and bicycling as a
transportation mode. This increase can be expected to create additional issues and
demands for BACTS and its member communities, including:

emand for good pedestrian and bicycle facilities, particularly otf-road shared
tse paths outstrips supply;

Continued need for adding or retrofitting ADA compliant traffic signal actuation
and pedestrian phase indicators; and

The need to provide more bicycle and pedestrian amenities, such as longer
pedestrian signal phases, tratfic islands, wide paved roadway shoulders or bicycle
lanes. or sidewalk benches in order to enhance economic development and make
BACTS communities more livable.

Cecommendarions

[l



Based on the identified deficiencies and anticipated future conditions as discussed above,
BACTS staff, local municipalities, not-for profit groups and others can pursue the
following strategies to address existing deficiencies and future needs for walking and

bicycling.

The following recommendations are typically for BACTS and its member municipalities,
but many can equally apply to not-for-profit organizations, advocacy groups, private
businesses, or individuals. The complete BACTS Long Range Transportation Plan
Update: Bicycle and Pedestrian T ransportation can be found at www.bactsmpo.org. The
recommendations are numbered to make identification of specific recommendations

easier.

Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety

e Identify high pedestrian or bicycle crash locations and help in the development of
information on how to reduce crash rates either by design or education.

* Identify and address crosswalk deficiencies at intersections.

¢ Maintain sidewalks and road shoulders throughout the year to minimize safety
and accessibility problems.

* Add “Share the Road” signage.

* Recommend the use of Maine’s interstate funding to improve bicycle and
pedestrian mobility at problematic off-ramp locations, such as the Hogan Road

overpass.

Bicycle/Pedestrian Facilities

¢ Add appropriate bicycle and pedestrian accommodations to roadways when
undertaking repaving, upgrading, or reconstruction projects.

» Support regional efforts to create a willing-buyer, willing-seller multi-user path
along the old Veazie Railroad bed from Bangor to Orono.

> Add sidewalks to existing roadways where either current or latent pedestrian
rratfic demand exists.

» Create wider paved shoulders or bicycle lanes on existing roadways by restriping
where ihere is now adequate pavement width and either current or latent bicycle
traffic demand exists.

Intersections

> Upgrade signals at intersections with significant pedestrian iraffic 10 include
wpropriate pedestrian phases and signalizarion.



Education Programs

o Support Commute Another Way Week, “Safe Routes to School” initiatives and
Walk to School/Bike to School events.

Complete Streets

e FEncourage member municipalities and MaineDOT to routinely provide
appropriate accommodations for bicyclists and pedestrians on roadway projects.

Maps

e Work with Creater Bangor Convention and Visitors Bureau (GBCVB),
MaineDOT and others to develop a regional bicycle map to promote more
bicycling within the BACTS area and to encourage more tourist economic activity

based on bicycling.

Funding and Grant Writing

e Advocate and look for greater funding from a wider array of sources for bicycle
and pedestrian transportation improvements at the federal, state, and local level.

e Assist communities with funding applications to provide bicycle-pedestrian

facilities.
e Provide information on successful grant writing for use by member communities.

Bike Support Facilities

e Encourage installation of more bicycle racks and sidewalk benches, at municipal
and business properties particularly in downtown locations, in public gathering
spaces, and intermodal facilities.

Signage

o Provide easy to understand bicycle route signage along regional and local on-road
bicycle facilities.

Intermodal Connections

, Address the accessibility issues noted in the BACTS Sidewalk Assessment for
sidewalks within 4 mile of a BAT line.



7.0 Air Transportation

7.1 Existing Conditions

7.1.1 Bangor International Airport

Bangor International Airport (BGR) offers domestic air service to the region and serves
as a transit point for commercial and international flights. The Airport is also home to
the 101* Maine National Guard Air Refueling wing. BGR is strategically located on the
Great Circle Northern Route with easy access to the Northeastern United States and
Eastern Canada via Interstate 95, other major highways, rail service, and a deep water
port. BGR is the closest full service US airport to Europe with fuel and customs services
available 24 hours a day, seven days a week. The airport, known as a world class
transatlantic facility, has all weather access, CAT III, ILS, an 11,440 foot runway, and is

capable of handling any aircraft flying today.

BGR provides refueling, aircraft servicing, passenger and cargo services, and all transit
needs for passenger, cargo, military and corporate flights. Bangor is one of the leading
airports for business tech stops in the North Atlantic market.

As the aviation industry is very volatile, BGR will continue to face challenges based
upon economic and demographic conditions. While traffic at many airports has
decreased, BGR actually experienced an increase in passenger traffic post 9-11, with
388,681 enplanements in 2009. Due to the recent economic downturn, however, BGR
passenger traffic levels decreased 11 percent. The Airport continues to work to entice
arrlines to serve Bangor and attempts to maintain a balance between low cost service to
leisure destinations and convenient access to major hubs which provide connectivity

worldwide.

Recent capital improvements at Bangor International Airport include runway
rehabilitation, ramp and apron resurfacing, and construction of a secondary containment
facility for fuel trucks totaling $17 million. Currently, the Domestic Arrivals Terminal is
undergoing a $2.9 million expansion project to enhance passenger amenities and airline

operations.

The FAA provides about $8 million annually to Maine for airport improvement purposes.
FAA funds are administered by MDOT. and are made available on a 95/2.5/2.5
{tederal/state/local) percentage matching basis. Since 1969, the State of Maine has
approved bond issues every two years to provide the match for FAA funds, and to
support engineering studies for future airport Improvement projects.

BGR hosts a Foreign Trade Zone that consists of a 33 acre on-airport complex containing
a central import processing building. [here are 25 acres of industrial lots located within
the Zone. The site includes 29.000 square feet of heated warehouse or light
manufacturing space.



In 2004, MDOT completed Phase I of the Aviation Systems Plan. This Plan includes a
detailed examination of airport facilities and needs, and an analysis and projection of
overall system needs over the next 20 years. The Aviation Systems Plan serves as a guide
to MDOT’s airport investment decisions.

7.1.2 Dewitt Field (Old Town Municipal Airport)

Dewitt Field is a general aviation airport (no scheduled passenger service) owned by the
City of Old Town. The airport is located on about 360 acres of land on the north end of
Marsh Island. The airport's primary runway is 3,600 feet in length and 100 feet in width,
and the secondary runway measures 3,200 feet in length by 100 feet in width. In 2009,
there were over 22,000 flight operations and 47 aircraft based at the airport. The Maine
Forest Service is headquartered at Dewitt Field and has its own seaplane base located on
the Penobscot River adjacent to the airport. The current MDOT Systems Plan indicates
DeWitt Field will not reach its full operating capacity within the next 20 years.

7.2 Future Conditions and Issues

Economy

The region’s economy poses challenges to sustaining profitable commercial air service
operations. The seasonality of BGR's air service demand causes air service providers to
discontinue flights during off-season. BGR's busiest times reflects summer, autumn, and
mid-winter tourist seasons with lower demand during the "shoulder seasons." Airlines
find it difficult to schedule additional flights during times of peak demand.

Flight Ratios

BGR’s ratio of pleasure vs. business passengers is not appealing to air service providers.
While airlines are attracted to a ratio of 85 percent business travelers and 15 percent
leisure travelers, BGR's traific consists of 75 percent leisure and 25 percent business
passengers. A major conference center located in Bangor and the resulting increase in
business related passengers to the Bangor area (via BGR) would make BGR more

attractive to air service providers.

Intermodal Connectivity

RGR lacks intermodal connectivity to many of the region's tourist attractions. Direct
iransportation connections zt BGR, via rail or bus, o rourist destinations such as (\cadia,
Sugarloaf, the Mooschead area, and Baxter State Park would make BGR much more
marketable, thus attracting additional air service providers. Passenger rail service to
Bangor. restoration of the Calais Branch with a connection at BGR. and regional bus
service at BGR would allow tourists to tly into BGR and immediately board a bus or train
to their favorite destination.

Teeceauladon



De-regulation continues to be a significant factor in limiting rural service. Airlines tend to
withdraw from smaller non-hub airports and cities and seek out larger revenue producing

airports.

7.3 Recommendations
e Promote and support the construction of a major conference center in Bangor
which will make BGR more attractive to air service providers.

» Explore the feasibility of developing a containerized inland port, or intermodal
facility, near BGR or Northern Maine Junction and supported by future port
expansion at Searsport.

¢ Conduct a study to determine the feasibility of developing air cargo services at
BGR for niche markets such as Maine lobster.



8.0 Rail Transportation

8.1 Existing Conditions

The paper industry is the principal customer of the railroads in Maine, followed by other
forest products industries. According to the Association of American Railroads (AAR),
pulp and paper products are the top commodities originating in Maine and transported by
rail followed by wood products, petroleum, chemicals, waste and scrap, and other. Total
tonnage of goods hauled by Maine’s railroads continues to decline, as is the case
nationally. Two rail systems, Pan AM Railways and Montreal, Maine, and Atlantic
(MMA), which provides freight rail connections to Canada and the remainder of the
United States, serve the BACTS area.

Pan Am Railways. The largest regional railroad in Maine is Pan Am Railways (formerly
Guildford Industries) which owns three railroad companies operating in Maine: the
Boston and Maine Corporation, the Maine Central Railroad Company, and the
Springfield Terminal Railway Company, which operates the rights-of-way of the other
two companies. The Boston and Maine line extends from the New Hampshire border to
Portland, where it connects with the Maine Central line.

The Maine Central and the Springfield Central lines (Guilford Industries) extend from
Portland, through Waterville, through Northem Maine Junction in Hermon, then through
the BACTS area (along the Penobscot River in Bangor, Orono, Old Town), Lincoln, and
Mattawamkeag. Springfield Central serves the James River paper mill in Old Town. The
line crosses the Penobscot River from Bangor into Brewer where a branch line extends
down to the Verso paper mill in Bucksport. A second rail line, known as the Calais
Branch and now owned by the State of Maine, extends from Brewer to Calais. The
Calais Branch has been inactive since 1985 and MaineDOT has proposed several options
for the line’s reuse including freight and passenger rail traffic, bus service, and a
recreational trail for hikers, bikers, and snowmobiles.  The Calais Branch east of
Ellsworth has been converted to a multi-use trail while a portion of the line west of
Ellsworth is being leased by the Downeast Scenic Railroad for excursion trips.

Typical products hauled by Pan Am for the paper mills include finished paper rolls, clay,
tapioca, chlorine, and other chemicals.

Vontreal, Muaine, und Atlantic Railroad. The Montreal, Maine, and Atlantic Railroad
iMMA) extends from the Mack Point pier facility in Searsport to Northern Maine
Junction in Hermon (located just west of Bangor International Airport), ihrough the
northwestern comer of Bangor north to the Millinocket area and Aroostook County.
VIMA hauls coal, salt. chemicals and petroleum to the BACTS area, Northern Maine
Junction, the paper mills in Bucksport and East Millinocket, and north to Aroostook

County destinations.

Ruadway bridge heighrs along the rail line are high 2nough so as to permit double
cacking of shipping containers on the “IMA milroad from Searsport. through MNorthem

e Dopcden and on to T fopteeal cad sestern B0 and Canadian morkers. This ool




corridor is the only rail connection with a Maine port that has double stack capacity. The
rail line has no clearance restrictions as the clear zone is 16 feet wide throughout the

corridor.

Currently, there is one train per day in the corridor. Although, the rail line itself could
handle more freight movements, rail traffic is metered by the rate at which warehousing
and oil tanks can handle the commodities.

MMA filed a Notice of Intent in October 2010 to abandon 233 miles of its track in
northern Maine between Millinocket and Madawaska. MMA cited financial losses along
this section of track as the primary reason for the abandonment request. The State of
Maine proposed purchasing the track to avoid a disruption in rail service to the northern
Maine and the resulting impacts to the economy. The State completed the purchase
agreement and will be leasing the track to New Brunswick Southern Railway to operate

the line after July 2011.

There are no passenger rail facilities located in or serving the BACTS area.

8.2 Future Trends and Issues

¢ MMA railroad is receiving an increasing number of grade crossing requests
throughout the state. Additional grade crossings create operational and safety hazards
and increases the railroad’s maintenance costs.

» The railroad bridge (owned by Pan Am Railways) crossing the Penobscot River
between Bangor and Brewer is in poor condition. The bridge should be replaced and
realigned. The bridge approach is from the north, or upriver side, and trains
originating downriver at Northern Maine Junction and bound for Brewer and
Bucksport must travel upriver of the bridge on the Bangor side and then run
backwards to cross the river. The situation is reversed when traveling in the opposite

direction.

* The railroad companies have limited capital to invest in needed improvements to rail
beds, rails, ballast, etc.

> The BACTS area lacks trackage rights to a short section of track on the Calais Branch
in Brewer.

» the BACTS area lacks passenger rail service between Portland and Bangor.

» Lack of coordination at private, local. state, and federal levels when utilities and
roadways cross railroad corridors.

3.3 Recommendations

voonerss s and ool

e e e I O Y |
S o D S E T S S AU R T Ta L



should be identified so as to prevent a reversion back to abutting landowners thus
threatening their use for transportation purposes.



9.0 Marine Transportation

9.1 Existing Conditions

Penobscot Bay and River. Historically, the Penobscot River played a key role in shaping
the development of central and eastern Maine. Beginning in the late 1700s, the river was
used to provide transportation to the region, to power sawmills, and to float and boom
logs used in the 1800s in the lumber and ship-building industries. The river was later
used to generate power and support pulp and paper mills as well as other industries.
Settlement patterns of the corridor communities along the Penobscot reflect the
importance of the river to their respective historical economies.

The importance of the River to the economy of the region has declined significantly in
recent years as the movement of fuel, raw materials and products have moved away from
Maine’s coast and inland rivers to trucks, rail lines, and pipelines. There is no passenger
marine service and minimal commercial marine transportation in the corridor other than
occasional asphalt and petroleum barge shipments. However, new manufacturing
opportunities have arisen in Brewer that may return the Penobscot River to its status as a
vital transportation asset linking eastern Maine communities to world markets.

Pilotage is required in both the Penobscot Bay and Penobscot River for foreign vessels
and U.S. vessels under register in the foreign trade, with a draft of nine feet or more.
Large vessels bound for upriver usually take a tug to assist in making the turns and in
docking. Five tugs are available in Belfast for such assistance.

The Penobscot River's controlling depth in the marked channel is 13 feet between
Winterport and Bangor. Buoys, day-beacons, and a lighted buoy to a point about 1.5
miles downstream of Brewer mark the channel. The head of navigation for commercial
vessels is immediately downstream of the Joshua Chamberlain Bridge, while smaller
recreational vessels can travel to a point about one mjle upstream of the Penobscot
Bridge. Ice impedes but usually does not prevent navigation above Winterport for nearly
5 months of the year, beginning around December. The river is kept free of ice to a point
just upstream of the [-395 Veterans Remembrance Bridge by a Coast Guard icebreaker.
However, the Coast Guard has suggested that future ice-breaking operations may be
limited, or may cease altogether due to declining commercial marine traffic upstream of

the Bucksport area.

The City of Bangor has asked the Army Corp of Engineers (ACOFE) (o0 conduct cither
maintenance or improvement dredging in the Penobscot River from Bucksport to the
Joshua Chamberlain Bridge between Brewer and Bangor. The river, last dredged in
[985, has an authorized channel depth of 22 feet from Bucksport to Winterport, 15 feet
from Hampden to Brewer, and 14 feet at Bangor. However, numerous areas in the
channel have shoaled over the years to depths shallower than the authorized depth. The
Sucksport-Winterport channel is now only 18 feet in depth and the Bangor channel is

wlv 11 et in depth. Bangor has commissioned 3 frasthility study chat compares the

et of erfosrming maintenance Aredzng Cecrurmiag he coer annel o whorzed

47



depths) to improvement dredging (deepening the river channel to depths greater than the
authorized depth). The feasibility study has determined that there is no overwhelming
need for improvement dredging and that maintenance dredging will accommodate the
type and frequency of future marine tratfic expected on the Penobscot River.

9.1.1 Existing Marine Facilities

The Port at Mack Point, Searsport

There are two marine terminal facilities at the port at Mack Point, Searsport. The
Sprague Energy Pier, following its extensive reconstruction completed in 2003, is 615
feet long with a berth of 850 feet and a draft of 37 feet at mean low water. The Maine
Port Authority Pier is 8§00 feet long and 100 feet wide, with a ship berth on both sides.
The pier can accommodate vessels with a draft 32 feet at mean low water on the western
side of the pier, and 40 feet on the eastern side. The construction of 90,000 square feet of
warehousing is currently underway. Much of the cargo shipped by rail from Searsport
passes through the corridor, as the Montreal, Maine, and Atlantic (MMA) railroad and
Maine Central Railroad (MCR) pass through Bangor and Brewer. Raw logs, once
shipped by truck from northern Maine to sawmills in Searsmont, are now shipped via rail
to Mack Point. The logs are then transloaded onto trucks for the last 15 miles to the
Searsmont sawmill. This transloading from rail to truck has reduced the overall number
of trucks as they travel from northern Maine forests to Searsmont for processing.

The majority of the products shipped through the Mack Point port consist of petroleum,
road salt, and products used by area paper mills. However, more and more fuel suppliers
are concentrating their storage facilities at Mack Point and utilizing trucks to distribute
petroleum products to Maine households and businesses. The Sprague Energy terminal
handles over 10 million barrels of gasoline and fuel oil annually and supplies most of the
heating fuel needs of central and northern Maine.

Sears [sland, Searsport

Sears Island is an undeveloped 941 acre 1sland located in Searsport at the northern part of
Penobscot Bay. The island is currently owned by the MaineDOT, who, in anticipation of
developing a cargo port on the island, constructed a causeway in the 1980’s providing
coad access between Sears Island and US Route 1 on the mainland.

The Sears island Planning Initiative, sponsored by the State of Maine and the Town of
Searsport, is a planning process that includes Maine state agencies, Searsport,
ransportation and industrial interests. conservation organizations, und interested citizens.
As part of this process, these entities have formed the Joint Use Planning Committee, a
sroup representing a broad range of interests and perspectives, which is charged with
planning for the future of Sears Island. In carly 2008, the group signed onto a Consensus
Agreement whereby 341 acres will be reserved for the development of a cargo port and
he remaining GO0 acres will be permanently set aside for conservation, education and

el



Exxon-Mobil Oil Corporation

Exxon-Mobil maintains a privately owned petroleum facility located in Bangor. The
facility includes an earth-filled timber crib bulkhead with a gravel deck approximately 30
feet wide and 40 feet long, nine storage tanks, two tanks for storing additives and a
single-story building used as an office and warehouse. The Exxon-Mobil facility
receives its gasoline, heating oil, diesel, and kerosene via a pipeline from South Portland
and, while maintaining the capability to accommodate barges as a contingency measure,
seldom uses its pier for shipping or receiving petroleum products.

Pike Industries

Pike Industries is a privately owned liquid asphalt supply facility that includes one 700
foot pier, seven medium sized storage tanks, office, and boiler building. The storage
tanks are used to store liquid asphalt, a petroleum product used in the production of
highway asphalt. Pike Industries receives its asphalt products via barge.

Webber Energy Fuels

Webber Energy operates a privately owned petroleum facility, located in Bangor,
includes a steel and concrete dock 30 feet wide by 40 feet long, 11 storage tanks and an
office building. Webber receives the majority of its petroleum products via pipeline
originating in South Portland. Fuel is occasionally delivered by barge to the Bangor

Webber facility.

Bangor Public Landing

The Bangor Public Landing is a publicly owned facility that includes a dock for
recreational vessels and three floating docks with steel ramps, a harbormaster’s office,
public restrooms, drinking water, and parking. The landing is located in Bangor’s
riverfront park immediately downstream of the Joshua Chamberlain Bridge.

Cold Brook Energy

Cold Brook Energy is a privately owned petroleum facility located in Hampden that
includes a 207 by 30” dock and nine storage tanks. Cold Brook Energy receives its diesel
fuel, heating oil, and kerosene via pipeline from South Portland but maintains a docking
facility for occasional barge deliveries.

Vurtle Head Marina

furtle Head Marina, a public boat launch facility for recreational vessels. is located off
Route 1A in Hampden, near the intersection of the Coldbrook Road and Route 1A, The
facility includes a paved boat launch ramp. ten 6'x10 finger floats. 60 parking spaces

and 1 piente area. Fuel. ice, water. take-out {ood. additional moorings and marine

applies and repatrs e veatlable at an adiscent privately coned marina,

14



Dead River Company

Dead River operates a privately owned petroleum facility located in Brewer that includes
a timber crib dock approximately 30 feet wide by 40 feet long, five storage tanks, and an
office building. Dead River receives the majority of its heating oil, diesel fuel, and
kerosene via truck originating from their Bucksport terminal facility. Dead River
maintains a pier for the occasional barge delivery.

Eastern Manufacturing Facility

Cianbro, a heavy industrial and civil engineering construction company, has redeveloped
the former Eastern Fine Paper mill site into a modular construction facility. The Eastern
Manufacturing Facility features a deep water bulkhead that will accommodate large
ocean-going barges for transporting 1,000 ton modules for industrial process plants.
Cianbro is also constructing a smaller commercial dock system located immediately
upriver of the deep water bulkhead which will be available to meet the marine shipping

needs of other BACTS area businesses.

Ferries

There is no public or privately operated ferry service within the corridor. The Maine
State Ferry Service provides ferry service to major islands in Penobscot Bay.

9.2 Future Conditions and Issues

Commercial marine traffic continues to decline along the Penobscot River. Terminal
operators indicate that, although they desire to maintain commercial marine facilities
along the river, they receive the vast majority of their products via pipeline. Commercial
marine traffic may become more viable once the Penobscot River receives maintenance
dredging to restore the navigation channels to historic depths.

The port at Mack Point, Searsport, having recently undergone major renovation and
improvements, will continue to be the major coastal port for eastern, central, and northern
Maine. MDOT anticipates that tapioca, utilized as a modified food starch and a thickener
for paper manufacturing, will be added to the list of commodities shipped inbound to the
port at Mack Point. Port officials have indicated, however, that the approach channel to
the port has shoaled over which prevents vessels from entering or leaving the facility

cxcept at high tide.

Recreational marine traffic is increasing in the BACTS area due primarily to improved
dockage facilities and increased mooring space. The present river depth of 11 feet at low
water is adequate for most recreational vessels. Bangor and Brewer are both proposing
waterfront redevelopment plans that will improve opportunities for recreational boating
and passenger ferry opportunities.

The Uity of Rangor eveas about ane mile of Penobseot River frontage svhich =xtends

i the onilience of the cenduskeag smanm aed the Penobseot Clicer o imiadiarets

0



upstream of the [-396 Veterans Remembrance Bridge. This property includes a public
boat landing and docking facilities. Bangor has designated this river frontage for
redevelopment with commercial and recreational uses. Plans tentatively call for
expansion of the existing recreational marina facility, a hotel, a convention center, and
walking paths along the shorefront. No industrial land uses are planned for this area.

The City of Brewer also plans to redevelop its river frontage between the Penobscot
Bridge and the south Brewer. Brewer is proposing several components to the park
including paths for walking and biking, a river museum, a recreational day use boating
pier, a commercial pier, and a parking plaza that will accommodate automobiles and
bicycles. The commercial pier may provide docking for Coast Guard vessels during ice
breaking activities over the winter months.

93 Recommendations

¢ Support improvements to Mack Point, Searsport such as dredging of the approach
channel to the port. Port operations are hampered by shallow water depth requiring
deep draft vessels to enter and leave the port facility during high tide.

* BACTS should support the City of Bangor in its efforts to encourage deep draft
vessel traffic on the Penobscot River by dredging the Penobscot River.

¢ BACTS should encourage MaineDOT to study the feasibility of constructing an
intermodal facility at the Bangor waterfront.



10.0 Financial Issues

10.1

Existing Conditions

SAFETEA-LU requires this Long-Range Plan to be fiscally restrained so that it proposes
only projects that have a chance of being funded based on projected revenues over the
next twenty years. Table 10-1 summarizes project funding levels and sources covering
the last four BACTS’ Capital Work Plans (CWP). Amounts are in 2011 dollars and are

not corrected for inflation.

Table 10-1 BACTS Project Funding Levels for Capital Works Plans 2006-2013

Capital Work Plans

Biennial 20-Year
‘Revenue Source | 2006-2007 | 2008-2009 | 2010-2011 | 2012-2013* Average Estimate
STP/NHS $3,371,079 185,990,686 36,444,190  $4311,217 85,268,652 $52,686,517
Interstate Maint. [$264,839  $11,510,149 $1,957,253  $13,528 $4,577,414 $45,774,137
Quality
Community $535,200 $178,400 $1,784,000
Safety $278,550 $225,450 $92,850 $928,500
State 5222581 152,014,940 51,461,367  $859,729 $1,232,963 $12,329,027
ocal/other $343,968  $2,772,757  $1,020,168  $188,263 $1,378,964 $13,789,643
Bridge $5,203,438 1$1,020,602 $801,457 $2,341,832 $23,418,323
JHigh Priority $649,208 $216,403 £2,164,027
Transit
IMPO Planning 118,411 103,824 142,241 142,710 $121,492 $1,214,920
Federal Urban 1,561,875 1,612,205 1,627,171 1,647,575 $1,600,417 $16,004,170
State 109,924 251,955 277,873 87,860 $213,251 $2,132,507
Local 889,139 999,547 1,274,255 1,661,510 $1,054,314 $10,543,137
Other 1,102,969 11,560,225 1,711,565 2,126,009 51,458,253 514,582,530
Total $13,188,223 1$27,836,890 318,180,498 $11,263.851 817,617,366 ySI 76,173,633

¥ The FY 2012-2013hus not been completed und therefore not used in the average or 20 yeuar zstimate

columns.,

Airport and railroad projects are not included in this table. Those projects will be funded
through Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), the Federal Ratlroad Administration
(FRA). and sources other than FTA and FHWA. The level of funding for those projects
is determined on a statewide basis by MaineDOT. However. BACTS controls the
silocation to projects of part of the STP and transit funds.

Y -

Cene onditiions aid Cisues

T




MaineDOT determines the amount of STP/NHS funding allocated to collector and
arterial projects in the MPO area while BACTS determines which projects receive
funding. CWP details, such as the number of projects submitted and their value, are
presented in Table 10-2. The majority of these projects are resurfacing and intersection

improvements.
Table 10-2 BACTS STP/NHS Funding
# of projects
submitted by # of BACTS
BACTS Value of Prajects Value of BACTS
Capital municipalities these accepted in STP/NHS
Work Plan | for submitted | that year’s projects accepted
Year consideration projects CwWp in CWP
2006-2007 42 $15,989,479 12 $5,426,000
2008-2009 33 $7,106,000 12 $3,212,438
2010-2011 38 $17,361,538 11 $4,940,300
2012-2013 42 $12,658,363 21 $4,940,300*

* Estimated amount. Federal legislation not complete at this time.

MaineDOT’s long range plan, “Connecting Maine: Maine's Long Range Transportation
Plan” states, “Construction-cost inflation and significant increases in energy costs have
also reduced the purchasing power of the motor-fuels tax. The cost of construction
materials has significantly outpaced the rate of consumer inflation, due to increased
asphalt and fuel costs plus worldwide demand for construction materials.” MaineDOT’s
long range plan goes on to say “As alternative fuels and more efficient vehicles come into
greater use, motor-fuel tax revenues will be a less viable option to support transportation
improvements. While these changes create cost savings for motorists and benefit the
environment by reducing greenhouse gas emissions, they also create reduced revenues

needed for transportation financing.”

The amount of funding allocated by MaineDOT to BACTS over the past eight years is
about 35 percent of the amount for projects submitted by the municipalities for
consideration. The municipal list of essential projects would be much greater if more
funding were available. The municipalities submit only those projects that are most in
need of repair and that have a chance of rating high enough for possible selection for
funding. Projects ihat go unfunded either: 1) continue to deteriorate further, resulting in
cven higher reconstruction costs; or 2) force municipalities to pay 100 percent of
rzconstruction costs instead of typical local match amounts (0 to 15 percent) needed for
state and federally funded projects.

10.3  Recommendations

The BACTS Policy and Technical Committees have identitied the following
cecommendations:

P
(e



BACTS will seek increased funding for construction projects in the BACTS arca
from any possible funding sources including MaineDOT, FHWA, FTA, Federal
delegation high priority projects, research funding sources and grant sources.
BACTS will work with the state legislature to support the protection and integrity
of Maine’s Highway Fund.

BACTS will continue to optimize capacity in the existing system before
increasing capacity through road building activities, using TDM and TSM.
BACTS will investigate ways to leverage federal dollars using an equitable mix of
state and local tunds.

BACTS will work to develop and implement a regional transportation process
that produces cost savings through regionalization.

BACTS will work with MaineDOT to seek innovative techniques for
transportation projects to extend project life.



11.0  Climate Change, Livability, Sustainability and Transportation Operations

I1.1 Introduction

As more scientific evidence supports the climate change phenomenon, various groups in
the public and private sectors are paying more attention to its long-term harmful effects
on both the natural and human environment. SAFETEA-LU requires Metropolitan
Planning Organizations (MPO) to consult with State and local resource agencies when
developing long-range statewide or metropolitan transportation plans and to include a
discussion of potential activities to mitigate the effects of climate change. The potential
to carry out these mitigation activities also needs to be identified.

In regards to livability, the harmful effects of climate change can affect the quality of life,
or livability, and sustainability of a local region, state, and community. However, aside
from climate change, livability is inclusive of many factors that influence a community
and its residents’ quality of life. Similarly, sustainable development is closely associated
with livability, and the ideals and terms are used interchangeably.

Livable communities are those in which people have multiple, convenient transportation
and housing options, as well as destinations that are accessible to people traveling in and
out of cars. Livability is improved when various groups coordinate the quality and
location of transportation facilities with broader opportunities such as access to good
jobs, affordable housing, and quality schools while balancing environmental

sustainability.

BACTS’ efforts to assist in the management and operations of existing transportation
systems are becoming ever more important for several reasons. Travel demand continues
to increase and the amount of new infrastructure that can be developed is limited. The
worsening of congestion is impacting mobility, the environment and economic
productivity, and highlights the need for attention in transportation planning.

11.2  Climate Change

There are two ways of looking at the links between transportation and climate change:
how transportation systems affect the climate, and how climate change is likely to
influence the various modes of our transportation system.

The climate change that the world is currently experiencing is now generally accepted by
sxperts in the field to be associated with elevated levels of so-called greenhouse gases
(GHG). Efforts are underway around the world, to reduce emissions of GHG. However,
even if excess GHG emissions were eliminated by the end of the century, climate change
would continue. because the elevated levels of GHG would persist for thousands of years,
unless further efforts were made to actively “scrub™ GHG from the atmosphere.

Transportation is not only a major contributor 1o GHG cmissions. but also will be
sgnificantly atfected by the results of climate change.

LAy



11.2.1 National Perspective

Transportation Research Board Report 290 makes the following observations:

Climate Change Impacts of Greatest Relevance for U.S. Transportation

e Increases in very hot days and heat waves. It is highly likely (greater than 90
percent probability of occurrence) that heat extremes and heat waves will
continue to become more intense, longer lasting, and more frequent in most
regions during the 21st century. In 2007, for example, the probability of having
five summer days at or above 43.3°C (110°F) in Dallas was about 2 percent. In 25
years, this probability increases to 5 percent; in 50 years, to 25 percent; and by
2099, to 90 percent.

e Increases in Arctic temperatures. Arctic warming is virtually certain (greater than
99 percent probability of occurrence), as temperature increases are expected to be
greatest over land and at most high northern latitudes. As much as 90 percent of
the upper layer of permafrost could thaw under more pessimistic emission
scenarios. The greatest temperature increases in North America are projected to
occur in the winter in northern parts of Alaska and Canada as a result of feedback
effects of shortened periods of snow cover. By the end of the 21st century,
projected warming could range from as much as 10.0°C (18.0°F) in the winter to
as little as 2.0°C (3.6°F) in the summer in the northernmost areas. On an annual
mean temperature basis for the rest of North America, projected warming ranges
from 3.00C to 5.0°C (5.4°F to 9.0°F), with smaller values near the coasts.

e Rising sea levels. It is virtually certain (greater than 99 percent probability of
occurrence) that sea levels will continue to rise in the 21st century as a result of
thermal expansion and loss of mass from ice sheets. The projected global range in
sea level rise is from 0.18 m (7.1 in.) to 0.59 m (23.2 in.) by 2099, but the rise will
not be geographically uniform. The Atlantic and Gulf Coasts should experience a
rise near the global mean, the West Coast a slightly lower rise, and the Arctic
Coast a rise of only 0.1 m (3.9 in.). These estimates do not include subsidence in
the Gulf and uplift along the New England Coast. Nor do the global projections
include the full effects of increased melting of the Greenland and Antarctic ice
masses because current understanding of these effects is too limited to permit
projection of an upper bound on sea level rise.

s [ncreases in intense precipitation events. Intense precipitation events are highly
likely (greater than 90 percent probability of occurrence) to become more
frequent in widespread areas of the United States.

s [ncreases in hurricane intensity. Increased tropical storm intensities, with larger
seak wind speeds and more intense precipitation. are projected as likely (greater

Jian %6 percent orbability of aecmrence). Mo robust projections concerning the

nnal slobal aumther of tropieal storms have et ~merged from modeling studies,

36



but more detailed analyses focused on the Atlantic Ocean suggest no significant
increases in the annual number of Atlantic tropical storms.

11.2.2 Regional Perspective

Based on the national perspective (above), quoted from TRB report 290, and Maine’s
Climate Future (University of Maine); Maine is likely to be affected by climate change as

follows:

There will be a strong trend in Maine toward warmer and generally wetter conditions in
all four seasons over the 2lst century with the exception of summer precipitation.
Projected increases in both temperature and precipitation tend to be greatest in the north,
and least along the coast. These warming trends imply a significant shift in the regional
hydrology, from a snowmelt-dominated regime to one that shows significant runoff
during winter. This shift, coupled with projected precipitation increases in winter, will
likely pose challenges for flood mitigation.

Vulnerability of Transportation Infrastructure

Although a recent study has evaluated some types of economic impact of sea-level rise
for coastal York County (Colgan and Merrill 2008), there has not been a statewide
assessment of the impact of climate change on Maine’s infrastructure.

Some climate changes will be beneficial for Maine’s transportation system; the expected
decrease in the length and severity of the winter season will likely reduce the cost of
snow and ice control, provide safer travel conditions, and lengthen the construction
season. However, depending upon location, roads, bridges, and other transportation
infrastructure may become vulnerable to chronic or acute failure. Flooding and erosion
associated with major storms may cause road washouts, rendering transportation
infrastructure inoperable for long periods of time and requiring unplanned and high-cost
replacement and repair (MDOT 2008).

Reducing GHG Emissions

Efforts to reduce GHG emissions from transportation are essentially the same as those
used to address ground level ozone precursors. Notwithstanding the global extent of
levated GHG levels, and the small geographic extent of the BACTS Area; reduction of
{iHG emissions need to be focused on the reduction of use of GHG generating fuel, and
the increased use of alternative fuels that produce less or no GHG.

Goals/Objectives/Strategies

The Transportation Research Board of the National Academy of Sciences has made the
following recommendations: inventory critical infrastructure such as coastal roads,
railways, transit systems, and runways to assess their vulnerability to flooding due to
evere storms and sea-level viser factor nticipated climate change into investment and

¢ obainning Jdecisions: iatearite Svacuarion and SIMETERTICY CSSI0NSe 0 SXireme

.
Cud-ime ;

N7



weather events into transportation operations; and develop and implement monitoring
technologies to give advance warming of infrastructure failures due to water levels,

waves, and wind (TRB 2008).

11.3 Livability and Sustainability

Livability is about tying the quality and location of transportation facilities to broader
opportunities such as access to good jobs, affordable housing, quality schools, and safe
streets. Sustainable transportation provides exceptional mobility and access to meet
development needs without compromising the quality of life of future generations.
Livability and Sustainability can be addressed together since a strategy for pursuing one
will often be appropriate for the other.

BACTS promotes the development of transportation options that support Livability and
Sustainability by including non-automobile modes in its evaluation of potential highway
projects for the BACTS Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). Through the TIP
project evaluation criteria and project scoring, projects that support alternative modes and
their integration into the transportation system, score higher and so are more likely to be
funded. As an example, a highway project that includes sidewalks, provisions for transit,
or bicycling would score addition points, over the same project that did not. In addition, a
highway project at a location that already has provisions for alternative modes also gets
credit for those modes in its scoring as a potential highway project.

The strategy of implementing Access Management along highway corridors can preserve
the highway’s capacity so that mobility is not compromised, access to destinations is
made safer, and investment in public and private infrastructure is protected. Site access
along highways is controlled by local municipal ordinance and the MaineDOT’s traffic
movement permitting process. BACTS is involved in the latter (meaning the MaineDOT
and not the former, right?). However, other than encouraging municipalities to adopt
local access management ordinances, BACTS’ role is advisory. Some BACTS
communities have developed successful access management plans for significant
corridors, such as Brewer’s Wilson Street.

11.4 Transportation Operations

BACTS has recognized for years that traffic congestion occurs more frequently
throughout the day and on more roadways than in the past. Funding for major new
highway and fransit capacity projects is limited, and it often takes vears or decades to
plan and construct the new infrastructure necessary o reduce this congestion. At the same
time, much of the traffic delay on roadways is caused by inefficient or nonexistent traffic
control devices. crashes, weather conditions, special events, and other factors that require
more immediate solutions and are not solved solely through transportation infrastructure.

BACTS has developed some transportation system management and operations strategies
n the planning process Jesigned to optimize the performance of the transportation
cerem. They allow for a more immediate response o traveler concems than capacity



projects offer while improving the reliability, security, and safety of the multimodal
transportation system.

One of these initiatives is the outcome of concerns about quick and efficient response to
traffic incidents along the Interstate 95 corridor through Maine. Regional stakeholder
groups are being created to bring those involved together to craft regional plans that will
address the Incident Management issues in each region in a coordinated and thorough

way.

Given the challenges facing the transportation system, the availability of new
technologies, and public expectations, BACTS will continue to improve the
transportation system management and operations portion of the planning process.

11.5 Future Conditions and Issues

Responding to the challenges of climate change and the establishment of Livable and
Sustainable communities requires a long range effort because the challenge will still be
there well beyond the lifetime of this particular long range plan. Yet it is possible that
strategies can be implemented in the short term that will eventually position the Greater
Bangor Area so that it can maintain and improve its economic vitality and livability,
while reducing local impacts from climate change. In fact, some immediate factors are
already playing a part in adapting the transportation system to meet the challenges. The
increasing costs of gasoline and other user costs promote the use of alternatives, as does
the ageing of the population. The resulting changes in traveler behavior will exploit
existing supportive policies, services and infrastructure, and demand more.

A regular, systematic monitoring of travel demand and the condition of BACTS
infrastructure will enable officials to anticipate and plan for impacts to our transportation
system resulting from climate change.

11.6 Recommendations

e Survey weather related vulnerabilities of existing infrastructure.

» Develop projects and policies to reduce weather vulnerabilities.

» Incorporate climate vulnerability criteria into project selection, design,
specifications.

> Monitor climate effects on infrastructure.

> Promote alternative modes: transit, van pool, carpool, walk. and bike.

> Promote land use policies that are supportive of alternative modes such as Transit

Oriented  Developments, higher density developments, and mixed use

developments.

Assist with the Bangor region [ncident Management group.

©



12.0

Recommendations and Implementation

The recommendations from each chapter are compiled here and assigned a letter and
number relating to time frame and ease of implementation. The likely time frame for
implementation is indicated by the letter S for soon (0 to 2 years), M for medium (3-6
years), L for long term (> 6 years), and C for continuous effort required. The ease of
implementation is indicated by the number 1 for easy, 2 for moderate, or 3 for ditficult
and is determined by cost, importance to the transportation system, and political resolve.

Public Transit Recommendations:

[

Add service to coastal areas. (L-2)

Add service to towns around Bangor Area. (M-2)

Extend service within BACTS, including intermodal links. (M-2)

Provide evening service. (M-3)

Provide weekend service: add Saturday for Hampden, Sunday for all routes. (M-
3)

[ncrease frequencies, particularly Old Town route. (M-2)

Provide/improve passenger amenities — benches, shelters, landscaping, lighting,
walkways, signage, etc. (C-2)

Improve marketing through local TV, radio, local access channel, and city
channel. (S-1)

FExamine cost effective options for providing ADA Complementary Paratransit
service, as use of the service increases. (S-1)

Investigate partnerships with potential large ridership generators, such as colleges,
hospitals, and employers. (C-2)

Implement an ITS-based — traveler information system — next bus arrival, etc. (L-
2)

Implement transit priority at signalized intersections. (I.-2)

Ensure that sidewalks are provided along all bus routes as appropriate. (C-2)
Investigate opportunities for park & ride in the region. (S-1)

Study ways of coordinating the public transportation services in the BACTS area,
including the siting of an intermodal passenger facility. (C-2)

Study ways to better integrate taxi service with other transportation options in the
Bangor area. (C-2)

Lichway Network Recommendations:

3

3

Traffic Volume:

Advocate for improvements to the [-95 corridor recommended in the recently
completed 1-95 study. (C-1)
ontinue io advocate for reconstruction of the narrow twin bridges over Stillwater

Tiverin (dd Toem, -



¢ Continue to improve capacity and efficiency on Wilson Street (Route 1A) from
Acme Road to [-395 in Brewer. (C-2)

» Continue to improve Rt. 1A in Hampden southerly to Rt. 9. (C-1)

e Continue to improve Route 2 in from the Penobscot River Bridge project
northerly in Milford. (M-2)

e Continue to improve Route 16 (Bennoch Rd.) in Orono/Old Town from Route 2
to Stillwater Avenue. (L-2)

e Continue to work with Maine DOT to investigate possible safety improvements at
the Cedar & Third intersection in Bangor. (C-2)

e Work with Maine DOT to investigate possible safety improvements at both the
southern mall entrance and the 1-95 ramp intersections on Stillwater Avenue in
Bangor. (C-2)

¢ Advocate for construction improvements to [-95 on/off ramps at Exit 193 in
Orono as recommended in previous studies. (L-3)

¢ BACTS should conduct a study of Union Street in Bangor to address the impact
of increased volume and commercial development along the corridor. (M-1)

» Recommendations outlined in recent corridor studies should be implemented as
funds become available and as appropriate. (C-2)

e Work to improve cross-town connector roads between major inbound/outbound
routes in Bangor such as Burleigh Road and Griffin Road. (C-3)

Truck Volume:

e BACTS should continue to advocate for an increased weight limit on Maine’s
interstate system to reduce heavy truck traffic on our minor arterial and collector

roads. (C-1)

Traffic Signals:

» BACTS should continue to study signal coordination, phasing/timings along all
major corridors in the region. (C-1)

o The Traftic Signal Committee for BACTS should, continue to maintain the
equipment inventory, review standardization of equipment and implement a
maintenance plan for all signals within the region. (S-1)

2 BACTS should conduct a study to review and plan for a central traffic signal
operations center. (M-2)

Bicvele/ Pedestrian Recommendations:

> Identify high pedestrian or bicycle crash locations and help in the development of
information on how to reduce crash rates either by design or education. (S-1)

> Identify and address crosswalk deticiencies at intersections. (C-2)

> Maintain sidewalks and road shoulders throughout the year 10 minimize safety
wnd aceessibility problems. (€22)

sAd Uhare the Read” denage -y

i‘;‘[



e Recommend the use of Maine’s interstate funding to improve bicycle and
pedestrian mobility at problematic off-ramp locations, such as the Hogan Road
overpass. (M-3)

e Add appropriate bicycle and pedestrian accommodations to roadways when
undertaking repaving, upgrading, or reconstruction projects. (C-2)

e Support regional efforts to create a willing-buyer, willing-seller multi-user path
along the old Veazie Railroad bed from Bangor to Orono. (L-2)

e Add sidewalks to existing roadways where either current or latent pedestrian
traffic demand exists. (C-2)

e Create wider paved shoulders or bicycle lanes on existing roadways by restriping
where there is now adequate pavement width and either current or latent bicycle
traffic demand exists. (C-1)

e Upgrade signals at intersections with significant pedestrian traffic to include
appropriate pedestrian phases and signalization. (C-1)

e Support “Commute Another Way Week”, “Safe Routes to School” initiatives and
“Walk to School/Bike to School” events. (C-1)

e FEncourage member municipalities and MaineDOT to routinely provide
appropriate accommodations for bicyclists and pedestrians on roadway projects.
(C-2)

e Work with Greater Bangor Convention and Visitors Bureau (GBCVB),
MaineDOT and others to develop a regional bicycle map to promote more
bicycling within the BACTS area and to encourage more tourist economic activity
based on bicycling. (S-1)

e Advocate and look for greater funding from a wider array of sources for bicycle
and pedestrian transportation improvements at the federal, state, and local level.
(C-1

e Assist communities with funding applications to provide bicycle-pedestrian
facilities. (C-1)

e Provide information on successful grant writing for use by member communities.
(C-1)

e Encourage installation of more bicycle racks and sidewalk benches, at municipal
and business properties particularly in downtown locations, in public gathering
spaces, and intermodal facilities. (C-2)

s Provide easy to understand bicycle route signage along regional and local on-road
bicycle facilities. (C-2)

»  Address the accessibility issues noted in the BACTS Sidewalk Assessment for
sidewalks within U2 mile of a BAT line. (C-2)

Adr Transportation Recommendations:

» Promote and support the construction of a major conlerence center in Bangor
which will make BGR more attractive to air service providers. (S-2)

> Explore the feasibility of developing a containerized inland port. or intermodal
Seility, asar BGR or Morthern Maine Tuaction and supported by fiture 0ot

Spansion at earspod. G-



¢ Conduct a study to determine the feasibility of developing air cargo services at
BGR for niche markets such as Maine lobster. (M-2)

Rail Transportation Recommendations:

e Transportation, energy, and utility corridors and rights-or-way are a resource that
should be preserved for any potential future use or reuse. Unused rights-of-way
should be identified so as to prevent a reversion back to abutting landowners thus
threatening their use for transportation purposes. (S-1)

Marine Transportation Recommendations:

e Support improvements to Mack Point, Searsport such as dredging of the approach channel to the
port. Port operations are hampered by shallow water depth requiring deep draft vessels to enter

and leave the port facility during high tide. (M-2)

e BACTS should support the City of Bangor in its efforts to encourage deep draft
vessel traffic on the Penobscot River by dredging the Penobscot River. (S-1)

e BACTS should encourage MaineDOT to study the feasibility of constructing an
intermodal facility at the Bangor waterfront. (M-2)

Financial Recommendations:

e BACTS will seek increased funding for construction projects in the BACTS area
from any possible funding sources including MaineDOT, FHWA, FTA, Federal
delegation high priority projects, research funding sources and grant sources. (C-
2)

e BACTS will work with the State legislature to support the protection and integrity
of Maine’s Highway Fund. (C-1)

o BACTS will continue to optimize capacity to the existing system before
increasing capacity through road building activities, using TDM and TSM. (C-1)

s BACTS will investigate ways to leverage federal dollars using an equitable mix of
state and local funds. (C-1)

» BACTS will work to develop and implement a regional transportation process
that produces cost savings through regionalization. (C-2)

5 BACTS will work with MaineDOT to seek innovative techniques for
transportation projects to extend project lite. (C-2)



Climate Change, Livability, Sustainability and Transportation Operations
Recommendations:

e Survey weather related vulnerabilities of existing infrastructure. (M-3)

e Develop projects and policies to reduce weather vulnerabilities. (L-3)

e Incorporate climate vulnerability criteria into project selection, design,
specifications. (L-2)

e Monitor climate effects on infrastructure. (L-2)

e Promote alternative modes; transit, van pool, carpool, walk, and bike. (S-1)

e Promote land use policies that are supportive of alternative modes such as Transit
Oriented Developments, higher density developments, and mixed use
developments. (C-1)

e Assist with the Bangor region Incident Management group. (S-1)



APPENDIX A

BACTS LRP Public Participation Schedule and Public Comments



Appendix a materials here

30



APPENDIX B

BACTS Highway Classification, Volumes, and TIP Projects



Appendix B materials here



APPENDIX C

Acronyms



3-C
AADT
AASHTO
ACOE
ADA
ADT
AMPO
APA
AMTRAK
APTA
ATRC
BACTS
BAQC
BAT
BCM
BEP
BMP
BMS
BTIP
BTS
BUG
CAA
CAAA
CE
CFR
CIpP
CMAQ
CMS
CcoG
CRF
DBE
DEIS
DEP
DoT
EA

cIs

£Jd
EPA
FEIS
FFC
FHWA
FONSIE
SRA

Glossary of Acronyms

Continuing, Cooperative and Comprehensive Planning Process
Annual Average Daily Traffic

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials
US Army Corps of Engineers

Americans with Disabilities Act

Average Daily Traffic (or Average Daily Trips)
Association of Metropolitan Planning Organizations
American Planning Association

Brand name of National Rail System

American Public Transportation Association
Androscoggin Transportation Resource Center
Bangor Area Comprehensive Transportation System
Bureau of Air Quality Control

Brand name of BACTS Regional Transit System
Bicycle Coalition of Maine

Board of Environmental Protection

Best Management Practice

Bridge Management System

Biennial Transportation Improvement Program
Bureau of Transportation Statistics

Bicycle User Group

Clean Air Act

Clean Air Act Amendments

Categorical Exclusions

Code of Federal Regulations

Capital Improvement Program

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program
Congestion Management System

Council of Governments

Critical Rate Factor

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise

Draft Environmental Impact Statement
Department of Environmental Protection
Department of Transportation

Environmental Assessment

Frnvironmental {mpact Statement

Fnvironmental Justice

Environmental Protection Agency

Federal Aviation Administration

Final Environmental Impact Statement

Federal Functional Classification

Federal Highway Administration

Finding of No Signiticant Impact

Federal Ratlroad Adminisiraton

70



FTA

FY

GIS
GPS
GVW
HOV
HPMS
HSR
/M

[HS

M
ISTEA
ITS
JARC
KACTS
LOS
LRT
LRTP
M&O
MaineDOT
MIS
MOA
MOU
MPO
MRSA
MSA
MSTPA
MUTCD
NAA
NAAQS
NARC
NEPA
NHS
NOW
OES
PACTS
PBCAT
PE

PL

PV PILOT
RFP
ROD
ROW
RPC
R
RTAL

S TR A

Federal Transit Administration

Fiscal Year

Geographic Information Systems

Global Positioning Systems

Gross Vehicle Weight

High-Occupancy Vehicle

Highway Performance Monitoring System
High-Speed Rail

[nspection and Maintenance

Interstate Highway System

Interstate Maintenance

Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991
Intelligent Transportation Systems

Job Access Reverse Commute

Kittery Area Comprehensive Transportation Study
Level of Service (traffic flow rating)

Light Rail Transit

Long-Range Transportation Plan
Management and Operations

Maine Department of Transportation

Major Investment Study

Memorandum of Agreement

Memorandum of Understanding

Metropolitan Planning Organization

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Metropolitan Statistical Area

Maine Sensible Transportation Policy Act
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices
Non-attainment Area

National Ambient Air Quality Standards
National Association of Regional Councils
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969
National Highway System

Neighborhood Organized Walkers

Office of Environmental Services

Portland Area Comprehensive Transportation Study
Pedestrian-Bicycle Crash Analysis Tool
Preliminary Engineering

Planming Funds

Penobscot Valley Prudent Investments Linking Our Towns
Request for Proposal

Record of Decision

Right of Way

Regional Planning Commission

Ratlroad

Regional Transportation Advisory Commictee

afe. Gteconntablel Flexiblel Effoent Toanspooaton ¢

Ol

RETT AR



LU
SIB
SIP
SOV
SPO
SPR
STIP
STP
STPP
TAC
TAZ
TCM
TDM
TDP
TE
TEA-21
TIFIA
TIP
TMA
TMIP
TOD
TRB
TSM
UGB
UPWP
URIP
USC
VMT
vOC
VPD

Legacy for Users

State Infrastructure Bank

State Implementation Plan
Single-Occupancy Vehicle

State Planning Otfice

State Planning and Research Funds

State Transportation Improvement Program
Surface Transportation Program

Surface Transportation Policy Project
Technical Advisory Committee

Traffic Analysis Zone

Transportation Control Measure
Transportation Demand Management
Transit Development Program
Transportation Enhancements
Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act of 1998
Transportation Improvement Program
Transportation Management Area

Travel Model Improvement Program
Transit-Oriented Development
Transportation Research Board
Transportation System Management

Urban Growth Boundary

Unified Planning Work Program

Urban Rural Initiative Program

United States Code

Vehicle Miles Traveled

Volatile Organic Compound

Vehicles Per Day



APPENDIX D

Definitions



Definitions

A

Alight The act of getting off a vehicle — commonly applied to transit riders

Small stationary and non-transportation pollution sources that are too small and/or numerous to be included as

Area Sources point sources but may collectively contribute significantly to air pollution (e.g., dry cleaners).

A class of street serving major traffic movements (high-speed, high volume) for travel between major points.

Arterial Street

; : An area considered to have air quality that meets or exceeds the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Attainment Area (EPA) health standards used in the Clean Air Act. Non-attainment areas are areas considered not to have met
these standards for designated pollutants. An area may be an attainment area for one pollutant and a non-
attainment area for others.

C

A transportation facility's ability to accommodate a moving stream of people or vehicles in a given time

Capacity

period.
: Financial assistance from the Capital Program of 49 U.S.C. This program enables the Secretary of
o
Capltal Probram Transportation to make discretionary capital grants and loans to finance public transportation projects divided
Funds among fixed guideway (rail) modernization; construction of new fixed guideway systems and extensions to

fixed guideway systems; and replacement, rehabilitation, and purchase of buses and rented equipment, and
construction of bus-related facilities.

. A colorless, odorless, tasteless gas formed in large part by incomplete combustion of fuel. Human activities
Carbon Monoxide (CO) (i.e., transportation or industrial processes) are largely the source for CO contamination.

. AA The original Clean Air Act was passed in 1963, but the national air pollution control program is actually
Clean Air Act (C ) based on the 1970 version of the {aw. The 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments (CAAA) are the most far-
reaching revisions of the 1970 law. The 1990 Clean Air Act Amendment is the most recent version of the
1970 version of the law. The 1990 amendments made major changes in the Clean Air Act.

s Systematic process for managing congestion. Provides information on transportation system performance and
Congestlon vianagem ntﬁnds alternative ways to alleviate congestion and enhance the mobility of people and goods, to levels that

System (CI\/[S) meet staie and local needs.

. 143 . A categorical Federal-aid funding program created with the ISTEA. Directs funding to projects that contribute
COﬂgQSthl’l Nlltlgﬂtlﬂﬂ to meeting national air quality standards. CMAQ funds generally may not be used for projects that resuit in

and Air Quality the construction of new capacity available to SOVs (single-occupant vehicles).
Improvement Program
({CMAQ)

D

YWhen used alone, indicates LLS. Department of Transportation. In conjunction with a place name. indicutes
state, city, or county mansportation agency (e g, liinois DOT, Les Angeles DOT).

Béparﬁment of
Transportation (DOT)

L)

Emissions Budget




Environmental justice assures that services and benefits allow for meaningful participation and are fairly

Environmental Justice distributed to avoid discrimination.

(EJ)

s The federal regulatory agency responsible for administering and enforcing federal environmental laws,
Environmental including the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the Endangered Species Act, and others.

Protection Agency
(EPA)

F

: A branch of the U.S. Department of Transportation that administers the Federal-aid Highway Program,
Federal nghway providing financial assistance to states to construct and improve highways, urban and rural roads, and bridges.

Administration (FHWA) The FHWA also administers the Federal Lands Highway Program, including survey, design, and construction
of forest highway system roads, parkways and park roads, Indian reservation roads, defense access roads, and

other Federal lands roads.

Federal Transit A branch of the U.S. Department of Transportation that assists communities in developing and improving
.. . mass transportation equipment, facilities, techniques, and methods with the cooperation of public and private
Administration (F TA) mass transportation companies. The FTA also assists States and local governments and their authorities in
financing area-wide urban mass transportation systems that are to be operated by public or private mass
transportation companies as decided by local needs.

The process of defining and evaluating funding sources, sharing the information, and deciding how to atlocate

Financial Planning o e

A short-term commitment of funds to specific projects identified in the regional Transportation Improvement

Financial Programming
Program.

Particulate matter less than 2.5 microns in size (PM-2.5). A micron is one millionth of a meter. See

Fine Particulates "Particulate Matter” below.

Formula Capital Grants Federal transit funds for transit operators; allocation of funds overseen by FTA.

G

Computerized data management system designed to capture, store, retrieve, analyze, and display

Geographlc Information geographically referenced information.

System (GIS)

H

Time between successive arrivals (or departures) of vehicles — usually applied to fixed-route public

7 .
Lleadw"iy transportation

Vehicles carrying two or more people. The number that constitutes an HOV for the purposes of HOV
highway lanes may be destgnated differently by different transportation agencies.

High-Occupancy Vehicie
(HOV)

e appheanon of advanced rechnolagies o rmprove the erffciency and sateny of ranspartation sy st2ms




(ITS)

The ability to connect, and the connections between, modes of transportation.

Intermodal
Intermod al Surface [sgxslatwe initiative by Fhe Us. angrcss tha} fc'zsn*%cmre(% ﬁmdmg for rraps'portAanon progfamsj aumonzeé

. an increased role for regional planning commissions/MPOs in funding decisions; and required comprehensive
Transportation regional and statewide long-term transportation plans.

2

Efficiency Act of 1991
(ISTEA)

: The system of highways that connects the principal metropolitan areas, cities, and industrial centers of the
Interstate nghWﬂy United States. Also connects the U.S. to internationally significant routes in Canada and Mexico.
System (IHS)

L

Refers to the manner in which portions of land or the structures on them are used, i.e. commercial, residential,

Land Use retail, industrial, etc.
Long-Range A document resulting from regional or statewide collaboration and consensus on a region's or state's

g g . transportation system, and serving as the defining vision for the region's or state's transportation systems and
Transportatlon Plan services. In metropolitan areas, the plan indicates all of the transportation improvements scheduled for
(LRTP) funding over the next 20 years.

M

Maintenance area is any geographic region of the United States previously designated non-attainment
pursuant to the CAA Amendments of 1990 and subsequently redesignated to attainment subject to the
requirement to develop a maintenance plan under section 175A of the CAA, as amended.

Maintenance Area

: : Regional policy body, required in urbanized areas with populations over 50,000, and designated by local
Metropohtan Planmng officials and the governor of the state. Responsible in cooperation with the state and other transportation

Organization (NIP O) providers for carrying out the metropolitan transportation planning requircments of federal highway and
transit legislation.

The official intermodal transportation plan that is developed and adopted through the metropolitan

Metropohtal‘l transportation planning process for the metropolitan planning area, in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 134,23

Transportation Plan 1.8.C. 135 and 49 U.S.C. 5303,

(MTP)

‘ : . Mobile sources include motor vehicles, aircratl, seagoing vessels, and other transportation modes. The mobile

Mobile Source source-refated pollutants are carbon monoxide (CO), hydrocarbons (HC), nitrogen oxides (NOx), and
particulate matter (PM-10 and PM 2.5).

"/lode A specific form of transportation, such 3s automobile, subway, bus, rail, or air.

R

: : : Federal standards that set allowable concentrations and exposure limits for various pellutants. The EPA
at : ient Air . ) . ) } . .
Natlo.nal‘ Ambient . developed the standards in response (o 4 requirement of the CAA. Air quality standards have been established
Quahty Standards for the fllowing six critena pollutants: ozone (or smogj, carbon monoxide. particulate matter. nirngen

(N X;\QS) dioxide. lead, and sulfur dioxide.

federal funding or requin
sed and alternative choees on

“urablished a nanonal environmental policy requirng that any praject

armine the offact
amine the effect




National ITS
Architecture

A systems framework to guide the planning and deployment of ITS infrastructure. The national ITS
architecture is a blueprint for the coordinated development of ITS technologies in the U.S. It is unlikely that
any single metropolitan area or state would plan to implement the entire national ITS architecture.

Nonattainment

A geographic region of the United States that the EPA has designated as not meeting the air quality standards.

O

Ozone (0O3)

Ozone is a colorless gas with a sweet odor. Ozone is not a direct emission from fransportation sources. It is a
secondary pollutant formed when VOCs and NOx combine in the presence of sunlight. Ozone is associated
with smog or haze conditions. Although the ozone in the upper atmosphere protects us from harmful
ultraviolet rays, ground-level ozone produces an unhealthy environment in which to five. Ozone is created by
human and natural sources.

p

Particulate Matter (PM-
10 and PM 2.5)

Particulate matter consists of airborne solid particles and liquid droplets. Particulate matter may be in the
form of fly ash, soot, dust, fog, fumes, ctc. These particles are classified as "coarse” if they are smaller than
10 microns, or "fine" if they are smaller than 2.5 microns. Coarse airbormne particles are produced during
grinding operations, or from the physical disturbance of dust by natural air turbulence processes, such as
wind. Fine particles can be a by-product of fossil fuel combustion, such as diesel and bus engines. Fine
particles can easily reach remote lung areas, and their presence in the fungs is linked to serious respiratory
ailments such as asthma, chronic bronchitis, and aggravated coughing. Exposure to these particles may
aggravate other medical conditions such as heart disease and emphysema and may cause premature death. In
the environment, particulate matter contributes to diminished visibility and particle deposition (soiling).

Performance Measures

Indicators of how well the transportation system is performing with regard to such things as average speed,
reliability of travel, and accident rates. Used as feedback in the decision making process.

Planning Funds (PL)

Primary source of funding for metropolitan planning designated by the FHWA.

Public Participation

The active and meaningful involvement of the public in the development of transportation plans and
programs,

R

Regional Councils of
Government/Planning
Organizations

Regional councils of government are multipurpose, multi-jurisdictional, public organizations. Created by
local governments to respond to federal and state programs, regional councils bring together participants at
multiple levels of government to foster regional cooperation, planning and service delivery. They have a
variety of names, ranging from councils of government to planning commissions to development districts.

safe, Accountable,
{lexible, Efficient
Transportation Equity
Act: A Legacy for Users
(SAFETEA_LU)

Smart Growth

Authonized n 2003, SAFETEA-LU authorized federal tunding for mansportation investment for fiscal 2005-
~009. Approximately $2-44 billion in funding was asthorized, the fargest amount m history, which is used tor
highway, ransit, and other surface transporiation programs.




Refers to the origin of air contaminants. Can be point (coming from a defined site) or non-point (coming from
many diffuse sources). Stationary sources include relatively large, fixed facilities such as power plants,
chemical process industries, and petroleum refineries. Area sources are small, stationary, non-transpaortation
sources that collectively contribute to air pollution, and include such sources as dry cleaners and bakeries,
surface coating operations, home furnaces, and crop buming. Mobile sources include on-road vehicles such as
cars, trucks, and buses; and off-road sources such as trains, ships, airplanes, boats, lawnmowers, and
construction equipment.

Urban form that connotatively depicts the movement of people from the central city to the suburbs. Concerns
associated with sprawl include loss of farmland and open space due to low-density land development,
increased public service costs, and environmental degradation as well as other concems associated with
transportation.

Stakeholders

Individuals and organizations involved in or affected by the transportation planning process. Include
federal/state/local officials, MPOs, transit operators, freight companies, shippers, and the general public.

State Implementation
Plan (SIP)

Produced by the State environmental agency, not the MPO. A plan mandated by the CAA that contains
procedures to monitor, control, maintain, and enforce compliance with the NAAQS. Must be taken into
account i the transportation planning process.

State Infrastructure
Bank (SIB)

A revolving fund mechanism for financing a wide variety of highway and transit projects through loans and
credit enhancement. SIBs are designed to complement traditional Federal-aid highway and transit grants by
providing States increased flexibility for financing infrastructure investments.

State Planning and
Research Funds (SPR)

Primary source of funding for statewide long-range planning.

State Transportation
Improvement Program

A staged, multi-year, statewide, intermodal program of transportation projects, consistent with the statewide
transportation plan and planning processes as well as metropolitan plans, TIPs, and processes.

Statewide
Transportation Plan

The official statewide intermodal transportation plan that is developed through the statewide transportation
planning process.

Stationary Source

Relatively large, fixed sources of emissions (i.e., power plants, chemical process industries, petroleum
refining and petrochemical operations, or wood processing).

Surface Transportation
Program (STP)

Federal-aid highway funding program that funds a broad range of surface transportation capital needs,
including many roads, transit, sea and airport access, vanpool, bike, and pedestrian facilities.

Telecommuting

Communicating elcctronically (by telephone, computer. fax. ete.) with an office. zither from home oF fom
anuther site, nstead of traveling to it physically.

Title V1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Prohibits discrimination in any program receving federal assistance.

Transportation
Conformity

Process to assess the compliance of any transportation plan, program, or project with air guality
implementation plans. The conformity process is defined by the Clean Air Act.

Transporiation Controd
saies (DD




Transportation Demand
Management (TDM)

Programs designed to reduce demand for tansportation through various means, such as the use of transit and
of alternative work hours.

Transportation Equity

Authorized in 1998, TEA-21 authorized federal funding for transportation investment for fiscal 1998-2003.
Approximately $217 billion in funding was authorized, the largest amount in history, which is used for

Act for the 21st Century highway, transit, and other surface transportation programs.
(TEA-21)

: A document prepared by a metropolitan planning organization that lists projects to be funded with
Transp ortation FHWA/FTA funds for the next one-to-three-year period.

Improvement Program
(T1P)

Transportation
Infrastructure Finance
and Innovation Act of
1998 (TIFIA)

A federal credit program under which the DOT may provide three forms of credit assistance - secured (direct)
loans, loan guarantees, and standby lines of credit - for surface {ransportation projects of national or regional
significance. The fundamental goal is to leverage federal funds by attracting substantial private and non-
tederal co-investment in critical improvements to the nation's surface transportation system.

Transportation
Management Area
(TMA)

All urbanized areas over 200,000 in population, and any other area that requests such designation.

Trust Fund

A fund credited with receipts that are held in trust by the government and earmarked by law for use in
carrying out specific purposes and programs in accordance with an agreement or a statute.

U

Unified Planning Work
Program (UPWP)

The management plan for the {metropolitan) planning program. Its purpose is to coordinate the planning
activities of all participants in the planning process.

Urbanized Area

Area that contains a city of 50,000 or more population plus incorporated surrounding areas meeting size or
density criteria as defined by the U.S. Census.






Meeting of the Orono-Veazie Water District Trustees

Held at the Treatment Plant on May 3. 2011,

Meeting # 394 called to order at 6:30 p.m.

Present: Chairman McCormack. Trustee Hall, Trustee Fortier, Trustee

[tem 3.

[tem 4.

[tem 5.

[tem 6.

[tem 7.

[tem 8.

ftem 9.

Borneman. Supt. Cross. Peter Goodwin, Brian Geotz, and Chris Perkins from
Weston & Sampson.

Minutes of meeting #393 approved as amended.

. A true hist of water service assessments for April in the amount of

$164,227.69 was committed to Dennis Cross. Treasure by vote of Trustees.
Trustees met with Weston & Sampson staft to review close out process for the
project. Trustees reviewed past Weston & Sampson invoices-some of which the
Trustees do not agree with. The Trustees will attempt to resolve this issue soon.
Also — Trustees voted to authorize Dennis to sign Weston & Sampson
amendment #2 per 4/7/2011 Weston & Sampson memo.
Trustees discussed the tssue of Terry Hughes collection trip fee and his request to
get credit tor it. Trustees voted not to do this and to continue our policy on these
collection trip fees.

Trustees reviewed the Income & Expense statement for April 2011.

The District is required to be on a GIS System. Dennis will get quotes for
implementing this system,.

Regarding the Plant upgrade project — liquidated damages issue. Trustees
authorized Dennis to attend negotiations with a mediator and Penta. If an
agreeable cost figure is determined. Trustees authorized Dennis to resolve final
payment.

Trustees reviewed and approved the 2010 Annual Report.

The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m.

The next meeting will be held at the District Office at 7:00 p.m. on June 14, 201 1.

Respectfully submitted.

John McCormack



534 2h b0 54
Asothe Appropriations Commitise
continsed 1o finalize ins reconnmended
POE2-2003 bienntal buduet this week
the members of the Hoeose and Senate
sore fa e seats Late into cach aizli
making dinal decisions o the many hills
Hhat remarocd onothe table, The push tor

the Fovisbature fo complete s work is

coverped by tao dillerent deadbines,

wedfine. as ap-

Phe Tt is o hinaneial J
meinhbers

e s o

sroorialed

piy

cfihe b

PR Cprense

ITEM # ‘g

' 7
Gy S
3 7
LA O B

buitding code. connnonty relemed 0 as
MEBEC eMaine Unitorm Building and
Prergy Codey.

What Tollows s a description of
several bills of municipal interest that
waredebated during the fustweek, More
detailed information about these bills
can be foand i previous editions ol the
Legislaive Bullerinas well ason VINEA S
LD List s hichis constantly updated o
Both

of these resoarces are Tound at MAMATS

reffectlegislative deciston-inaking,

Restriction of Fircarms.  [he
Cegisbature debated two bills this week
reaarding the possession of tirearms in
sovernmentbuildings. One bill 1.0O932,
B dctro Atovw Concealed Weapans in
the Stee Houseowould velax the exist-
g fircarms prohibition by cnabling
permiited pessons o carey concealed
frcarms i the State Capitol complex.
Phe other bl LD 3780 0 forio titonr

Vel ipadiclo s 1o Resprici the Possession

astweeh s cdition ot the

siigz BT worded e

g he S e auisiie

KIS oy

i

wont b st the cuoning iy

fhooagbbie b os gt

coarttcle pomtad Gt P b e g

oopemh

Vol XXXIll No. 23 June 10, 2011

SH

of Firocrmy in Cortainn Ciremmnitanees.
wanld enable town and city councils or
the town meeting assemblios to adopt
ordinances that restrict the carry ing of
fircarms in the municipal “capitol buifd-
iy aeeas. See the \peil 22 Jevisfative
Hudletin (o details.

Vithoush womajority ol the Criminal
lustice Commitee supportad LD 932
tenabling the possession ol fircarns in
the state capitol) and opposed 1.0 378
{eoabling municipal legistative bodies
1o restrict fivcarms in their places of
legislative assembly ) recent lircarms-
related maidents seemed to have helped
focus public opinion on these issues.
With respect to LD Y320 the Legislatare
unanimousty deteemined that measures.
such as ancincreased security presence.
WS INOTS APPIDPIIATE {0 protect persons
engaging i Capitol arca activities than
aowmy wuns into the State House.

Hoswever swhen it came o empow-

ering municipal leaistative bodies with

Coiod

EER RS E TR N B

e Conmittes wondd on




-4

decision mhing authority o restrict

the possession oFweapons inmunicipal
vovermment buthdings. concerns over the
rivhtto bheararms suddenty muaterialized
anongsome membersolthe Senate. The
apponents of LD 378 were concerned
thatallowing town meetines ortown city
councils Lo adopt ordinanves restricting
tircarms would preventlaw abiding citi-
sens fram protecting themselves from
persons mtent on harming others, [he
proponents, who placed faith in the men
andwonren swho make up the municipal
legislative hadies to determine whut is
best Tor their individual communities.
carried the day as the Senate supported
the measure by a vote of 21 to (3.0 1D
378 s currently tabled i the House.
Voter Reform.
Legal Affuirs Comunittee held public

Ihe Veterans and

heures and work sessions on several
bills designed to restructure the voter
registration and absenice balloting pro-
censes. Some bills sought to eliminate
same day voter registration, others o
restrict the use of the absentee ballot-
ing process and still other bills sought
o require voter proot of identification
hetore voting. Aflter the last ballot was

cast, two bills remained standing one of

Details
on these bills can be found in the Feb.
I8 and Ny 27 editions of the Legiv/u-

which was enacted this week.

e Bullovin,
DI L S PP
Lheciion Lones by

fer 0o Senuthen
Ve v fegniving

Photoarapl Ideatitioation tor tiwe Pur-

pose of Todaz would require all vorers

o show o stirte or federally sufficient

Legislative Bulletin

Cpe

Aot e e

lormy alphoto identilication belore heing
authorized to cast a ballotin a federal,
state or local clection. The bl was
narowly supported i the House by
4 margin of 75 to 09 and iy currently
tabled i the Senate.

LD 13760 An der 1o Prosesye the
Tnieariny of the Tower Regisivabion and
Fleciion Process, Iy Ulininates same day
voterregistration and requires al | vorters
toregisteratleast 3 businessdays betore
the election; 2y Narrows the reasons for
whicha person can castan absentee bal-
lot i the three business days betore an
clection: and 3) Creates an entitlement
o cast a “provisional ballot” lor any
one whose name does not appeur on the
alficial voter registration list but who
wishes to cast a ballot. The provisional
ballotvotes would ulthmately need o he
processed by the electionclerks atter the
voter’s elivibtlity (o vote in cach case
is determined.

Phe Mane Toswn and City Clerks”
Assoctation supported the bill as away
torchicve the pressures the ever growing
use of the absentee hallot process has
placed on municipal clerk workload in
the day s leading into the clection, NNA
apposed the bill because ies Legislative
Policy Committee (] PCYmembers were
concerned that the elimination of same
day voter registration would disenfran-
Rather than completely
restructure the registration process,
NN LPC believes something needs

chise voters.,

fo be done toaddress the ubsentee voting
process. From the perspective o VMV
Poliey Commuitee the locus ol 1376
isanisplaced.

Among the members ol the [egin-
[ ose

Entvre, the debare was similar,

supporting the measare believe that

itosooudd relicve muanicipal workfond.

shife vpponents capressed concorns

i fa P St H i Wy . N P .
that ihe Bl o CHsonranciise vaot-

PR P S N P N 1
[AEATNS SR NS S TR AN G B Noerbi s

dvihe flonse by e

ST T the Senate by
ol RS i N

Faibding Cudes Noume' st b

abolishing MUBLEC (0 making minorbat
practical amenduments to the state code.
o billsc 1D 12530 1w det fo bnewd
the Foney Cravermipg the Lijorecineinr of
Ntateseide Uniiforyr Building Codes aad
LO VRO i dee To Provide Opriois 1o
Viricipalivics Concerniing the Vlaine
Cniform Building and Foeegy Code,
survived the process.

Vs the dust settled. the Le
chacted both bills,
detatl iy the May 13 and 20 editions ol
the [ogistacive Bullerin, (e members
ol two separate legislative commitices

istature

As described in

had dittevent ideas on how 1o iuprove
the statewide building code.

Ihe Labor., Commerce. Research
and Economic Development Commit-
tee (LORLED)Y unanimoushy endorsed
LD 12330 Lhe bill, swhich was initiated
by MMA, makes several changes to
MUBEC that could he characterized
as “Hx-up” or houscheeping in nature.
Phis bill was cnacted by hotlt the House
and the Senate,

A majonty of the State and focul
Governnient Connmittee, however, sup-

ported LD TG, which fundamentally
restructures how MUBEC would be
miplemented i towns and cities with
popalations of 4,000 or less. Tader the
erms of LD 1416, those communities
could cither adopt MUBEC and take on
s enforcement. or the building code
would not apply i that conmmunity as
anatter of Tav, The members of [ louse
supported LD T O by amargin ol 76469
andthe members ofthe Senate supported
the bill by a margin of 19213,

Presumtably. Divther sieps will be
Gihen o reconcile the adaption of 1.1
FIS3 and 1D 146, whose terms are
Fandhnentally meompatible,

“Fair Shave™ Ater the [LORFD
Commitere beld o pabiic hoaring Lt

scveh o LIY 5G9 (0 Loag




g
]
E

payments must be nade as a condition
ol emplovment. The bill also allows
an employer to deduct the “lair share™
payment frony an employee™s pay check
anly i the cmployee has aereed in
writing to that deduction. On the [Tip
side. the amended bill provides that the
state cployee union would no loneer
be required to represent a non-union
cinplovee in o gricvance or discipline-
related dispute it the employee is not
pasing the service lee.

Public atendees were anvious as to
what woukd transpive at the work ses-
stons Althoughnowhere near the turnowt
lor the pablic hearing, the Commiites
Foem was atcapacily beeause attendees
wanted fo witness lesthand what would
Tappen with this controversial bill, e
work session was as shortin duration as
the public hearing wus long.

\lter ingiial
Commitiee identified some stumbling

mtroductions. the

blochs with respect to enacting the bill
this sear. These fssues included: (o)
Questions that surtaced about the leg-
islation that are stll imanswered: (by
Various iterations of language changes
with this bill: (¢) Cantusion during the
public heuaring concerning the original
bill and the amended bill: and (dy A
need for additional time 1o review all
the background information on this issue
that the Committee s analbyvst providaed (o
the mrenibers, B
the LORED Committee voted 1210 1o
carry ihe bl over unt] January 2017

ke obthese frclors,

LS9 Rocalve [o e g il or-
drg et o Voke Reconninein faiiians

oty

L0539 includes a $35.000 fiscal note o

cover state expenses required to salf

theworking wroup. e bill now sits on
the Special Appropriations Tuable. with
the 70-plus other bitls that neaed to be
Tunded. Ttis now up o the \ppropria-
Gons Commitice fo determine whether
or not this bl makes the prioriny list
siven limited resourees,

LOVSS3 ot der o Provide for o
Veiiod To Remove cn Flecied Minici-
ped Ofricial was enacted as cHicrueicy
leuishition, making the law elfective (he
day it s sizaed by the Governor, The
Bill provides a process in state statutes
foreecalling amunicipal olficerw ho has
beenconvictedolilelony ceime angaint
the municipality. Foradditional details.
see the Mav 15 edition of'the Butlerin.,

LD H4oS. dn dor 1o bend the
foovs Geoverning Frecdom of focess.,
was carried over until the Second Ses-
ston by the Tudiciary Committce. This
“Righto Know™ bill would iimpose ex-
traoedinary additonal reguirements on
municipalitics to respond immediately
to a Freedom of Information request
and provide the requested documents in
the precise fornr and lormat requested.
Please refer to the April 29 and May 13
editions of the [ egistative Bullerin For
more details. This action by the Come
mittee was necessitated by an inrerest
i having the Right to Know Nhvisory
Commiitee (a briet description of this
pdvisory board is on page 6 ol the Moy
F3 L egiskitive Bulleting reviesy the hill
overthe summer and report its fnding,
baok to ihe Judivciary € ommittee nen
Finnary.,

Phe Gravevard. Althoush not ap-
preciated by atle particularly those on
the Tosing side of an issue. 1he lircon
ol ihe | Littve process imcludes (e

dled by Camminee”

olthe Zegistative Bullcdio o review the
nevative impacts this bl would have
o municipabities, i enacted. \lso.
mformation regarding the hill's public
hearing and work session can be tound
mothe April 8 and Vay 6 cditions. re-
spectively. Eltimately. the Senate and
House agreed o disagree. The Senate
voted 1o support the majority report of
“ought o pasy as amended” and the
Howse voted toverw helnrinely ) o Stip-
port the minority report of “oueht not
o pass.” s deadlock killed the bill.

LD WO L ter 1o Detine Tion-
holder Richis wocder ihe Vidine Fioe
Crrontdlr Jax Jane was a bill that would
require manicipal assessors to send out
additional mailed notices o the finan-
cialinstitutions and other “lienholders™
who hold mortgages on property in the
free Growth tax prosram in certain
circumstances. When LD 191 hit the
House calendar, MM A uroed manicipul
oflicials to contact their legislators about
the mandate aspects ot the Bill, LD 191
was voted “ought not to pass” i hoth
the House and the Senate.

ED 2500t dor To Poraric Tuition
Subsidics by Vinicipalitios, was u bill
that authovized municipalities o ap-
propriate properts tax resoarces for the
purpose of reambursing purents who
make tition payments to send their
children to relicions schools, W hen
LI 230 it the Howse calendar, MMVEA
sraed maicipal othicials Greontact their

Fators ahout how 11 250 could

stretel the capacits oCwonicipalities (o
bind education programs tothe breaking
pofnt E 1 256 was voted Coueht not o
pass” i both the Honse and the Senate.



